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CHAIRMAN'’S
STATEMENT

FEHE

Dear Shareholders:

HEMRR:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2022 (“FY2022”).
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In 2021, the global economy continued its uneven recovery amid the
ongoing pandemic, struggling among lingering supply chain
disruptions, logistic bottlenecks and threats to financial stability.
Despite the complicated external environment, China’s economy
posted a stable growth of 8.1% in 2021, the fastest among the major
economies in the world. However, China’s economic growth in the
fourth quarter further slowed to 4%, down from 4.9% in the third
quarter, due to weaker demand as sporadic COVID-19 outbreaks
resulted in strict lockdowns affecting consumption combined with a
weakening property market.

As the world heads into the third year of the pandemic, the
emergence of Omicron, the highly transmissible COVID-19 variant,
has clouded over global economic growth in 2022. China has seen
spike in confirmed and asymptomatic cases in March, and following
the lockdown imposed to Shenzhen and Jilin in accordance with
China’s dynamic zero-COVID strategy, Shanghai, being China’s
biggest city and a global trade hub, reported a continuous growth on
new cases leading to its prolonged citywide lockdown for two months
until end of May and resulted in production and supply chain
disruptions for manufacturers and suppliers globally. In addition to the
escalating tensions between China and the United States, the
increasing geopolitical risks induced by the conflict between Russia
and Ukraine, the two major commaodity producers, further push up
inflation and trigger turmoil in the financial markets, dragging on the
global economy recovery.

Against an uncertain and volatile global economic backdrop, China’s
“dual circulation” development strategy that takes the domestic
market as the mainstay while domestic and foreign markets
complement each other, which was first adopted in May 2020, has
helped in shielding China’s economy from an increasingly turbulent
and-unpredictable external environment. To further reorient China’s
economic growth pattern to build up resilience against global volatility,
China released in April 2022 a guideline on accelerating the
establishment of a national unified market that is efficient, rules-
based, fair for competition and fully open. The accelerated efforts for
building of a unified domestic market that features efficient
production, distribution, circulation and consumption, signify a key
step to deepen market-oriented reforms that will offer broader
development space for domestic and foreign businesses, foster high-
quality development, and facilitate further opening-up to unleash
market vitality in China as domestic and international markets are
better connected.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ETRHE (E)

The year of 2021 marks the start of China’s Fourteenth Five-Year
Plan (2021-2025) which echoes certain goals set forth in China’s far-
reaching economic and social development strategies, including
Healthy China 2030 and Long-Range Objectives Through the Year
20835. In accordance with the guiding principles and directions of the
Fourteenth Five-Year Plan, it is anticipated that China’s public health
system will be further upgraded, innovation efforts will be ramped up
for high-quality development of China’s pharmaceutical industry, and
strategic arrangements will be advanced for building China into a
modern socialist country. In the midst of supportive policies and
initiatives coupled with reforms to improve people’s living standards,
China’s pharmaceutical industry continued to develop in a sustainable
growth path in 2021. The pharmaceutical industry continues to
undergo transformation and is thriving with additional emphasis on
innovation-led, high-quality development in the long run.

During FY2022, China’s pharmaceutical industry landscape continued
to demonstrate changes in response to the deepening healthcare
reform policies and measures. The launch of the fifth and sixth rounds
of centralised drug procurement, annual updates of the national drug
reimbursement list, and the implementation of reforms to manage
medical insurance payments through the diagnosis-related groups
and big data diagnosis intervention packet payment management
models, continued to create tremendous challenges to
pharmaceutical enterprises, increasing pricing pressure and
intensifying market competition, while China’s public health system
has become more regulated and patients’ access to drugs has been
continuously improved in the light of rationalisation of drug prices and
strengthening of the procurement and supply chain system. The
frequent regulatory changes and reforms have been reshaping the
industry landscape while pharmaceutical enterprises have become
more adaptive to the market development and changes in policies.

Against the backdrop of highly complicated operating environment
due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has stayed
cautious in managing its businesses that the overall operating results
of the Group’s business segments remained steady in FY2022, and
will continue to enhance internal management to ensure agility in
facing new operational challenges ahead so as to timely respond to
changing market conditions. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to
stay focused on development of its self-manufactured products by
leveraging its production capacity and core capabilities of its
manufacturing segment, while pursuing new business opportunities
for its trading segment, with the aim of delivering better performance
in the coming years.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Group’s profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
amount to about HK$130.6 million as compared to a loss of about
HK$121.1 million of last year, representing an increase of about HK$
251.7 million, primarily attributable to the gain from fair value change
of the Group’s investments in convertible bonds, which is a
non-cash item.

Notwithstanding that the COVID-19 pandemic continues to present
unpredictable challenges worldwide and geopolitical risks tend to
increase, the Group believes that the long-term positive fundamentals
of China’s economy have not changed, and multiple factors such as
the acceleration of aging population and consumption upgrading,
patients’” unmet needs coupled with Healthy China strategy, support
optimism for continued solid demand for quality drugs and new
impetus to the pharmaceutical market that will provide diverse
opportunities to pharmaceutical enterprises. Though current business
environment remains volatile, the Group has maintained a sound
financial position and will prioritise optimisation of its internal
resources to meet the ongoing challenges in the rapidly changing
environment, and takes a cautiously optimistic view on its sustainable
development in the years to come.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express its appreciation to all
those in the Group for their commitment to maintaining operations
amidst the difficult pandemic situation, as well as their dedicated
efforts and contribution to the Group during FY2022, and to the
shareholders, business partners and other stakeholders for their
continuous support.

Dr. Xie Yi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 15 July 2022
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall Performance Review

The global economy experienced a strong rebound in 2021 against
the backdrop of mass COVID-19 vaccinations, the easing of
lockdown measures and the lifting of cross-border travel restrictions
in many parts of the world. However, the rapid spread of the Omicron
variant of the COVID-19 and the outbreak of the Russia-Ukraine war
in early 2022 have posed significant challenges to the global recovery,
and brought severe challenges to China’s economy.

Amid the challenging year of 2021, China was striving to accelerate
the resumption of work and production to stabilise the economy by
adhering to the dynamic zero-COVID policy, which aims to curb the
flare-ups in the shortest possible time with the lowest social costs. As
a result of tremendous efforts, China’s economy grew at 18.3%, 7.9%,
4.9%, and 4.0% in the four quarters of 2021 and recorded a 8.1%
full-year growth. Although the rising Omicron cases in March 2022
had placed a number of provinces under varying levels of lockdown,
China’s economy remained on track to grow at 4.8% in the first
quarter of 2022, picking up pace from a 4.0% growth in the fourth
quarter of 2021.

Although China faced downward pressure of economic growth arising
from the waves of pandemic, the pharmaceutical industry maintained
its growth momentum underpinned by growing market demands and
the government’s commitments to invest in the industry toward high-
quality and innovation-led development under the guiding principles
and policy directions outlined in the Fourteenth Five-Year Plan (2021-
2025) and Healthy China 2030 Plan. The government’s push to
improve quality and promote innovation has profoundly reshaped the
industrial landscape. During the year, a raft of deepening healthcare
reform policies and measures were introduced by the government,
focusing at increasing patients’ access and affordability of quality
drugs and innovative drugs. These policies, such as the launch of the
fifth and sixth rounds of centralised drug procurement, and annual
adjustments of the national drug reimbursement list, have driven
sector consolidation and volatility in the market with the continued
price-cuts pressure. Large pharmaceutical enterprises with high-
quality products and strong innovation capabilities tend to dominate
the market, and small manufacturers were facing tremendous pricing
pressure and rising market entry barriers in the changing regulatory
environment, which have posed significant challenges to the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Overall Performance Review (Continued)

During the year, the Group’s revenue and gross profit, which were
contributed by the manufacturing segment operating in China,
declined to HK$73.9 million (2021: HK$78.8 million) and HK$37.6
million (2021: HK$42.6 million) respectively, representing a decrease
of about HK$4.9 million or 6.2% in revenue and a decrease of about
HK$5.0 million or 11.8% in gross profit. Such decreases were mainly
a result of the implementation of mandatory factory lockdown by the
Chinese government during March 2022 to curb the spread of the
coronavirus outbreak in accordance with its dynamic zero-COVID
policy. The gross margin dropped from 54.0% to 50.8%, primarily
due to a change in the sales mix.

The Group’s administrative, selling and distribution expenses in
aggregate decreased to about HK$50.5 million, representing a
decrease by about HK$2.9 million or 5.5% when compared to about
HK$53.4 million of last year. Such decrease was the combined resuilt
of a decrease in research and development expenses of about
HK$2.6 milion and a decrease in the overall expenses of about
HK$0.3 million.

The Group’s operating profit before income tax was about HK$132.3
million (2021: loss of HK$119.7 million), representing an increase of
about HK$252.0 million. Such increase was mainly due to the
combined results of certain non-cash items arising from (i) fair value
gain of the Group’s investments in convertible bonds of about
HK$168.6 million (2021: loss HK$104.7 million), (i) provision for
impairment loss on amount due from and loan to an associate in
aggregate of about HK$8.2 million, (i) a decrease in imputed interest
income from amount due from an associate by about HK$3.6 million, (iv)
a reduction in the write-back of impairment provision for trade and
other receivables in aggregate of about HK$3.6 milion, and (v) an
increase in effective interest expense on convertible bonds of about
HK$2.1 million.

As a result, the Group’s profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company was about HK$130.6 million, representing an increase
of about HK$251.7 million when compared to the loss of about
HK$121.1 million of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEN WK D (&)

REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS

Manufactured Pharmaceutical Sector

During the vyear, the segment witnessed the rapidly-changing
environments, which were fueled by the intensification of price
competition driven by the deepened healthcare reforms, including the
launch of the fifth and sixth rounds of centralised drug procurement
and the disruptions caused by the pandemic. Despite these
challenges posted tremendous pressure on the segment, the
strategic initiatives to strengthen the competitive position, secure
market share, and capture new growth opportunities through
collaboration with distributors with extensive distribution networks,
and to promote the Group’s product awareness in rural areas and
communities, continued to facilitate the segment to deliver positive
results. Building on the solid foundation laid by these strategic
initiatives, the segment was able to maintain the growth momentum,
particularly through increasing sales in the Group’s product
specialised in improving the immunity system of the human body
against diseases.

In March 2022, the highly transmissible Omicron variant of COVID-19
had caused a surge of infections in Jilin, China, which had resulted in
the government-mandated factory lockdown, including the Group’s
plants in Changchun. Facing the surge of COVID-19 cases, the entire
province was subsequently put under lockdown, and strict pandemic
prevention and control measures were imposed by the Chinese
authorities to stem the transmission; including city-wide close off,
movement restrictions, mass testing and quarantine. After days of
arduous efforts, Jilin was able to achieve the dynamic clearance of
COVID-19 at the community level in mid-April 2022, and following the
lockdown measures eased in phase, the Group’s plants in
Changchun resumed normal production in May 2022. With intense
management efforts, the Group’s production plants have been
operating safely without any significant impact on productivity and
cost efficiency.
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REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Manufactured Pharmaceutical Sector (Continued)

During the year, segment revenue was maintained at about HK$73.9
million (2021: HK$78.8 million), representing a decrease of about
HK$4.9 million or 6.2%, and gross profit decreased by about HK$5.0
million or 11.8% when compared to last year. The change in the sales
mix and the temporary closure of factory had impacted the gross
margin, which decreased from about 54.0% to about 50.8%, while
there was a reduction of marketing expenses of about HK$0.6 million
and a reduction of research and development expenses of about
HK$2.6 million. As a result, the segment profit declined to about
HK$2.1 million, representing a reduction of about HK$1.9 million or
47.06% when compared to the profit of about HK$4.0 million
recorded last year.

The Group will stay focused on enhancing internal management and
cost control to cope with the fast-changing operating environment
and strive for delivering better performance in future.

Imported Pharmaceutical Sector

During the year, no revenue was recorded by the segment as it
continued to be impacted by the issues of sales suspension of the
segment’s major revenue contributor, the imported skin treatment
product and the import license renewal, which were disclosed in the
2020 and 2021 Annual Reports. This difficult situation has placed
significant pressure on the segment, and despite the disruptions
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, management has maintained a
focus to develop new products and to build up a new sales platform
in an effort to restore performance of the segment. This strategy
remains firmly on track, and the manufacturer has been making
continued efforts on the development of a new line of products.
Meanwhile, management continued to review the staff and overhead
costs of the segment, aiming for further minimising its overall
operating costs, and for the purpose of facilitating internal
management and performance assessment, certain internal resources
were reallocated to corporate activities within the Group.

As a result, the segment recorded a loss of about HK$4.2 million (2021:
HK$4.4 million), representing a decrease in loss of about HK$0.2
million or 5.6%. The decrease was mainly the result of a reduction of
operating expenses in aggregate of about HK$4.1 million arising from
the reallocation of internal resources to corporate activities and
reduction of staff costs and no write- back of impairment provision for
trade and other receivables in aggregate of about HK$3.9 million as
made last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEN WK D (&)

REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Gene Development Sector

During the year, gene development remained inactive and no revenue
was recorded.

Interest in an Associate

The Group holds 49% equity interest in Smart Ascent Limited (“Smart
Ascent”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Smart Ascent Group”),
and the major asset of the Smart Ascent Group is the intangible asset
in relation to an in-process research and development project (“In-
process R&D”) involving an oral insulin product (the “Product”), which
is still at its clinical trial stage. As a minority shareholder of Smart
Ascent, the Group has been working closely with Innovative
Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited (“Innovative Pharm”), the 51%
shareholder of Smart Ascent, in monitoring the progress of the oral
insulin project with a view to facilitating successful launching of the
Product to the market.

For the purpose of financing the working capital requirements of
Smart Ascent Group for the oral insulin project, Innovative Pharm
(together with its subsidiaries, the “Innovative Pharm Group”) and the
Company through their respective wholly-owned subsidiaries, as
lenders and Smart Ascent as borrower, entered into a shareholders’
loan agreement on 27 July 2018 (the “First Loan Agreement”) for a
loan to Smart Ascent amounting to HK$30 million in total (the “First
Loan”), to be contributed as to 51% i.e. HK$15.3 million by Innovative
Pharm Group and as to 49% i.e. HK$14.7 million by the Group. The
First Loan is unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per annum and has a
repayment term fixed at 60 months after each drawdown of the First
Loan. In August 2019 and September 2018, Smart Ascent had drawn
down in aggregate of HK$20 million and HK$10 million respectively,
that the First Loan of HK$30 million had been fully drawn down, and
accordingly, the Group and Innovative Pharm Group had made
contribution in the aggregate sum of HK$14.7 million and HK$15.3
million respectively to Smart Ascent.

Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited #5EZE£i=RAGR QT

e I E X0 )

ERRABRER

REER ERFAEREBIDARE SLE
B EA AR -

R—EBRERR 2B

AEERBELEERAR(EE] ERHE
MERREREERE])40%BE - 4
KSECEIREERBBETPT ZHEEAR
(TETTHZMBEDZEREE  EF P RO
RERS=ER(ZEM]) - EDERK
R -ERELEZVBERR AEECDHEHR
MEERENBXBERAR(BEMNEE])
(BBEESNNREZBRR) BTWHIE EFR
ORBRERBREZERBRL  UAEEZXE
an A DD HE R TS

BREEEERORBESEEZEEZLEES
EHEKEHEME EMEH(ERENB
AABABEMELZER ) RARABEB
BESBZ2ENBRARERERT) R
ELEEAEZRA)R-_ZE—NFELA -+
tHI YR EERBE((EBEXRRB
&) 0 M AR 48 %8 /530,000,000 T 2
ER((BEER]) AEMBEEEEIREH
51% 7 I8 (B115,300,0007%8 7T) & H 74 & B 12
£ 49% 7 18 (BN14,700,0008 ) - B £ E X
BEER - FHEE5% KBRS RIRRE
SEEREOBERRNEZE - R=ZF—NLFN
AERZZTE—NFNLA EEDHRRA X
20,000,000 7t % 10,000,000/ 7t * HE &
530,000,000 L BB SR - At - A&
B % SE B8 B AR B 2 A FE M E A o B IR
FRIE A& $£14,700,0007% 7T K 15,300,000 JT °



REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Interest in an Associate (Continued)

To enhance the financial resources of Smart Ascent Group and
facilitate the progress of the clinical trial and further development of
the Product, the Company and Innovative Pharm through their
respective wholly-owned subsidiaries, as lenders and Smart Ascent
as borrower, entered into the second shareholders’ loan agreement (the
“Second Loan Agreement”) on 8 March 2022 for a loan to Smart
Ascent amounting to HK$12 million in total (the “Second Loan”), to
be contributed as to 49% i.e. HK$5.88 million by the Group and as to
51% i.e. HK$6.12 milion by Innovative Pharm Group. Details
regarding the Second Loan Agreement are disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 8 March 2022,

The Second Loan is unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per annum
and has a repayment term fixed at 60 months after each drawdown
of the Second Loan. On 15 June 2022, Smart Ascent made a
drawdown to the Second Loan amounting to HK$5 million, and the
Group and Innovative Pharm Group had made their respective
contributions amounting to HK$2.45 million and HK$2.55 million to
Smart Ascent.

As stated in the 2021 Annual Report, the COVID-19 pandemic since
early 2020 had disrupted the normal operations of participating
hospitals for the clinical trial of the Product, that the clinical trial in the
process of selection and enrolment of patients was temporarily
suspended pending improvement in the pandemic situation, for the
safety of patients and clinical researchers. As the pandemic situation
in China had gradually improved, during the third quarter of 2020, the
enrolment of patients had commenced, and though the pandemic
situation in China was largely under control, the preventive and
control measures associated with the prolonged pandemic situation
have been continuously implemented causing certain delay in patient
selection and enrolment, and the timeline for commercialisation of the
Product by Smart Ascent Group was expected to be in around mid of
2023.
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REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Interest in an Associate (Continued)

During the year, the sporadic outbreaks of COVID-19 variant in China,
and particularly the emergence of the highly transmissible Omicron
variant in early 2022, have driven the nation to vigilantly stick to its
toughest COVID-19 measures, and recently caused regional and
citywide lockdowns in many parts of China, those have restricted
patient flows and impacted on clinical research activities. As such, the
patient selection and enrolment process experienced certain delay,
and is still ongoing. Subject to the pandemic situation in China, the
timeline for commercialisation of the Product has been reassessed by
Smart Ascent Group and is currently expected to be in around mid of
2024.

During the year, the loss of Smart Ascent Group was about HK$13.2
million (2021: HK$10.1 million), for which the Group’s share of loss
amounted to about HK$3.7 million (2021: HK$2.9 million),
representing an increase of about HK$0.8 million. Such increase
mainly related to increase in research and development expenses for
the Product.

In light of the accelerating aging population and increasing life
expectancy, and the development of chronic diseases such as
diabetes in China, market demand for quality diabetes drugs is
expected to be enormous. The Product featured with oral
administration of insulin is expected to provide an effective treatment
and better quality of life for the constantly growing diabetic population
in China that there will be enormous market potential for the Product.

In making the assessment as to the recoverability of the In-process
R&D and the fair value of the interest in the associate, the Group has
engaged an independent qualified valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited
(“Valuer”) in conducting a valuation. The asset-based valuation
approach has been consistently adopted in the valuation and the
recoverable amount of the In-process R&D was determined based on
fair value calculation using cash flow projections, which the estimated
cash inflows derived from budgeted sales and gross margin were
based on the expectation for the market development, and which
included the regulatory approvals from the relevant government
bodies and launching of the Product in around mid of 2024. The
recoverable amount of the interest in the associate was determined
based on share of the estimated fair value of the In-process R&D after
taking into account the lack of control discount.

Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited #5EZE£ERAGR QT

Rk &REEE @

R—EBERT 2ESE @
REER FERSEERTETER

5 ET
O OEIEEREIBRESNFERSEEER
K 527 Omicron\A —ZE = —F 95  12fF
ilﬂwjltl;%éz_a“iﬁm%ﬁmﬁa%am

BHRAPHS AL REMEERETE
H O MEBREEEHREEARTRE R
LEKRARED Eit  BMBELRBEESEHRE
ERHHIRE TIEE - EASEETR A
EEREENTEZERE RIAORFRERK -
BRIEHMA-ZT-_NFEHRANE HEHET
FEZIE M E ©

REENR - # £ & B #EI8 49 513,200,000
Bt (—Z = — 4% :10,100,0008 JT) * & &
ANEE D5 E 1B 493,700,000/8 T (ZF = —
£F : 2,900,00078 7T) + A8 & K 3 A0 49800,000
VS TT o % IE IR £ B B A% EE n RO BT 3R R B E
RS2 AR -

RAEPEBEAONRERLERTEHS DT
E AERERRESEMROERE  BEED
BRREGNMERE KB - EORES
ZFENZERES L AT T EIERARE
RRBEERBEEIABEUAEFNETE
E RZEMERBEBERAMIZEN -

BET A ETHR 2 R I E 5 58 R R B
“”TZ% S ATE AEEZRETHE

VEERBEMZESHBEIBERAQ A
U%@%Dﬁﬁﬁﬁoﬁﬁﬁ%@%—ﬁﬁ
REEEMMGEE METHZHEA
WeEeEhERESRERANREATFE
SFHEET EARBEBEHEREREMNX
SFEZEFABREERANEREMBEE 2
B RHEBERZ-ZZE-_NFFRHEIRE
BEEBRFEERMMERELZER - R
RENRlsEEHNAKE B IIBEEN
ETPR2MENGGTATFELLT RERE
HlHEZITRIEETE °



REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Interest in an Associate (Continued)

The expected future economic benefits attributable to the In-process
R&D was assumed to cover a 10-year period from the
commercialisation of the Product. The calculation used in the cash
flow projections with certain key parameters are as below:

Discount rate (post-tax) BEIE R (B 18)
Growth rate #5 &
Gross profit ratio EF=

In conducting the impairment assessment, the directors of the
Company, having considered the prevailing market conditions,
reasonableness of assumptions used for the cash flow projections
and the valuation as prepared by the Valuer indicating its fair value in
excess of the carrying amount, do not identify any indication on the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate as at 31 March 2022
that may need to be impaired. Accordingly, no impairment is
considered necessary as at 31 March 2022.

The Group will continue to closely coordinate with Innovative Pharm
in monitoring the progress of the oral insulin project with a view to
facilitating successful launching of the Product to the market. In
addition, the Group will continue to perform impairment assessment
on the carrying amount of the interest in the associate in accordance
with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets”
where necessary.

Other income and gains and losses, net

Other income and gains and losses, net were in total a gain of about
HK$162.1 million (2021: loss of HK$94.7 million), which increased by
about HK$256.8 million. The increase was mainly the result of (i) an
increase in a gain of a non-cash item by about HK$273.3 million
arising from fair value change of the Group’s investments in
convertible bonds, (i) increase in provision for impairment loss on
amount due from and loan to an associate of about HK$5.9 million
and HK$2.3 million, (i) decrease in reversal of impairment provisions
for trade and other receivables of about HK$2.5 million and HK$1.1
million, (iv) decrease in imputed interest income from an associate of
about HK$3.6 million, (v) decrease in bank interest income of about
HK$0.5 million, (vi) decrease in subsidies from governments of about
HK$0.8 million, and (vi)) increase in rental income of about HK$0.2
million.

~

O

S,

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEN WK D (&)

i KR & ELE m)

R—EBERT 2ESE @

ETPRZMBEREADRREEN R IR
REZEMAMCERETFHE - AR
AERSRERAZETHRZ2EHUNT

27.3%
2%
64.19%

EETRET MR KEEE MmN - 55
SmERBATERRENEEE XA ERD
ETZHERPEATEBHERE ' &
AR ESTERRETANPRETNEZLAQ
AIZERR _TE_—_F=ZA=+—HZE
AMENRAELRE WRAEAR-ZZT ==
FZA=+—BEHEELHRE-

AEEREERERBEZREWHE &R
ARBRERBEREZERBL  UEEZE
m TN HE TG o b SN AR ER B ERAE
BERBEEBEEREICHEERE]
S BE S N E 2 a2 R E A TR ERT
filr o

Htt AR s K EEFR

HEMBRARKZREBEFBEESTHSLE K
%= #9162,100,0008 L (Z T = —F : F#E
94,700,000/ Jt )+ 3 0 %256,800,000 %
JC o Z BT E B R ()AE B AR E S
"EZAFTEEHEEZIFRESEE W
0 %9 273,300,000,% 7T + (i) & U — F BS: =
ARERBERERT MHBEQARNRERE
8 8 8 12 1N #95,900,0007 7T & 2,300,000 5%
TC -~ (i) B 2 R H th & UK BR SRR B 5 1 O
=] & 4> #92,500,0007% st & 1,100,0005% T
(V2R B — B & A a8 2 E & F B AR
> 493,600,000 7t ¢ (v) IR 17 F| B W AR
#7500,0007% 7T + (vi) BUT %8 B R 4> #7800,000
W TT - K (vi) FH & WA 38 0 49200,0007% T °

Annual Report 2022 Z—ZT = —FF R

15



%

16

& &

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
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BEEN WK D (&)

REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased to about HK$26.3 million
(2021: HK$29.5 million), representing a decrease of about HK$3.3
million or 11.0%. Such decrease was mainly due to (i) a reduction in
the research and development expenses by about HK$2.6 million
when compared to the costs incurred last year to enhance the quality
and efficacy of the Group’s self-manufactured products, and (i) a
decrease in marketing expenses of about HK$0.6 million as a result
of relevant budget control.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses were at about HK$24.2 million (2021:
HK$23.9 million), representing an increase of about HK$0.3 million or
1.3%, which was primarily due to the decrease in foreign exchange
gain. Although the administrative expenses tend to remain stable,
management will continue vigilantly managing the existing cost level
and identifying areas for improving operating efficiency and further
reduction of overhead costs.

OUTLOOK

The prospects of global recovery remain highly uncertain amid the
resurgence of COVID-19 new variants and the disruptions caused by
the war in Ukraine. Despite these uncertainties dampening China’s
economic outlook for 2022, China’s economy has demonstrated its
growth momentum facilitated by its dual-circulation economic
strategy, and its economic fundamentals remain strong in the long
term. It is anticipated that the Chinese government will continue to
stepping up efforts to drive the transformation of the pharmaceutical
industry in accordance with the Fourteenth Five-Year Plan (2021-2025)
and Healthy China 2030 Plan. Heading into the second year of the
Fourteenth Five-Year Plan, nine Chinese official departments;
including, inter alias, the National Development and Reform
Commission, National Medical Products Administration, the National
Health Commission, and the National Healthcare Security
Administration, jointly issued the “Fourteenth Five-Year Plan for the
Development of the Pharmaceutical Industry”, which specifically sets
out the goals for the development of China’s pharmaceutical industry
in the next five years, highlighting the innovation-led transformation
and upgrade of the industry chain. Further, China released a guideline
on accelerating the building of a unified domestic market that is
efficient, rules-based and open and encourages fair competition,
which is expected to deepen market-oriented reforms and accelerate
industrial transformation.
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OUTLOOK (Continued)

Against this backdrop, the Group believes that China’s
pharmaceutical industry will be facing significant changes as it
continues to undergo structural transformation. The continued
deepening healthcare reform policies including, inter alias, the
normalisation and expanded scope of centralised drug procurement,
adjustments of national reimbursement drug list, and dual-channel
drug reimbursement policy to include both the hospital channel and
designated direct-to-patient pharmacy channel for certain negotiated
drugs, will continue to reshape the landscape of the industry and
intensify market competition. These have brought new challenges and
opportunities to pharmaceutical enterprises.

In light of the rapidly changing market environment, the Group will
continue to maintain its resilience and agility in responding to the
shifts in market dynamics, and will remain focusing on the growth of
its manufacturing segment by leveraging its production capacity,
established distribution networks and quality products, and will strive
for improving operational efficiency to drive long-term growth.

Despite challenging operating conditions in the year ahead, the Group
believes that it is positioned on the right track for sustainable
development, given the sound financial position of the Group and
management’s commitments to striving for business growth, such
that the Group is optimistic about its future prospects.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

It is the Group’s strategy to manage its financial resources
conservatively by maintaining a healthy level of cash flows to meet all
its financial commitments when they fall due. The Group generally
finances its operations with internally generated cash flow and
banking facilities.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had total cash and bank balances
(including pledged bank deposits) of about HK$133.6 million (2021:
HK$148.4 million), representing a decrease by about HK$14.8 million
or 10.0%. Such decrease in cash and bank balances was primarily
due to cash used in the Group’s operating activities and deposits
paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

Accruals and Other Payables

Accruals and other payables increased by about HK$2.4 million to
HK$31.3 million as of 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$28.9 million). Such
increase was mainly due to increase in payables for operating
expenses.

The Group did not have bank borrowings during the year but had
banking facilities on trade finance, which were supported by the
pledge of the Group’s fixed deposits of about HK$21.7 million (2021:
HK$21.7 million) and corporate guarantees from the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company. In general, there is no significant
seasonality fluctuation on trade finance requirement of the Group.

The Group’s total borrowing over total assets ratio as at 31 March
2022 was 0.065 (2021: 0.063), calculated based on the Group’s total
assets of about HK$1,317.1 million (2021: HK$1,164.2 million) and
total debts of about HK$85.3 milion (2021: HK$73.9 million),
comprising convertible bonds of about HK$83.1 milion (2021:
HK$70.0 million) and lease liabilities of about HK$2.2 million (2021:
HK$3.9 million).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars
and Renminbi. The Group manages the foreign currency exposure by
closely monitoring the foreign currency movements and may
purchase foreign currencies at spot rate, when and where appropriate
for meeting its payment obligation. No hedge on foreign currencies
was made during the year but the Group will use financial instruments
for hedging purpose when considered appropriate.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and investment in financial instruments during the year
ended 31 March 2022.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Change in Fair Value of Investments in Convertible
Bonds

As disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company held financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$634.9 milion as at 31 March 2022 (2021:
approximately HK$466.3 million), which related to the convertible
bonds issued by Innovative Pharm. The fair value of the Company’s
investments in the convertible bonds issued by Innovative Pharm
represented 48.2% of the Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2022
(2021: 40.1%).

Innovative Pharm is an investment holding company the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 399), and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the trading of beauty products
and equipment, and research, development and commercialisation of
the oral insulin product.

Employment and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 168 employees (2021: 171).
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) for the year ended 31
March 2022 amounted to approximately HK$22.4 milion (2021:
approximately HK$20.8 million). The increase was mainly due to
increased expenses of wages and salaries of the manufacturing
segment and no further social security contribution relief granted by
the Chinese government, which outweighed the cost reduction in
other operations.

The Group remunerates its employees based on industry practices.
Its staff benefits, welfare and statutory contributions, if any, are made
in accordance with prevailing labour laws of its operating entities.

On 24 August 2012, shareholders of the Company had approved the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “Scheme”), which became
effective on 29 August 2012 after obtaining approval from the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Employment and Remuneration Policy (Continued)

The Scheme will enable the Group to reward the employees, the
directors and other selected participants for their contribution to the
Group and will also assist the Group in its recruitment and retention
of high caliber professionals, executives and employees who are
instrumental to the growth of the Group.

From the effective date of the Scheme to 31 March 2022, no share

options have been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
Scheme.
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DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Dr. Xie Yi Ph.D. (aged 59)

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Dr. Xie Yi is a professor of School of Life Sciences in Fudan University
and is one of the founders of United Gene group of companies in the
PRC. Being a scientist with significant breakthroughs in human
genome research, Dr. Xie is responsible for research and
development and management of United Gene group and is the vice
chairman and chief executive officer of United Gene Holdings Limited
in the PRC.

Dr. Xie is currently the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company responsible for the strategic planning and development and
the overall management of the Group. He is also a director and
chairman of Changchun Extrawell Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a 73%
owned subsidiary of the Company established in the PRC, and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng Yong (aged 59)

Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Cheng Yong is a practicing pharmacist in the PRC. Mr. Cheng
obtained his Master of Pharmacology from Second Military Medical
University in the PRC. He has been engaged in pharmacology and
research study for over ten years and has extensive experience in the
aspects of research and drug development. Since 2001, he has been
working in the capacity of director and general manager for various
companies owned by Dr. Xie Yi and Dr. Mao Yumin, former chairman
and executive director of the Company. Mr. Cheng is currently a
director of a PRC subsidiary of Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech
Limited (formerly known as United Gene High-Tech Group Limited), a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

Since 1 July 2019, Mr. Cheng has been appointed as the deputy
chief executive officer of the Company to provide support in the
execution of the Company’s plans and strategies.
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DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE (CONTINUED)
EEREEEEAEHN &)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. Lou Yi Ph.D. (aged 64)

Executive Director

Dr. Lou Yi obtained a doctoral degree in medicine and conducted his
postdoctoral research in clinical study at Shanghai Second Medical
University (now renamed as School of Medicine, Shanghai Jiaotong
University) and industrial economy at Fudan University. Dr. Lou had
been a director and general manager of Shanghai Biochip Co. Ltd.
and as a director and deputy general manager of General Technology
Group Pharmaceutical Holdings, Ltd. in the PRC. Dr. Lou was also a
non-executive director of Shanghai Fudan-Zhangjiang Bio-
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, from June 2004 to June 2006. Dr. Lou is currently a
director and general manager of various companies owned by Dr. Xie
Yi and Dr. Mao Yumin, former chairman and executive director of the
Company.

Ms. Wong Sau Kuen (aged 59)

Executive Director

Ms. Wong Sau Kuen joined the Group in May 2008 as assistant to
the Board and was appointed as executive director in October 2008.
Ms. Wong has more than 20 years of experience in both the
commercial and industrial sectors including the PRC pharmaceutical
market. Ms. Wong has extensive experience in areas of business
administration and internal control. She is currently the Authorised
Representative of the Company.

Ms. Wong has been appointed as the joint company secretary of the
Company with effect from 8 January 2014.

Mr. Liu Kwok Wah (aged 60)

Executive Director

Mr. Liu Kwok Wah joined the Company in November 2008 as the
company secretary and financial controller and was appointed as
executive director in December 2013. Mr. Liu has become the joint
company secretary with effect from 8 January 2014. Mr. Liu is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Liu holds a Master's degree in Business
Administration from Hong Kong Metropolitan University (formerly The
Open University of Hong Kong) and has more than 20 years of
experience in accounting and financial management. Prior to joining
the Company, he had worked for international accounting firms and
several listed companies in Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE (CONTINUED)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Lin Hu (aged 84)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Fang Lin Hu was a professor in Fudan University, ex-vice
chancellor of the Fudan University (overseeing technology
industrialisation and utilisation matters), a member of National
Information Technology Education and Electronic Education Advisory
Committee and vice faculty head of the Physics Faculty of Fudan
University, dean of the Electronic Engineering Faculty, and the director
of Micro-electronic Research Institute. Mr. Fang retired in 2000.
Currently, he is the chairman of Fudan University Senior Professor
Association, the president of Fudan University Retired Education
Workers Association, and an honorary chairman of Fudan University
Shanghai Alumni Association. Mr. Fang has performed research in
the area of microwave theory and technology. He is a well-recognised
scientist who has extensive experience in scientific research and
management. Mr. Fang was appointed as an independent non-
executive director in 2001.

Mr. Xue Jing Lun (aged 88)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Xue Jing Lun was the chief professor of Fudan University, a guest
professor of the Second Military Medical University of China, Tongji
Medical University and Shantou University, chairman of Chinese
Environmental Mutagen Association, a director of International
Environmental Mutagen Association, and a committee member of the
China Genetic Engineering Society. Mr. Xue retired in April 2007. The
research team led by Mr. Xue gained international recognition in the
area of gene therapy and transgenic animal research. Mr. Xue has
been granted a number of national awards for merits in scientific
research and is an internationally recognised genetic scientist. Mr.
Xue was appointed as an independent non-executive director in
2001.

Ms. Jin Song (aged 51)

Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Jin Song holds a diploma in engineering from Broadcasting
University in Shandong Province and a diploma in business from
Fudan University. She is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“CICPA”) and passed all the professional
examinations held by CICPA in 2001. Ms. Jin has over 20 years’
experience in accounting in different industries. Ms. Jin was
appointed as an independent non-executive director in 2004.
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DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE (CONTINUED)
EEREEEEAEHN &)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. Gong Youlu (aged 53)

General Manager of Changchun Extrawell Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“CEP”) and Jilin Extrawell Changbaishan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“JECP?)

Mr. Gong Youlu joined the Group in 2011. Mr. Gong is responsible for
the overall management and operations of CEP and JECP. He has
over 20 years’ experience in the pharmaceutical manufacturing
sector. Mr. Gong holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree from
Taiyuan Mechanical College (now known as North University of China)
and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from Jilin University,
China. Prior to joining the Group, he had held the position of general
manager for pharmaceutical manufacturing enterprises in the PRC for
over 10 years.

Ms. Wu Hong (aged 50)

Group Senior Finance Manager

Ms. Wu Hong, a qualified accountant in the PRC, joined the Group in
1995 and is responsible for the Group’s financial matters in the PRC.
She graduated from Jiangsu Television Broadcast University, majoring
in Foreign Trading Accounting. Before joining the Group, she worked
with a joint venture company in the PRC.

Mr. Huang Wenda (aged 45)

Financial Controller of CEP and JECP

Mr. Huang Wenda joined the Group in 2004. Mr. Huang is responsible
for financial control and financial management of the operations of
CEP and JECP and currently also serves as secretary to the board
handling corporate secretarial matters of CEP and JECP. He has
accumulated experience of over 10 years in financial management of
pharmaceutical manufacturing enterprises. Prior to joining the Group,
he worked with manufacturing enterprises in the PRC.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Corporate Governance

The Group recognises the importance of achieving and
monitoring the high standard of corporate governance
consistent with the need and requirements of its business and
the best interest of all of its shareholders. The Group is fully
committed to doing so.

The Company had adopted and complied with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“Code
Provisions”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
applicable to the Group’s financial year ended 31 March 2022,
except for certain deviations as set out below. From 1 April
2022 onwards, the corporate governance principles and code
provisions set out in the amended Corporate Governance Code
which took effect from 1 January 2022, shall be applied and
adopted by the Company.

Code Provisions A.1.3 and A.7.1 stipulate that 14-day notice
should be given for each regular board meeting and that in
respect of regular meetings, and as far as practicable in all
other cases, an agenda and accompanying board papers
should be sent in full to all directors in a timely manner and at
least 3 days before the intended date of a board or board
committee meeting (or other agreed period). The Company
agrees that sufficient time should be given to the directors in
order to make a proper decision. In these respects, the
Company adopts a more flexible approach (and yet sufficient
time has been given) in convening board meetings to ensure
efficient and prompt management decisions could be made.
During the second half of the financial year, the deviations were
properly dealt with by streamlining internal procedures and the
Company expects to comply with these Code Provisions in the
next financial year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT (CONTINUED)
TREB®RS (B)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

Corporate Governance (Continued)

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same person. Dr. Xie Yi has served as the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
However, the Company believes that there is adequate balance
of power and authority in place though vesting the roles of both
chairman and chief executive officer in the same person as all
major decisions of the Company are made in consultation with
members of the Board.

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
The Company deviates from this Code Provision as the
independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) are not
appointed for specific terms. According to the bye-laws of the
Company, however, the INEDs are subject to retirement and re-
election. The reason for the deviation is that the Company
believes that the directors ought to be committed to
representing the long-term interest of the Company’s
shareholders.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that every director should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
According to the bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the
directors shall retire from office by rotation and the Chairman,
Deputy Chairman or Managing Director shall not be subject to
retirement by rotation. The Company’s bye-laws deviate from
the Code Provision. The Company considers that the continuity
of the Chairman/Deputy Chairman/Managing Director and their
leadership are essential for the stability of the business and key
management. The rotation methodology ensures a reasonable
continuity of directorship which is to the best interest of the
Company’s shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

Corporate Governance (Continued)

Code Provision A.4.2 also stipulates that all directors appointed
to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.
According to the bye-laws of the Company, any director so
appointed shall hold office only until the next annual general
meeting. The Company’s bye-laws deviate from the Code
Provision. However, the Company believes that it is in the best
interest of the Company’s shareholders to transact this ordinary
course of business in the annual general meeting.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.
Due to other important engagement, Dr. Xie Yi was unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27
August 2021 due to two-way quarantine free travel corridors
not available under the relevant border crossing travel
restrictions. Ms. Wong Sau Kuen, an executive director of the
Company, was appointed to chair the annual general meeting
in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws
and answered questions from shareholders of the Company.

Code provision E.1.5 stipulates that the Company should have
a policy on payment of dividends. The Company has not
established a dividend policy as the Company considers it more
appropriate to determine a dividend payment after taking into
account those factors including the Company’s then financial
performance, operating and capital requirements and market
conditions, to enable the Company be in a better position to
cope with its future development, which is to the best interest
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The Company will continue to review and monitor the situation
as stated above, and to improve the practices as and when the
circumstances demand.
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@ CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT (CONTINUED)
TREB®RS (B)

B. DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by
the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the directors, the
directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.

C. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the board of directors (the
“Board”) comprises five executive directors and three INEDs as
follows:

Executive Directors

Dr. Xie Yi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheng Yong (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. Lou Vi

Ms. Wong Sau Kuen

Mr. Liu Kwok Wah

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Lin Hu
Mr. Xue Jing Lun
Ms. Jin Song

Save as disclosed, there is no other relationship (including

financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship)
among the members of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performances. The management is delegated
with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-
day management of the Group. Major corporate matters that
are specifically delegated by the Board to the management
include the preparation of interim and annual reports and
announcements for the Board’s approval before publishing,
execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the
Board, implementation of adequate internal control systems
and risk management procedures, and compliance with
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and rules and
regulations.

Each of the INEDs has provided to the Company an annual
confirmation in writing of his/her independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all INEDs meet the independence guidelines including
those set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that they are independent under the Listing Rules. Of the three
INEDs, Ms. Jin Song has appropriate accounting or related
financial management experience as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, five Board meetings and
two general meetings (including the annual general meeting) of
the Company were held, and the attendance records of each
director at the respective meetings are set out in the table
below:
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Number of attendance

R &

Board General

Meeting Meeting

Name of Director EERR EEge=E BRAE
Dr. Xie VYi HERE+ 5/5 0/2
Mr. Cheng Yong BELE 5/5 0/2
Dr. Lou Yi A 5/5 0/2
Ms. Wong Sau Kuen FHIELZ L 5/5 2/2
Mr. Liu Kwok Wah BRE LA 5/5 2/2
Mr. Fang Lin Hu R S 5/5 0/2
Mr. Xue Jing Lun BERfmEE 5/5 0/2
Ms. Jin Song CA /NG 5/5 0/2
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C. BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

In addition, a meeting was held between the Chairman and all
INEDs without the presence of executive directors during the
year.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance for members of the Board and officers in order
to protect legal claims against their lawful discharge of duties in
relation to the Group’s business.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Dr. Xie Yi serves as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. This is a deviation from Code Provision A.2.1,
which requires that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same person. As all major decisions of the Company are made
in consultation with members of the Board, the Company
believes that there is adequate balance of power and authority
in place though vesting the roles of both chairman and chief
executive officer in the same person.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election
and, pursuant to Code Provision A.4.2, every director shall retire
by rotation at least once every three years. None of the INEDs
of the Company is appointed for a specific term and according
to the bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the directors (except
for the Chairman) shall retire from office by rotation and become
eligible for re-election. The reason for the deviation is that the
Company believes that the directors ought to be committed to
representing the long-term interest of the Company’s
shareholders and the rotation methodology ensures a
reasonable proportion of directors in continuity which is to the
best interest of the Company’s shareholders.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

The function of the INEDs includes but not limited to
participating in meetings of the Board and of committees to
bring an independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conduct.

The Board has established three committees; namely
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee. Each committee comprising of all INEDs is
responsible for, inter alia, the review and oversight of the
activities within its defined terms of reference. The written
terms of reference for the respective committees are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of four members including,
Dr. Xie Yi (Chairman), Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
the Board, and all INEDs, namely Mr. Fang Lin Hu, Mr. Xue Jing
Lun and Ms. Jin Song.

The major role and function of the Nomination Committee are to
formulate and implement the policy for nominating candidates
for consideration by the Board and election by shareholders,
review the structure, size and composition of the Board with
due regard to Board diversity, and to assess the independence
of non-executive directors having regard to the criteria under
the Listing Rules.

E.
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F. NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued) F. BREZEEwW

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy and the
Nomination Committee will help implement and monitor the
policy. To enhance the effectiveness of the Board, selection of
candidates is based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and =
length of service. The Nomination Committee will review and
discuss, on an annual basis, Board diversity with regard to the
building and maintaining of the Board with a diversity of
directors, without focusing on a single diversity aspect, and will
make recommendation to the Board for its consideration and
approval. The Board currently comprises five executive directors
and three INEDs, who have possessed professional
qualifications or relevant experience in various aspects;
including accounting and financial management, corporate

EEERESRILEE

i =2

B -
S -

EZeCRMEEFEXKEZ L
REZBEHHBPERLEE
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compliance, business management, scientific research, and
China pharmaceutical industry. The directors’ biographical
details including their roles and functions, academic background
and experience are disclosed in “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” on pages 21 to 24 of this annual report,
and the Board profile in gender, age and length of service is
summarised as below:

Board profile Number of directors (%)

Exadn EEAE (%)

Capacity Executive directors: 5 (62.5%) INEDs: 3 (37.5%)

5% HITESE : 5(62.5%) B IEHE ¢ 3(37.5%)
Gender Male: 6 (75%) Female: 2 (25%)

el S 6(75%) Z 1% 2 (25%)

Age Group Age 40-60: 5 (62.5%) Age above 60: 3 (37.5%)
FHE 4 Bl 40 2605 * 5(62.5%) 605% A £ ¢ 3(37.5%)

Length of services

AR 75 & 84

Below 10 years: 2 (25%)
10F AR - 2(25%)

Above 10 years: 6 (75%)
10 LA £ : 6(75%)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

Having reviewed the structure and composition of the Board
and taken into account the diversity perspectives, the
Nomination Committee considered that the current Board has
appropriate mix of skills, experience and a sufficient level of
diversity that are relevant to the business nature and
requirements of the Group, and concluded that the Board
Diversity Policy has been effectively implemented.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee has adopted a nomination policy
guiding the nomination criteria and procedures to identify, select
and recommend candidates for directorship.

The Nomination Committee shall consider a number of
nomination criteria in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate for directorship or proposed re-appointment of a
retiring director, including but not limited to: the skKills,
knowledge and experience possessed by the candidate or
retiring director which are relevant to the Company’s business,
corporate development and strategy; the diversity perspectives
set out in the Board Diversity Policy and the balance of skills
and experience in board composition; the level of independence
from the Company and compliance of the relevant requirements
under the Listing Rules; and such other factors the Nomination
Committee may consider relevant to enhancement of the
effectiveness of the Board.

Subject to the provisions in the Company’s bye-laws, where the
Nomination Committee determines that an additional director or
a replacement director is required, it may take appropriate
steps in connection with the identification and evaluation of a
suitable candidate for directorship. The Nomination Committee
may deploy channels including referral from directors, advisers
of the Company and external executive search firms in the
identification process, evaluate a candidate based on the
nomination criteria stated above, and make recommmendation
for the Board’s consideration and approval.
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F. NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)

For re-appointment of a retiring director, the Nomination
Committee reviews his/her service to the Company, the level of
participation on the Board during his/her term, and after taking
into account the nomination criteria, recommends to the Board
for proposed re-appointment of the retiring director who wishes

to stand for re-election at the Company’s general meeting.

The Nomination Committee may also propose to the Board a
candidate recommended or offered for nomination by a
shareholder of the Company as a nominee for election to the
Board, if it evaluates that the candidate meets the nomination
criteria. The procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a director are published in the Company’s

website.

The Board has the ultimate responsibility for selection and
appointment of directors. On accepting the recommendation
made by the Nomination Committee, the Board may (as the
case may be) appoint the candidate as director to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board and recommend the
candidate to shareholders for election or re-election (for a

retiring director) at the general meeting.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2022, and all members had attended the
meeting to review the structure, size and composition including
Board diversity, of the Board; consider and make
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of

retiring directors; and assess the independence of INEDs.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
specific terms of reference, which state clearly its authority and
duties, among others, it makes recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for all directors and
senior management remuneration, and review and approve
remuneration proposals with reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

In line with good and fair practice, members of the
Remuneration Committee consist of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Fang Lin Hu (Chairman), Mr. Xue Jing Lun and Ms. Jin Song,
and Dr. Xie Yi.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, two meetings were held
and attendance of each director is set out as follows:
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Number of attendance

Name of Director BEEHR IR E
Mr. Fang Lin Hu TR ER SE A 2/2
Mr. Xue Jing Lun B fm ot 2/2
Ms. Jin Song ML 2/2
Dr. Xie Yi FEEL 2/2

The emoluments of the directors are reviewed and recommended
by the Remuneration Committee with regard to the directors’
respective responsibilities, individual performance, and/or
decided by the Board as authorised by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting. The Company has also adopted a share
option scheme as an incentive to the directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee conducts regular
review of the Company’s remuneration policy and structure of
the directors and senior management which takes into account
the prevailing market conditions and the role and responsibility of
individual members, for making recommendation to the Board.
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the Company’s remuneration policy and
structure for the directors and senior management and the
remuneration packages (including directors’ fees) of the directors,
and made recommendation to the Board for consideration and
approval.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid individuals for
the year ended 31 March 2022 are disclosed in notes 11 and
12 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.
Emoluments of senior management whose profiles are
disclosed in the section “Directors and Senior Management
Profile” but not included in the note as the five highest paid
individuals, fell within the following band:

G.

FHNEE S @

BHE_ T _—_F=A=+—HILFE
Z2EEMe R ANTSHEMA LD R
RERE IS HRERM 11 K12 E -
SEEEABEHBEEBEERIEZR
SEEEABMN] & BRFIR
MEREARN RS FHMA L) Z B
CBR T EE :

Number of individuals

AE
2022 2021
—_=E_= —_F=—
Emolument band B & &5
HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 7% 70 £ 1,000,0007% 7T 3 3
AUDIT COMMITTEE H ZFRZE®

The Company has established an Audit Committee with specific
terms of reference that have included the duties set out in Code
Provision C.3.3 with appropriate modification when necessary.

The major role and function of the Audit Committee are to
ensure the maintenance of proper relationship with the
Company’s auditor, the establishment of proper review and
control arrangements relating to risk management and internal
control systems, financial reporting and the compliance to
applicable reporting requirements.

The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Fang Lin Hu
(Chairman), Mr. Xue Jing Lun and Ms. Jin Song. During the year
ended 31 March 2022, three meetings were held and

AABEKIEZZES XIIHE
HEBESRE FHRBEXBECER
STRMENECIIEMEZBE (R
REELBEEEBR) -

BERZEQ 2T ERE RINEEER
BEARRA ZAZ BN R RFRE B
RREENABEENE HBHRSE
REBTEHRBEREFELEEENR
EE e

BZZEG KB BAMRELE(E
B) BERfmrtEResRhL Lt -HEZ
T __F=ZA=Z=+—BHLFE  XQ

attendance of each director is set out as follows: BYRGTEREen EES2LHER
HIMT :
Number of attendance
Name of Director EEnE X E
Mr. Fang Lin Hu ik 3/3
Mr. Xue Jing Lun B Rt A 3/3
Ms. Jin Song MLt 3/3
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee reviewed the half yearly and full year
consolidated financial statements, including the Group’s
adopted accounting principles and practices, risk management
and internal control systems with internal audit function and
financial reporting matters (in conjunction with the external
auditor for the annual results). The Audit Committee endorsed
the accounting treatments adopted by the Company and, to
the best of its ability assured itself that the disclosures of the
financial information in this annual report comply with the
applicable accounting standards and Appendix 16 of the Listing
Rules.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditor, Elite
Partners CPA Limited in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 31 March 2022 amounted to
HK$780,000 and HK$48,000 respectively.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The directors of the Company acknowledged their responsibility
for preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules and
applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.
The Group had adopted the going concern basis in preparing
its financial statements.

A statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 81 to 87 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for overseeing on an ongoing basis
and ensuring that sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems are maintained within the Group in
order to safeguard the Group’s assets and the interests of the
Company’s shareholders. These systems are designed under
the framework of a defined management structure with
specified limits of authority and control responsibilities to
manage rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and help to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee is delegated with authorities to assist the
Board to fulfill its oversight role over the systems by reviewing
and evaluating on a regular basis the effectiveness and
adequacy of the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems (the “Systems”). During the year
ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee, after taking into
consideration the size of the Group’s activities and operations,
had adopted a risk-based approach in identifying the scope of
review for its business units. The review was conducted by the
Group’s risk management and internal audit function
independent of the business unit, which covered appraisal of
the Systems by conducting tests on operating procedures.
Audit findings and recommendations were reported to the Audit
Committee and the senior management. The Audit Committee
and the Board satisfied the result of the review and concluded
that the key areas of the Systems are reasonably and
adequately implemented to their satisfaction.

With respect to handling and dissemination of inside information
(the “Information”), the Group is aware of its obligations under
the Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
guiding principle that when the Information comes to the
Group’s attention it should be properly disclosed as soon as
practicable. In this regard, the Group has adopted an inside
information disclosure policy (the “Policy”) since 2013 with the
aim of preventing the disclosure of premature Information and
ensuring shareholders and the public are provided with full,
accurate and timely Information about the activities,
performance and financial condition of the Group. The Policy
covers the procedures as to () maintain the confidentiality of
Information, such as identification of project by using code
name, dissemination on a need-to-know basis and (i) identify,
assess and monitor the dissemination of Information. The Audit
Committee and the Board consider that the procedures are
effective in discharging the Group’s obligations in respect of the
Information.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING
AND DEVELOPMENT

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development in order to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the directors were
briefed and updated with written materials on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
legal and regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. In addition, the Company had organised
an in-house training seminar for the directors, which was
conducted by qualified professional covering update of the
Listing Rules, with training materials provided. Directors are also
encouraged to attend outside seminars and talks organised by
professional bodies to enrich their knowledge in discharging
their duties as a director. All directors have participated in
continuous professional development by attending training
courses and/or referring materials on the topics related to
corporate governance and regulations:

Executive Directors

Dr. Xie Yi Attending in-house training course and
self-study

Mr. Cheng Yong Attending in-house training course and
self-study

Dr. Lou Yi Attending in-house training course and
self-study

Ms. Wong Sau Kuen  Attending in-house training course and
outside seminars/talks conducted by
professional bodies and self-study

Mr. Liu Kwok Wah Attending in-house training course and
outside seminars/talks conducted by

professional bodies and self-study

L.
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REPORT (CONTINUED)
TREB®RS (B)

L. DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING
AND DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Lin Hu Attending in-house training course and
self-study

Mr. Xue Jing Lun Attending in-house training course and
self-study

Ms. Jin Song Attending in-house training course and
self-study

M. JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Liu Kwok Wah and Ms. Wong Sau Kuen are joint company
secretaries of the Company and each has taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended

31 March 2022.

N. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes the value of maintaining open
communication with and providing current and relevant
information to its shareholders, and uses a number of channels

to disseminate information to shareholders through:

(1)  the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk)

(2) the Company’s website (www.extrawell.com.hk)

(8)  corporate information in printed forms such as annual and

interim reports, circulars and explanatory materials

(4)  annual general meeting (and other general meetings)

(6) the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Tricor Tengis Limited in respect of share registration and

related matters
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS N.

(Continued)

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
Board members, in particular, Chairman of the Board as well as
chairmen of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee (or their delegates) will
endeavor to make themselves available at the annual general
meetings to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting

Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda stipulates
that the directors shall, on the requisition of shareholders
holding not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of
the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a special
general meeting of the Company. The requisition must state the
purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the relevant
requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the
Company. If the directors do not within twenty-one days from
the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the said date.

Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings

Section 79 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda stipulates
that the Company shall, on the requisition in writing by either
any number of shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company or not less
than 100 shareholders, (a) give to shareholders entitled to
receive notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at that meeting, and (b) circulate to these shareholders
a written statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.
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O. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings

(Continued)

Section 80 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda stipulates
that the written requisition as signed by the requisitionists must
be deposited at the registered office of the Company with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
giving effect thereto not less than six weeks before the meeting
in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not
less than one week before the meeting in case of any other

requisition.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and suggestions to the
Board by mail to the Company’s principal place of business at
Suites 2206-08, 22/F, Devon House, Taikoo Place, 979 King's

Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.

P. CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the Company’s constitutional

documents during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL

AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

As a member of the global business community, the Group
recognises the importance of sustainable development and has
continuously implemented various measures to improve and
strengthen corporate governance and related policies on
sustainability over the past years. This Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) Report was prepared in accordance
with the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” (the “Guide”) under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules,
which reports the Group’s strategies and practices in relation to
environmental protection, social responsibility and operational
governance. This report has been reviewed and approved by
the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company and should
be read in conjunction with the Group’s Annual Report 2022; in
particular the Corporate Governance Report, to gain a more
understanding of the Group’s ESG performance.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is at the core corporate governance framework and
has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy,
performance and reporting. The established governance
structure comprising the Board and the audit, remuneration and
nomination committees (the “Board Committees”), which has
laid a solid foundation for oversight of the ESG issues, shall
ensure that the Group has corporate governance processes in
place that are effective for overseeing the Group’s management
of significant ESG risks, and that it coordinates the practices
and actions of the Group for sustainable development, through
the management team in the day-to-day implementation of the
ESG strategy and periodic reporting for emerging or continually
evolving ESG issues. The top-down governance structure;
namely the Board, the Board Committees and the management
team at the Group’s business segments, ensures the effective
deployment and implementation of the Group’s ESG risk
management and enables continuing improvement in ESG
performance. Details of governance information for the Board
and the Board Committees are set out on pages 25 to 42, and
the ESG management and controls are detailed in this report.
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AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -#HERER®RE (E)

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE (Continued) 2.

The Board is committed to conducting regular review and
evaluation of the Group’s ESG-related policies and risks so as
to ensure that appropriate and effective ESG risk management
and internal control systems (the “Systems”) are in place and
embedded at the Group’s business segments. As the Group’s
manufacturing plants in Changchun, China (or the “PRC”)
involve production process (the “Manufacturing Activities”),
which will have a material ESG impact, an “Environmental
Protection, Occupational Health and Safety Management
Committee” (the “Management Committee”) has been formed
since 2017 to lead the management of environmental protection
as well as to foster a safe and healthy work environment. The
Management Committee includes staff members who are
professionally qualified with relevant permits recognised by the
Chinese authorities to administrate and monitor the works.
Since the Group’s Hong Kong headquarters, trading and gene
development activities (the “Non-Manufacturing Activities”) are
generally office’s operations and will have a limited ESG impact,
no such committee is established and senior staff members of
various departments are engaged to implement the sustainable
policies and practices adopted by the Group.

The Group’s risk management and internal audit function, in
conjunction with the Management Committee, will conduct
regular review on the effectiveness of the Systems and report
the findings to the Audit Committee and the Board on material
ESG issues on an annual basis.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES 3.

In preparation of this ESG Report, the Group observes and
applies the principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency as set out in the Guide in order to provide a clear,
balanced, quantifiable and comparative information to its
stakeholders:
(1)  Materiality Major stakeholders are identified and
their concerns on ESG issues are
considered. ESG issues that have
material impacts on the Group’s
sustainable development form the basis
of this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL

AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

REPORTING PRINCIPLES (Continued)
(2)  Quantitative Where practicable, all environmental
and social key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) are disclosed in a quantitative
manner.

(8) Balance The information reflecting the overall
performance of the Group in ESG
aspects are disclosed in an objective

and impartial manner.

Methods used in the calculation of KPIs
are consistent with those used in past
years to facilitate a fair comparison.

(4)  Consistency

REPORTING BOUNDARY

The information provided in this report covers the period from 1
April 2021 to 31 March 2022 (the “2022 Period”) and relates to
the ESG performance of the Group’s core operating segments;
namely manufacturing, trading and gene development as well
as the Hong Kong headquarters, which reflects the business
activities of the Group’s subsidiaries disclosed in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no significant
changes to the reporting boundary of the activities included in
this report when compared to the period from 1 April 2020 to
31 March 2021 (the “2021 Period”).

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
IDENTIFICATION OF MATERIAL ESG
ISSUES

The Group values opinions from stakeholders including
shareholders, staff members, business partners, governments
and the communities, and is committed to building constructive
relationships with stakeholders through different communication
channels including annual general meetings, the Company’s
website, annual reports, industry forums, business and social
meetings, with a view to achieving its objectives towards
sustainable growth.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE #HgREB®RS (B)

5. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND 5.
IDENTIFICATION OF MATERIAL ESG
ISSUES (Continued)

Management Committee of the manufacturing segment, senior
management and departmental staff of relevant operations have
been engaged to communicate with stakeholders in order to
understand their concerns and expectations. Through
continuous discussions and communications with stakeholders
using various channels, the materiality issues identified in the
2022 Period did not change significantly when compared to the
2021 Period. The following table summarises the material
issues identified and reported by the Group in the 2022 Period:

BESENEEZE S HEBAEKD
SAREEENSBMAE T EF S
EEBER NTHESNBEEESE
M HREE - BT & B R E EF &= 48
BERFESREBER —F - —FH
MAENEAZERE —_T - —FH[H
Bl EEREsH . TRBAAEER
R —FHEAH#HI M ERNE

R

Activities
EE
Non-
Manufacturing* Manufacturing*
Subject Areas and Aspects FTEHEERER 858 FEHE
A. Environmental Aspects A REEE

A1 Emissions A1 HERRY)

Air pollutants RS EM M NM

Greenhouse gas = R g M NM

Water wastes [ZHUN M NM

Solid wastes BEEY M NM
A2 Use of Resources A2 &R {E A

Water 7K M NM

Electricity ES M NM

Natural gas RAR M NM

Fuel (vehicle) R ORE) M NM

Packing material BEME M NM
A3 The Environment and A3 IRIE R RKARER

Natural Resources M NM
A4 Climate Change A4 Bz (L M NM
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL

AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

5. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
IDENTIFICATION OF MATERIAL ESG
ISSUES (Continued)

RE -8 RERHRS (B)

Activities
E B
Non-
Manufacturing* Manufacturing*
Subject Areas and Aspects FTEHEREM gt IR
B. Social Aspects B. tEEME
Employment and Labour Practices RBRERLETESR
B1 Employment Bl E1& M M
B2 Health and Safety B2 EEEHLZ S M M
B3 Development and Training B3 # & M iE T M M
B4 Labour Standards B4 & T %28 M M
Operating Practices =B IED
B5 Supply Chain Management B5 & 52 & 18 M M
B6 Product Responsibility B6 EmAE M M
B7 Anti-corruption B7 RE)5 M M
B8 Community Investment B8 ttmIH & M M

# referred to the Group’s manufacturing segment in Changchun, China

* Included the Group’s Hong Kong headquarters, trading and gene
development segments

M Material

NM  Not Material

Stakeholders could send their comments on this ESG Report to
the head office of the Company by post, fax or email as detailed
in the Company’s website www.extrawell.com.hk.

# BASELRNFREEENED R
BREAEENTELN EZRERR

*

BHH
M SN
NM  FTEK

FEZEEET EABST BEXE
;A RN(FBRADE B I www.
extrawell.com.hk)) [A] 28 2 &) 48 3 =5 5z 12
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@ ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R - #HBREBRSE (B)

6. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

6.1 Emissions

It is the Group’s policy for each business segment or
operation to manage the environmental impacts of
emissions caused by its activities and comply with the
applicable environmental laws, prevention and control
regulations in which it operates. During the 2022 Period,
the Group did not breach the related emissions laws and
regulations.

Emissions arising from the Manufacturing Activities
include air pollutants, greenhouse gas (“GHG”), water and
solid wastes, whilst the Non-Manufacturing Activities have
insignificant emissions of air pollutants, water and solid
wastes but limited GHG emissions. In this report, GHG is
categorised into three scopes as below:

(i) Scope 1  refers to direct emissions from sources
that are owned or controlled by the
operations. Examples include natural
gas combusted for boilers, fuels used
by owned vehicles.

(i)  Scope2 refers to indirect emissions from
consumption of purchased electricity,
steam or other sources of energy.

(i)  Scope 3 refers to indirect emissions from other
activities that are consequences of the
operations but are not directly owned or
controlled. Examples include business
travel, third-party distribution and
logistics.

6.1.1 GHG emissions arising from the Non-Manufacturing
activities mainly relate to indirect emissions of
purchased electricity under Scope 2 and third-party
distribution and logistics as well as business travels
under Scope 3. During the 2022 Period, the
respective Scope 2 and Scope 3 carbon dioxide
(“CO,") emissions amounted to a total of about 14
tonnes (2021: 17 tonnes) and 1 tonne (2021: 0
tonne) respectively.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -#HERER®E (A

6. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued) 6. REEEm®@

6.1 HER (@)
I12ERAHFEHKEE —BGMPL

6.1 Emissions (Continued)

6.1.2 As to the Manufacturing Activities of a GMP factory

in Changchun, China, the Management Committee
is responsible for implementing policies and
monitoring the factory’s performance so as to
ensure its strict compliance with the environmental
requirements under the relevant laws and
regulations such as the Environmental Protection
Law (€ & 35 1% # % )), the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law (7K 35 &[5 74 /%)), the
Prevention and Control of Air Pollution Law ({X $&
S5 2 Fha7%)) and the Prevention and Control of
Environment Pollution caused by Solid Wastes
(K BB REY )5 £ IRIIENVRIED). During the 2022
Period, the factory handled its major emissions in
the following manner:

(@) Waste gas emission management

The major source of waste gas emission
comes from natural gas boilers. Air pollutants
mainly include sulfur oxide (“SOx”), nitrogen
oxide (“NOx”), and particle material (“PM”).
The factory has installed a desulfurisation
tower to ensure levels of emission are in
compliance with the standards. The tower is
functioning well and levels of emission are
significantly lower than the lower limit of the
national emission requirements. In the 2022
Period, SOx, NOx, and PM emissions
amounted to about 10 kgs (2021: 10 kgs),
311 kgs (2021: 341 kgs) and 0 kg (2021: 0O
kg) respectively. The results were monitored
and measured by an independent third party
in accordance with the prevailing requirements
of the Technical Guidelines of Accounting
Method for Pollution Source Intensity Basic
Principles (€75 2R R 58 1% & #1748 Fg — 4
a1).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE dERERHRS (&)

6. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

6.1 Emissions (Continued)

6.1.2 (Continued)

@

®)

Waste gas emission management
(Continued)

CO, emissions arising from natural gas boilers
and fuels for daily operations of vehicles (Scope
1), purchased electricity (Scope 2) and
business travels (Scope 3) amounted to about
994 tonnes (2021: 1,020 tonnes), 1,551
tonnes (2021: 1,430 tonnes) and 4 tonnes
(2021: 3 tonnes) respectively.

Wastewater management

The factory has built its own waste water
treatment facilities with daily capacity of 400
tonnes to treat the wastewater from its
production processes before discharge, and
about 30,616 tonnes (2021: 41,330 tonnes)
of effluents were treated and discharged in
the 2022 Period. The decrease in discharge
of wastewater was primarily due to shifts in
production to meet changes in sales mix and
improvement to the sewage system to block
the influx of rainwater. To monitor and control
the discharge, the factory has worked jointly
with local environmental monitoring stations,
and an on-line monitoring system has been
installed to test and collect data on the quality
of effluent. In addition, the factory has
commissioned a third-party inspection unit to
conduct regular surveillance on effluent
discharge against the standards in order to
ensure timely detection of its abnormality and
implementation of corrective measures when
in exceedances.
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued) 6. REEME @
6.1 Emissions (Continued) 6.1 HER (@)
6.1.2 (Continued) 6.1.2 (&)
(c) Solid waste management c ElREREYEE
The storages and disposals of hazardous and EEREZEEYMD

non-hazardous wastes are handled in
accordance with the requirements of relevant
rules and regulations. During the 2022 Period,
about 749 kgs (2021: 349 kgs) hazardous
wastes generated from the production
process were disposed of with waste
management services provided by contractors
as designated by Jilin Province Environmental
Protection Office. The increase was primarily
related to the increase in wastewater
discharge. The non-hazardous wastes of
about 140 tonnes (2021: 135 tonnes) were
disposed of through wastes collection
services provided by the local authorities.

6.2 Use of Resources

It is the Group’s policy to encourage all staff to be
environmentally friendly at work to reduce the
consumption of paper, water and electricity and effective
use of the resources. Measures being implemented
include double-sided printing and copying, disseminating
information in digital format, waste paper recycling,
turning off power consuming devices when not in use.

6.2.1 The major resources used by the Non-
Manufacturing Activities are electricity, and paper
(including own offices use and bulk printing of
annual and interim reports and circulars distributed
to the Company’s shareholders through printing
firms). In the 2022 Period, the electricity
consumption was in aggregate of about 20,000
KWhs (2021: 21,000 KWhs) and paper used was in
aggregate of about 1.2 tonnes (2021: 1.5 tonnes),
of which about 1.2 tonnes (2021: 1.5 tonnes) were
FSC certified paper.

1B 4% 48 B8 45 Bl O£ R
MR ERTRER-
R_ZTE - —FHH -
AEBREEEZH
TF R(ZF = —
F:349F ) B ERE
EZEYE BTG RR
EE 45 & A A& B R IR
MEZEMEERD
ETRIE . ZEME
DB KPERIEINAE
fd o 491408 ( = & —
— % : 135MF ) £ = B
ZEVEBRBHITER
RENEEDRE R
TRHEITRIE o

6.2 &IRMEH

AEENBROBERETLRE
TERRERFE AR DMK - K
RENHERLSBEMREIR -
FMETHEREREEITHNR
FH ABBRAGEER B
WrER RAERKEHARBER
g o

621 R EEHFEANEESA
BREENDRER(BEHRD
ZEHERAEBBERAFK
= Bl [ A 2 7] f% 8= 5 8
ZERRETFHFRENRRB
) e RZT - —FHMH
£ | 2 & 57 #920,000F E
BF( =& — — £ :21,000F
FE)AEAREATH1.2
ME(—F — — 4 :158) "
ERAI2ME( = = —F:
1.5Mf) AFSCREBA °

Annual Report 2022 = @ FFR



52

& @

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE dERERHRS (&)

6. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

6.2 Use of Resources (Continued)

6.2.1 (Continued)

The Group has been making its best efforts to
reduce paper usage by distributing office files in
digital format, reusing single-sided paper, and
collecting double-sided printed paper for recycler’s
handling. The Group also adopts the practice of
green procurement that eco-friendly paper is
selected for office use and bulk printing of reports.

6.2.2 The Manufacturing Activities consume mainly water,
electricity, natural gas, fuel for vehicles and packing
material used for finished products. Paper
consumption in its daily operations amounted to
about 2 tonnes (2021: 2 tonnes) relates to paper
used during the processes of procurement,
invoicing, production, quality assurance, marketing
and administration, of which the consumption in
various departments is being monitored by the
management. The similar level of paper
consumption was maintained as the results of (i)
management’s efforts to promote paperless office
within internal departments by better utilisation of
the electronic network and digitalisation of files as
far as practicable in the paper procurement
process, (i) less consumption in printed materials
related to decrease in promotion and symposium
activities as a result of the pandemic, and (i) the
shift from the centralised supply of paper
stationeries back to the distributors to arrange and
to bear on their own, in the 2022 Period and the
2021 Period.
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued) 6. IREEHE @

6.2 ERMEHA @

6.2 Use of Resources (Continued)

6.2.2 (Continued) 6.2.2 (&)
The major resources consumed in the periods are ZEHHEFBERNEEZER
set out below: RES TR
2022 2021
—E=-= T
Type of FEEEER Amount Intensity* Amount  Intensity*

resources consumed B|H

wET  ME A

1. Water (tonne) 7K (W8)

2. Electricity (KWh) BH(FRE)

3. Natural gas (m?) KRR (3277 K)
4. Fuel for vehicles (iter) E R (FH)

5. Packing material (tonne) £ 5 ¥} (188)

0.68 51,139 0.65

29.5 2,014,000 25.6

5.0 376,890 4.78

0.44 38,650 0.49

0.01 509 0.01

Amount generated per HK$’000 of revenue.

It is the Group’s policy to ensure effective and
efficient use of resources in the production process
with the aim of minimising wastes and reducing
consumption of the resources.

Water is a key element of the products and
production process. Water supplies are provided by
the municipally owned water supply company,
which will ensure relatively stable and adequate
water supplies. During the 2022 Period, there was
no reported difficulties or issues arising from water
supplies. Management has recognised the
importance of water conservation, and therefore
has closely monitored the operation with the aim of
identifying means and ways in saving and reusing
water; including setting clear instructions for water
used (time, volume and frequency) in the production
process, more frequent inspection to reduce
leakage in water supplies, and enhance employees’
consciousness of water conservation in operation
process training.
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

6.2 Use of Resources (Continued)

6.2.2 (Continued)

As to other resources, measures being implemented
include avoiding procurement of high-energy
consumption materials, regular monitoring
performance of the production equipment,
upgrading and phasing out non eco-friendly
machines to raise the utilisation of energy and
resources. Packing materials primarily comprise
paper, glasses and plastics used for the Group’s
finished products. As a good practice, the Group
endeavors to select eco-friendly materials in the
procurement process, and minimise wastes by
managing purchase quantities.

6.3 The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is dedicated to reducing the adverse effect of
its activities that could result in environmental damages,
controlling the level of consumption of natural resources
and promoting environmental awareness among its
employees at workplaces. In production, the Group has
regularly inspected and monitored the production process
to ensure strict compliance with relevant laws and
regulations on emissions. In office, management has
persistently reminded colleagues to protect the
environment by recycling papers and plastic, turning off
unused electricity devices. Management has also kept
colleagues abreast of various environmental issues and
encouraged colleagues to participate in activities like tree
planting.
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued) 6. REEEm®@

6.4 Climate Change 6.4 FIRE{t

The Group understands that climate change poses
increasing risks to global sustainable development, which
not only brings extreme weather, and its consequences
have a far-reaching impact on various economic and
social activities. As a member of an environmentally aware
business community, the Group is committed to reducing
GHG emissions, and aligning its businesses with
sustainable growth development.

The material climate change risks which the Group is
exposed to are tied to its Manufacturing Activities in
China. Management has identified the climate-related
risks and the measures to cope with them. The risks of
changing climate that might affect its operations mainly
fall into two types; namely transition and physical risks.

The transition risks are bought by the nation’s target to
peak its carbon dioxide emissions before 2030 and
achieve carbon neutrality before 2060. It is expected that
the Chinese authorities will implement more stringent
policies and regulations to control GHG emissions, which
will result in rising compliance-related capital investment
and operating costs. In addition, the operations may also
be exposed to higher risks of climate change claims and
litigations as well as reputation risks. To mitigate the
impact, management will actively manage the compliance
with the current policies and regulations, and at the same
time, closely monitor and prepare for the emerging trends
and development of relevant policies and regulations to
the industry so as to avoid cost increments, non-
compliance fines or reputational damages due to poor or
delayed response.

The physical risks relate to extreme weather events like
floods or droughts, storms, extreme heat or extreme low
temperature. The increased frequency, duration and
severity of such events might cause disruptions to the
supply chain and production, and endanger human life
and health.
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

6.4 Climate Change (Continued)

As a result, management has formulated the “Emergency
Plan for Environmental Emergencies” (the “Plan”) in
accordance with the relevant national, provincial and
municipal laws and administrative regulations, which set
out the emergency response procedures to protect the
staff safety, and to avoid or reduce losses. The Plan will
be reviewed and updated annually to ensure its
effectiveness. In addition, annual training and drills will be
carried out to enhance employees’ awareness and their
response capabilities in times of emergencies.

Due to the size and nature of operations, the Non-
Manufacturing Activities are the least vulnerable to the
impacts of climate change. Nevertheless, management
has remained committed to minimising the environmental
footprints of the operations with a particular focus on
reducing energy consumption, carbon emissions, paper
use, and waste.

Looking forward, management shall continue to monitor
and assess the evolving risks that climate change may
bring to the Group’s business, reforming the business
practices to minimise the impact of the Group’s
operations on the environment, and adopting policies that
can help mitigate climate change.
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7. SOCIAL ASPECTS

7.1 Employment

The Group employs about 168 employees on a
permanent basis, and the manufacturing segment
accounts for more than 90% of the Group’s workforce.
The statistics of the Group’s workforce and employee
turnover rate of the manufacturing segment are set out

below:

Total workforce by gender and age group (of the

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE -HERE

7. HE2E@
71 EfE

FlanT

AR E (E)

AEBEENIBEENES
MeENENEBEASEET
MEBHEBE0% AEEE THAKN
REBLUED BN EBRKREGETH

BMFIRFREE D ZET

Group) B (KAEE)

Age

FHR
Below 30 Between 30-50 Over 50 Total
Gender 1% Bl 30m U T 30&505% 508% A £ st
Male ES 3 32 29 64
Female 18 9 79 16 104
Total Y 12 111 45 168

Employee turnover rate (%) by gender and age
group (Manufacturing segment only”*)

BMHFIRFREE D ZES

MKE (%) (ERETE")

Age

FiR
Below 30 Between 30-50 Over 50 Total
Gender 14 Bl 30 AT 30 & 505% 508% A £ et
Male E2 0% 13% 8% 10%
Female g 0% 5% 9% 5%
Total et 0% 7% 9% 7%

* Information relating to the manufacturing segment is disclosed, as S WEAEHEIESENER BE

the employee turnover rate of the trading segment and Hong Kong

headquarters is insignificant.
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7. SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

71

7.2

Employment (Continued)

People are valuable asset to the Group’s success and
sustainable development. It is the Group’s policy to
attract and retain high caliber people for its business
operations. The Group recruits people on the basis of job
requirements without discrimination on grounds of age,
gender, ethnic, politics or religion, trains and grows their
capabilities, rewards and makes promotion based on their
contributions. The Group remunerates its employees
based on industry practices. The Group arranges working
hours, rest periods, benefits and welfare including medical
and retirement protection in accordance with prevailing
labour laws of its operating units in which they operate.
The Group is committed to ensuring that all applicable
legal requirements are observed in dealing with dismissal
of any employee who violates the Group’s regulations or
persistently performs below job requirements.

During the 2022 Period, the Group did not breach any
employment laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing and maintaining a
safe and healthy working environment for all its
employees.

For the Group’s office operations, management strives to
maintain smoke-free, healthy and safe working
environment. All employees are encouraged to participate
regularly emergency drills held by the office building
management.
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7. SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued) 7. HEEE@

7.2 Health and Safety (Continued) 72 BEREEZZE @)

For the Group’s factory in China, management has
persistently upheld the principle of safe production and
observed the requirements of the “Law of the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases” ({H 2 75 576 7%)).
There is no allowance of any personal consideration but
strict compliance of the requirements under the GMP
standards and the relevant laws and regulations.
Management has regularly conducted safety examinations
for production equipment, conducted drills and provided
training to employees in order to increase their awareness
and involvement in accident prevention.

During the 2022 Period, the Group did not breach any
laws and regulations in relation to occupational health and
safety and there were no work-related fatalities in the
Group’s operations but 2 work injury cases (2021: 1 case)
in the manufacturing segment resulting in 1 lost day (2021:
13 days). Measures have been taken to strengthen the
production safety with the aim of minimising risk of injury
through safety publicity and education in order to enhance
consciousness of all employees.

Measures and Actions in response to COVID-19

In March 2022, the highly transmissible Omicron variant
of COVID-19 had caused a surge of infections in some
regions of China including Jilin, which had resulted in the
government-mandated factory lockdown, and following
the lockdown measures eased in phase by the Chinese
authorities, the factory resumed normal production by late
May 2022. To cope with the COVID-19 resurgence,
management has continued to implement all necessary
precautionary and preventive measures to safeguard the
health and safety of the staff in the workplace under the
guidelines and announcements of the Chinese authorities.
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7. SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

7.2 Health and Safety (Continued)

Measures and Actions in response to COVID-19
(Continued)

Precautionary measures such as restriction on travels and
meetings, temperature screening before entering
workplaces and provision of adequate disinfection
supplies like face masks and hand sanitisers to employees
have been maintained and followed through in all
workplaces. A team of personnel is designated to monitor
regular cleaning and disinfection of areas in the respective
workplaces. Wider physical spacing is provided for
workstations and seats in meeting rooms and rest areas,
as far as practicable, while tele-conferencing is used in
place of physical meetings and split team arrangements
are enhanced, where possible. In addition, employees are
educated the need to keep social distancing and hygiene
practices and to comply with quarantine orders by the
government agencies, where applicable. All these
measures have facilitated infection control and will be
reviewed and adjusted taking into account the public
health measures imposed by the Chinese authorities. In
addition, employees are encouraged to get COVID-19 full
vaccination and transport arrangements are provided by
the Group to facilitate those employees who have
scheduled for getting vaccination.

With intense management efforts, the production plants
had been operating safely without any significant impact
on productivity and cost efficiency, and no COVID-19
infection case was reported during the 2022 Period.

As to the operations of the Group’s headquarters, trading
and gene segments, precautionary measures within office
premises are also in place and adjusted in line with the
guidance by the local government authorities, to minimise
the risk of contracting and spreading COVID-19; including
keeping social distancing and hygiene practices, wearing
mask at all times, carrying out regular cleaning and
disinfection for door grips and working areas, granting
flexible work-from-home arrangements for employees and
encouraging employees to get COVID-19 full vaccination.
During the 2022 Period, the COVID-19 has limited impact
on the operations.
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7. SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

7.3

7.4

Development and Training

The Group organises and provides on-the-job training to
develop its employees’ potential in order to support the
Group’s sustainable development. Employees are
encouraged to equip themselves with relevant academic
and professional qualifications by attending external
training programs for future career development.

As to the Group’s manufacturing segment in China,
regular training programs have been provided in the areas
of production process operations, quality and safety
management, applicable legal and regulatory
requirements, important environmental factors and risk
controls to relevant personnel including production
technicians, safety management personnel and operating
personnel.

The Group also provides training subsidies to support its
employees to receive external professional training to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Labour Standards

All employees of the Group are employed in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations on employment
including, inter alias, working hours, rest periods and staff
benefits. The Group prohibits the use of child labour and
forced labour at all its operation units. During the
recruitment process, the Group requires all applicants to
provide true and accurate personal information including
their proofs of identity for checking purpose, particularly
for verifying the photo on the documents and reviewing
the age. The Group will take immediate action to
terminate the employment of anyone who provides false
information or in breach of the Group’s regulations.

During the 2022 Period, the Group has complied with
employment-related laws and regulations and found no
violations of laws and regulations regarding child labour
and forced labour.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE dERERHRS (&)

8. OPERATING PRACTICES

8.1

8.2

Supply Chain Management

The Group relies on a wide range of vendors to supply
goods; from raw materials to finished goods for the
Group’s manufacturing and trading activities. In order to
fulfill the Group’s mission to provide quality products, it is
imperative for its pursuit of quality goods from the
vendors.

The Group’s GMP plants in China have established a
quality management system to regulate the production
and quality management of drugs. Since all procurement
is conducted locally, the Group has clearly notified its
vendors to comply with relevant quality standards and
provide necessary permits if so required by the relevant
laws and regulations for the goods supplied. Specific
procedures have been implemented in quality control and
inventory management in order to ensure the Group’s
products are consistently manufactured in accordance
with the registration requirements. The aim of the Group’s
management system is to minimise the risks of
contamination, detect, monitor and rectify errors in
production process.

For imported pharmaceutical products, the Group
adheres to the principle to minimise the negative impact
of the entire supply chain on the environment and society
by selecting and engaging suppliers who manufacture
their products under conditions and practices required by
the GMP regulations and operate in compliance with their
local environmental and labor laws. In the 2022 Period,
there were no imports of pharmaceutical products from
overseas.

Product Responsibility

The Group places great emphasis on maintaining and
improving the quality of its products. The Group has
implemented a comprehensive quality control and
inspection procedures to ensure product quality and
safety from procurement of raw materials, packaging
materials and finished products. All products
manufactured and sold by the Group to its customers in
China have met the GMP production standards and
complied with the registration requirements with the
National Medical Products Administration.
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8. OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

8.2

8.3

Product Responsibility (Continued)

All products sold by the Group have clear instructions and
specifications as to its composition, quality and safety use
for end-user protection purpose, which are in compliance
with the laws and requirements, such as the
Advertisement Law and the Drug Administration Law in
China.

The Group has also worked closely with customers to
deal with products and services complaints in order to
ensure product quality and competitiveness and has put
top priority to ensure privacy of customer’s information.

Anti-corruption

The Company understands the importance of good
business ethics, which along with good corporate
governance are essential foundation to success. The
Group values an ethical approach to business activities to
create a safe, trusting and cooperative work environment.
The Company has established ethics code to promote
integrity and accountability, which requires all group
companies and employees, to strictly comply with the
local laws and regulations. The code contains, inter alia,
provisions for bribery, extortion, fraud, or other
malpractices and whistleblowing procedures. The Group
adopts a zero tolerance approach towards any form of
bribery, corruption and fraud, and provides training to
employees to help them keep abreast of current trends
and issues facing the Group and ensure they apply the
code in their work. The Group encourages prompt internal
reporting of any suspected misconduct, irregularities and
malpractices.

During the 2022 Period, the Group did not breach any
laws and regulations relating to anti-corruptions or receive
any reports in relation thereof in China, Hong Kong, and
elsewhere.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -#HgRER®HE (R)

9. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT 9. HEKRE
As a socially responsible corporation, the Company is EE—BEHEETRALE AR
committed to leverage its resources to facilitate the community M AOFNBEEREEML S ERILFE
development and strongly encourages all staff members to BEBHEEEIRX2E[AFSHERA ]
participate in volunteering and charitable activities, such as “Dress FIEBLEMIEEMEEESTE -
Casual Day” and “Blood Donation”.
During the 2022 Period, staff members supported the recycling R-ZBE-_—FHME BEIYXHRER
programmes by the environmental group, Greeners Action, BgEATHHEKEE  BEMNESE
including the Lai See Packet Reuse and Recycling Programme EWERXTH N A SO ES -
and the Mooncake Boxes Collection Campaign, for which 2 Bl e Yok & (E B R AR B IRIER R 2
unused and undamaged lai see packets and the used HEZFA#E WERHNETELDK
mooncake boxes, were collected and deposited at the b otk B TEEAR R Y IEB
designated collection stations, respectively. Further, staff EZHBEREBRHNNAHD Z; J '
members donated surplus edible mooncakes in the Mooncake EERGARA A UEHEER
Sharing Programme by the local food rescue charity, Food HBEEEEALT RAFITIRIZLEE /D
Angel, for the underprivileged and those in need, and also —1— TEE | ZHHEREEIEER
donated books in the Books for Love @10 campaign for charity B o
sale.
10. ENVIRONMENTAL KEY PERFORMANCE 10 R BERENEZ(HERE
INDICATORS (“KPIs”) TABLE xiz EED %%
The following table summarises the Group’s significant KPIs TREBMARFEANFFHAEER EER
information as set out in this report: REBIRIZEEH
2022 2021
KPIs BRENIER —B-Zf _—ZT_—F
Environment RIR
Air pollutants (Kg) ZRITEY(TR)
SOx malty 10 10
NOx REND 311 341
PM EEERY) - -
Greenhouse gas (Tonne CO,) BERE (W =Sk H)
Total emission: BEYENE: 2,564 2,470
Direct emission (Scope 1) BEH(EHE) 994 1,020
Indirect emission (Scope 2) B (EE2) 1,565 1,447
Indirect emission (Scope 3) M P (8 [E3) 5 3
Intensity per employee HEERE 15 14
Wastes (Tonne) BEE Y ()
Total hazardous waste produced FEXEEEEDEE 30,617 41,330
Intensity (Hazardous waste) per employee Y IRERE(BEEZREY) 182 242
Total non-hazardous waste produced FMEEEEEEYRS 140 135
Intensity (Non-hazardous waste) per employee YZEERE(EEREEY) 1 1
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RE -8 RERHRS (B)

10. ENVIRONMENTAL KEY PERFORMANCE 10. RE R ENEE(BRE
INDICATORS (“KPIs”) TABLE (Continued) MEZ]) %% ()
2022 2021

KPIs BERENER ZB-Zf T —F
Energy consumption B R H R
Total energy consumption: RRHEAE .
Fuel consumed for vehicles (Liter) AEREEFE () 32,880 38,650
Intensity (Fuel) per employee BREE®E (MH) 196 226
Electricity (MWh) B HUOKERE) 2,204 2,085
Intensity (Electricity) per employee HEERE(EN) 13 12
Natural gas (thousand m? FKAR(FLHK) 373 377
Intensity (Natural gas) per employee ZEBERE(RAR) 2 2
Social e
Total workforce (persons)—Group IHBEI(AB)BE—FEEH 168 171
By gender: &1 Bl 8l 5
Male B 64 65
Female z 104 106
By age group: REREE S
<30 30T 12 10
30-50 30E507% 111 119
>50 505% A £ 45 42
By employment type: RERFERE S
Permanent 2 168 171
Part-time F 0% - -
Employee turnover rate(%)— BERKE(%)—

Manufacturing BESE
By gender: & B8l o
Male 2 10% 14%
Female @ 5% 13%
By age group: REREE S
<30 305 AT 0% 0%
30-50 30&505% 7% 11%
>50 5057 A £ 9% 29%
By employment type: RERBERE S :
Permanent i 100% 100%
Part-time 0 - -
Health and safety RERZZE
Number of work-related fatalities THEBERLT A - -
Lost days due to work injury (days) THEERANITEDER) 1 13
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REPORT OF
THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

&

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2022,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
activities of its principal subsidiaries and an associate are set out in
notes 39 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

The business review of the Group and the discussion and analysis of
the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set
out in the sections “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 4 to 7 and pages 8 to 20 of this
annual report respectively.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
and information about laws and regulations affecting the businesses
of the Group and their compliance are included in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report on pages 43 to 65 of this annual
report. Furthermore, financial risk management and capital
management of the Group are set out in notes 41 and 42 to the
consolidated financial statement.

The above discussions and information form part of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 88 to 89.

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend in respect
of the year after taking into account factors including the Group’s
financial performance, operating and capital requirements and market
conditions. Currently, no formal dividend policy is adopted by the
Company.
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FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 204.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED ARRANGEMENT

No equity-linked agreement which may result in the Company issuing
shares was entered into during the year.

Details of the convertible bonds of the Company with principal
amount of HK$577,170,000 outstanding are disclosed in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF
THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
E5E®mE (8

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 24 August 2012, the shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”), as the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 8 August 2002 expired
on 14 August 2012. The Scheme became effective on 29 August
2012 after obtaining approval from the Listing Committee of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date. Information about the Scheme is set out in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2022, the reserves of the Company available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie amounted to HK$95,504,000
which was computed in accordance with the Bermuda Companies
Act. In addition, the Company’s share premium account with a
balance of HK$191,738,000 as at 31 March 2022 may be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

During the year, the Group had not experienced any significant
problems with its employees or disruption to its operations due to
labour disputes nor had it experienced any difficulties in the
recruitment. The directors consider that the Group has maintained
good working relationship with its employees.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationships with its customers and suppliers to the overall
development of its business. During the year, there were no disputes
between the Group and its customers and/or suppliers that would
have caused significant adverse impact to the Group’s business.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, revenue attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 22% of
the Group’s revenue, and revenue attributable to the Group’s largest
customer accounted for approximately 7% of the Group’s revenue.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2022, purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 87% of
the Group’s purchases and purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier accounted for approximately 35% of the Group’s
purchases.

None of the directors, their close associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interests in the Group’s five
largest customers and the suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive directors:

Xie Yi

Cheng Yong
Lou Yi

Wong Sau Kuen
Liu Kwok Wah

Dr. Xie Yi, Dr. Lou Yi, Ms. Wong Sau Kuen and Mr. Liu Kwok Wah are
also directors in certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Independent non-executive directors:

Fang Lin Hu
Xue Jing Lun
Jin Song

The Company has received from Mr. Fang Lin Hu, Mr. Xue Jing Lun
and Ms. Jin Song annual confirmations of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and is satisfied that each of
them meets the independence criteria under the Listing Rules, and
still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 111, other than the
Chairman, the directors of the Company, including the independent
non-executive directors (“INEDs”), are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company. In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-
laws, Mr. Xue Jing Lun and Ms. Jin Song will retire as directors by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Each of Mr. Xue
Jing Lun and Ms. Jin Song has served as INED for more than nine
years, his/her further appointment will be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to the relevant code
provision under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory obligation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group, and pursuant to the
recommendation made by the remuneration committee.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, no
director had material interests, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, no directors or their close associates are considered
to have an interest in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, every director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the directors in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
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Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by FHF A5 5 22X FR|([ZXE S8 ]) B e
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows: RNAT R ZEZEREWNT -
Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company REATREZEERZHAE
Number of Approximate
ordinary shares percentage of
Name of director Notes Capacity and nature of interest held/entitled interests held
s EEEE FiskEs2
BEEgH s BORERME ZEBRHE BABD
Xie Yi () Through controlled corporations 900,000,000 37.66%
EE BBEEHD
Cheng Yong (b) Directly beneficially owned 830,000 0.04%
] BEEERER
Through oontrolled corporations 140,760,000 5.89%
FRZESAD
Held by spouse 5,090,000 0.21%
MECEBHE
146,680,000 6.14%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

() These 900,000,000 shares represent conversion shares to be allotted and issued
to the bondholder, United Gene International Holdings Group Limited (‘UG
International”) upon exercise in full of the conversion rights by UG International, at
conversion price of HK$0.6413 per share under the Company’s 20-year zero
coupon convertible bonds issued on 16 July 2013 with principal amount of
HK$577,170,000 outstanding. The entire issued share capital of UG International
is owned by JNJ Investments Ltd which is wholly owned by Biowindow Gene
Development (Hong Kong) Limited (“HK Biowindow”), and the entire issued share
capital of HK Biowindow is owned by United Gene Group Ltd (a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands). The issued share capital of United Gene
Group Ltd is owned as to 33% by Ease Gold Investments Limited, which is wholly
owned by Dr. Xie Yi.

At 31 March 2022, there was a total of 2,390,000,000 shares issued by the
Company, and assuming the exercise in full of the conversion rights attaching to
the Company’s convertible bonds, UG International will hold approximately
27.36% of the enlarged share capital of the Company.

(b) 1,060,000 shares and 139,700,000 shares of the Company’s shares in issue are
respectively held by Merchandise Holdings Limited and United Gene Industry
Group Limited, both are companies incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
are wholly owned by Mr. Cheng Yong.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the directors
had registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate granted to any directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them, or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors, their respective spouses or
minor children to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 March 2022, the following interests and short positions of 5%
or more of the shares and underlying shares of the Company were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.
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to the bondholder, United Gene International Holdings Group Limited (‘UG
International”) upon exercise in full of the conversion rights by UG International, at
conversion price of HK$0.6413 per share under the Company’s 20-year zero
coupon convertible bonds issued on 16 July 2013 with principal amount of
HK$577,170,000 outstanding. The entire issued share capital of UG International
is owned by JNJ Investments Ltd which is wholly owned by Biowindow Gene
Development (Hong Kong) Limited (“HK Biowindow”), and the entire issued share
capital of HK Biowindow is owned by United Gene Group Ltd (a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands). The issued share capital of United Gene
Group Ltd is owned as to 33% by United Gene Holdings Limited, which is wholly
owned by Dr. Mao Yumin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, no person, other
than certain directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, had registered an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had not entered into any transactions
which constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The following related party transactions had been entered into by the
Group during the year:

(@) Second amendments to the terms and
conditions of the HK$715,000,000 convertible
bonds issued by Innovative Pharmaceutical
Biotech Limited (“Innovative Pharm”) for
extension of maturity date and interest
payment dates

On 12 May 2021, the Company as the bondholder and
Innovative Pharm as the issuer of the HK$715,000,000
convertible bonds due on 28 July 2021 (“‘Innovative Pharm
Bonds”), entered into, the second deed of amendment (“Second
Amendment Deed”) to further amend certain terms and
conditions of the Innovative Pharm Bonds in respect of the two-
year extension of the original maturity date to 28 July 2023
(“Maturity Date”) and the extension of payment dates of the
interest of the Innovative Pharm Bonds to the Maturity Date
(“Second Amendments”).
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@) Second amendments to the terms and

conditions of the HK$715,000,000 convertible
bonds issued by Innovative Pharmaceutical
Biotech Limited (“Innovative Pharm”) for
extension of maturity date and interest
payment dates (Continued)

Pursuant to the Second amendment Deed, the Innovative
Pharm Bonds due on the Maturity Date (“Extended Bonds”)
bear interest at 3.5% per annum, the Group has the right to
convert the Extended Bonds into shares of Innovative Pharm
during the period ending on the Maturity Date at an initial
conversion price of HK$2.5 per share, and any outstanding
principal amount of the Extended Bonds shall be redeemed and
the interest shall be paid, on the Maturity Date. The payment of
interest on the Maturity Date in aggregate of HK$166,040,875
relates to (i) the annual interest for the five interest periods from
28 July 2018 to 27 July 2023 totaling HK$125,125,000, (ii) the
additional interest of HK$25,900,875 representing 15% per
annum for the two-year further extension of payment of (a)
annual interest for the three interest periods from 28 July 2018
to 27 July 2021 in the aggregate amount of HK$75,075,000
and (b) additional interest of HK$11,261,250, which are
originally due on 28 July 2021 pursuant to the first deed of
amendment executed on 26 July 2019, (i) the additional
interest of Hk$11,261,250 as mentioned in (ii)(o) above, and (iv)
the additional interest of HK$3,753,750 representing 15% per
annum for the one-year extension of payment of annual interest
for the interest period from 28 July 2021 to 27 July 2022.

The transaction contemplated under the Second Amendment
Deed in respect of the Second Amendments constitutes a
major transaction for the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules, which was approved by the Company’s
shareholders at its special general meeting held on 30 July
2021 and completed on 16 August 2021.
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

Second amendments to the terms and
conditions of the HK$715,000,000 convertible
bonds issued by Innovative Pharmaceutical
Biotech Limited (“Innovative Pharm”) for
extension of maturity date and interest
payment dates (Continued)

Details regarding the Second Amendments are disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 12 May, 30 July and 16
August 2021 and the circular dated 14 July 2021.

Provision of shareholders’ loan under the
second shareholders’ loan agreement to Smart
Ascent Limited (“Smart Ascent”), an associate
of the Company

On 8 March 2022, the Company and Innovative Pharm (together
with its subsidiaries, the “Innovative Pharm Group”) through
their respective wholly-owned subsidiaries holding 49% and
51% shareholdings in Smart Ascent, as lenders and Smart
Ascent as borrower, entered into the second shareholders’ loan
agreement (“Second Loan Agreement”) for a loan to Smart
Ascent amounting to HK$12,000,000 in total (the “Second
Loan”), to be contributed as to 49% i.e. HK$5,880,000 by the
Group (the “Second Loan Portion”) and as to 51% i.e.
HK$6,120,000 by Innovative Pharm Group, for the purpose of
financing the working capital requirements of Smart Ascent and
its subsidiaries (“Smart Ascent Group”), including the operating
expenses of Smart Ascent Group and research and
development expenses related to the oral insulin product. The
Second Loan is unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per annum
and has a repayment term fixed at 60 months after each
drawdown of the Second Loan.
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Provision of shareholders’ loan under the
second shareholders’ loan agreement to Smart
Ascent Limited (“Smart Ascent”), an associate
of the Company (Continued)

The first shareholders’ loan agreement dated 27 July 2018 (“First
Loan Agreement”) was entered into among the Group and
Innovative Pharm Group as lenders and Smart Ascent as
borrower, for a loan to Smart Ascent amounting to
HK$30,000,000 in total (the “First Loan”), which is unsecured,
interest bearing at 5% per annum and has a repayment term
fixed at 60 months after each drawdown of the First Loan. The
First Loan had been fully drawn down by Smart Ascent and
contributed as to 49% i.e. HK$14,700,000 by the Group (the “First
Loan Portion”) and 51% i.e. HK$15,300,000 by Innovative
Pharm Group. The transaction contemplated under the First
Loan Agreement was a fully exempt connected transaction of
the Company under Rule 14A.89 of the Listing Rules and did
not constitute a notifiable transaction under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules.

At the date of the Second Loan Agreement, the First Loan
Agreement remains in full force and effect and the First Loan
Portion remains outstanding. Pursuant to Rule 14.22 of the
Listing Rules, the granting of the Second Loan Portion and the
First Loan Portion are required to aggregate such that the
transactions contemplated under the Second Loan Agreement
and the First Loan Agreement constitute a discloseable
transaction of the Company which is subject to the naotification
and announcement requirements under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules. Further details are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 8 March 2022.

As at the date of this report, Smart Ascent has drawdown
HK$5,000,000 of the Second Loan.

Details of other material related party transactions entered into by the
Group which do not constitute connected transactions under the
Listing Rules for the year are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in “Connected and Related Party Transactions”
above, no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 9 June 2022, the third reading of a bill for cancelling the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) offsetting mechanism (the “Bill”)
was passed in the Legislative Council of Hong Kong. After the Bill
takes effect, employers can no longer offset employees’ severance
payments or long-service payments against the MPF derived from the
employer’s mandatory and voluntary contributions. The offsetting
mechanism will be cancelled starting from 2025. The matter
mentioned above will have impact to the Group’s provision for long
service payments (“LSP”). Upon the MPF offsetting mechanism is
cancelled, the Group can no longer deduct LSP from their portion of
MPF contributions. The abolition of the offsetting arrangement has no
retrospective effect. As at the date of this report, the exact effective
date of the abolition is yet to be determined and the detailed
arrangement is yet to be announced by the government. This is a
non-adjusting event after the reporting period as the event did not
relate to the obligation of the LSP at the end of the reporting period,
but reflects the circumstances (i.e. the law) that have arisen
subsequently. The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of the Bill to the Group. The Group is not yet in a position
to state whether the abolishment of the MPF offsetting mechanism
will result in a substantial change to the Group’s financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other material subsequent event
occurred after 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this report.

Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited #5EZE£ERAR AT

EXEHN

R EXHERBB XS IFMBEES I
RAFERIFEAEFMEEL TN FER
NGRSO RN NI 3 VAN
EENETERAFABREBRERANEZE
MEBEBRAEHL

BEHREE

R-ZFB-__FXANLA BRILEE=E
BRBUERGIMELRER((RES]) Hih#
SPER(DERD - RREMR  BETAH
URBERETRG REBRER 2 RESEE
BEMEHEXARIRKE S - BRAL DK
BB T _AFEIUE LM FRSH
AEERHEEHRE(EHRESD T
EBKTE BESEPRHTORR K&
B AR BB ERES MR KRR
Be BRREPRHELBEEPZE - RAR
SEH AEERNEREBAHARKRE
EBFARHERFRERM - R E
BIFABREH RAREHEFRERS
HRZEMRBEETLEBE  ERR
HEZENBERPIIER) - AEEE R
AR ZRHAKRE X E - AEEH K
EXRPAERABS UK ST EHASE
BT HEHEREIRERES -

BREXHEEEIN RZE-__F==
T HREREEAHRERD AEELE
BHEHMBARLEIE-



SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public during the year and
up to the date of this report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the directors.
Based on specific enquiry of the directors, the directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee (the “Committee”),
with written terms of reference, in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, for the purpose of reviewing and providing supervision
over the financial reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. The Committee comprises three
INEDs. The Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022 have been reviewed by the Committee. The Committee is of the
opinion that such financial statements comply with the applicable
accounting standards, and Stock Exchange’s and legal requirements,
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITOR

The Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year were
audited by Elite Partners CPA Limited, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as auditor of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Xie Yi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 July 2022
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elite
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To The Shareholders of
Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Extrawell
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 88 to 204,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
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REPORT (CONTINUED)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

(1) Impairment assessment of an associate

Key audit matters

PR EZ SR

FARFLER

AREZFESREESZIEFRHE R
REBE_T-__F=A=+—RHILFE
RAMBERRZEGRR/REENTH &
EFERREBEEREREAVBTRRN
HAEFZEARETRE AEFLE
HZEFREHEBSR -

(1) R—BBE Q[ ZREFGE

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has interest in an Our major audit procedures to address this matter

associate of approximately HK$320,365,000 includ

ed the following:

representing 49% equity interests in Smart Ascent EEEREZFBECEIEEXEFBENT

Limited.
R-ZZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H > B8£ER—H o
B 2 N A) 2 25 #9 320,365,000 7T+ ThIER
EEBRARZ49% s ©

For the purpose of impairment assessment, the
Group appointed an independent external valuer to
assess the recoverable amount of the interest in an °
associate.

HAGRENS ESE2EZEBE LB
EMTER—EHE AR EE 2T B &5 -

We had identified the impairment assessment of
interest in an associate as a key audit matter
because significant management judgement was
required to determine the recoverable amount for °
the interest in an associate.

EECDHANN —HBERR 2 S ZWER
HRAAREREE FRAREEEAFELEX
HETAETR —BBE R a2 #m 2 iE
k-l

We discussed with management whether any
impairment indicator exists and basis for the
impairment recognised;
EECHEREANRES FEEMBRETR
Ko e SRR B By B A

We discussed with management and relevant
professionals about the In-process R&D (as
defined in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements) of oral insulin product;
EECLHEEEBEEMBAEAZEEA LN ®AEBA
REESEZERETHF2AB(ERREEH
&M FE22) 5

We obtained and assessed the fair value
calculations methodology provided by the
management including but not limited to the
reasonableness of key assumptions applied (e.g.
operating margins, terminal growth rates and
discount rates), the accuracy and reliance of the
input data used; and

EEDERTAHEEBMEHR 2 AT ER
ERE BEETIRRAEREZERRE
MmEERM KABRERBBRER) 258
AR AR EEE AT R

We evaluated the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent external valuer
taking account its experience and qualifications.
EECMBIINEEERMCERE R
BHIE TERELRKRER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZBENHRE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BAREEBXEE@
(2) Valuation of convertible bonds under financial (2) RATZEHABEZZLREE
assets at fair value through profit or loss HTNzaaRESFHE
Key audit matters
MREZEE

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s investment in
convertible bonds classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss amounted to approximately
HK$634,907,000.

RZEZZF=ZA=+—RH' ESBEEARREK
AFEFAEG eREECTRRESFKED
634,907,0007% Tt ©

For the valuation, the Group appointed an independent
external valuer to assess the valuation amount of
convertible bonds under financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

REEMS BESECZEEINEDHERHIZ
ATFEFAEBGZZEREERE T2 RRESNEE
ok

The Group has applied valuation techniques to determine
the fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in
active markets. These valuation techniques, in particular
those that include significant unobservable inputs, involve
management using subjective judgements and
assumptions. With different valuation techniques and
inputs applied, the valuation results can vary significantly.
HRNRAERMSHRENERIE . SEECKA
HERNMREEEATE ZSEHERNIRERE
ZEBHERRR LEHBEERTAHEH ARE
ZEERMAE - 8RB R &G 1E MR A B
ABEBATRZEESR -

We had identified the valuation of convertible bonds as a
key audit matter because the valuation requires the
exercise of significant management estimation.
EECRUBRRESCHEBIISBREXRER R
REBHETEEREEHRELERME -

Our major audit procedures to address this
matter included the following:
EEREBEZFEIIEEZEFBEEOAT

° We obtained and understood the Group’s
valuation and accounting treatment for
convertible bonds under financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss;

e ETEZEEMBERTH BEEEYRAF
Bt \BERZzeMEEB T 2R
BEHREERGTERE:

° We evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodologies used by management for
the valuation of the convertible bonds;

e ETECRIMEEEMUBRKRESHE
iR zcAizE@Es:

° We evaluated the reasonableness and
appropriateness of the unobservable and
observable inputs used for the convertible
bonds; and

e EZFCDIMBUBMRESAER T
AHRERIBERGASBSEERE
&

° We evaluated the competency,
capabilities and objectivity of the
independent external valuer taking
account its experience and qualifications.

e EZEZENMEBUIBEEMZER -
BRILEEBN WTEBELRIER-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT (CONTINUED)
B % B R ()

&

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited #5EZE£ERAR AT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZBENHRE ()

#
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT (CONTINUED)
B % B R ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related action taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Ms. Chow Ka Li with Practising Certificate number
PO7809.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10th Floor,

8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

15 July 2022

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZBENHRE ()
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@ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeRmlEMEEREGR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &~ -~ =H=+—HIIFE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 7 FExT T& T

Revenue g 6 73,925 78,802
Cost of sales 55 B AR (36,369) (36,236)
Gross profit EH 37,556 42,566
Other income H A 7 1,536 6,205
Other gains and losses, net Hua s M EIEFE5E 8 160,618 (100,879)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIEER (26,292) (29,544)
Administrative expenses THEA (24,206) (23,890)
Share of results of an associate FE(E —EE e AR EEA (3,653) (2,879)
Finance costs B 7 B AR 10 (13,229) (11,242)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BrETEF AR, (Fi8) 9 132,330 (119,663)
Income tax expense FriS i 2 13 (1,239) -
Profit/(Loss) for the year REERA(FiE) 131,091 (119,663)
Other comprehensive income: Htt2mkzE:
Item that may be reclassified subsequently H 74 A] f£ B 37 7 2 = 18 25 Y

to profit or loss: IHH :

Exchange differences on translation of MEGINETS 2 [EH =

foreign operations 4,539 9,109

Other comprehensive income for the year 74 [ H i & M W 2= 4,539 9,109
Total comprehensive income/(expense) Z~ F E 2 H Uk %% (B )

for the year PR 135,630 (110,554)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
mEBRaREMEEKE K (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-_-f —ZT—-—%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Bt 5 FET FAT
Profit/(Loss) for the year DTFTATEEREE
attributable to: =R (E8) ¢
Owners of the Company VIN/NETEF SN 130,588 (121,098)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR ME 2 503 1,435
131,001 (119,663)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) A T A Tt EEREERH
for the year attributable to: W (X)) #%E:
Owners of the Company KRBIHER A 135,148 (111,990)
Non-controlling interests 1R R = 482 1,436
135,630 (110,554)
HK cents HK cents
Al oAl
Earnings/(Loss) per share for profit/  Zx A B#EHE AELRR
(loss) attributable to owners of the (BR)ZEREAN
Company: (E518) :
— Basic — HK 14 5.46 (5.07)
— Diluted — 5% 14 4.36 (5.07)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

RS B I AR R

As at 31 March 2022 W —ZE - =A=+—H

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Mo 5E FET FA T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Investment properties "EME 16 2,681 1,260
Property, plant and equipment ME - BME MERE 17 138,250 131,075
Right-of-use assets CRAEEE 18 10,140 12,488
Intangible assets BEEE 19 1,807 1,807
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEGFAEBRZZS®
profit or loss BE 20 634,907 466,322
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEMEA KD
other comprehensive income ZERMEE 21 - —
Interest in an associate S b RN P 22 320,365 324,018
Loan to an associate BT —EBE QR 23 14,500 16,118
Deferred tax assets LT IEE E 32 69 69
1,122,719 953,157
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories Ve 24 8,465 7,558
Trade and bills receivables B EWRAR R ERZE 25 7,813 9,130
Deposits, prepayments and e BAR IE &
other receivables H A i W R 26 6,491 2,263
Amount due from an associate JE U — i e ’& G5 23 36,089 41,947
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEFABEZE/
profit or loss BE 20 1,905 1,786
Pledged bank deposits BEFIRITER 27 21,738 21,688
Cash and bank balances B& RIBTES 28 111,881 126,710
194,382 211,082
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade and bills payables B ENERMENEE 29 6,456 6,692
Accruals, other payables and TEIRBA  EMEMRER
contract liabilities CRON=RE 30 38,078 33,893
Lease liabilities HEBE 31 2,194 1,771
Deferred income on government grants X T % B 2 iR FE g A 34 131 127
Tax payable FERT BB 17,204 15,410
64,063 57,893
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 130,319 153,189
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBEE
LIABILITIES 1,253,038 1,106,346
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
B MR & ()

As at 31 March 2022 R=—ZE=-—F=A=+—H

2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mg 5% T#E T TH& T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Convertible bonds AR E S 33 83,074 69,980
Lease liabilities HEaE 31 39 2,123
Deferred income on government grants BT % B 2 3R FE g A 34 5,001 4,949
88,114 77,052
NET ASSETS EEFHE 1,164,924 1,029,294
EQUITY =
Share capital B& 2N 35 23,900 23,900
Reserves i 37 1,141,753 1,006,605
Equity attributable to owners of the AKATEBEAEGER
Company 1,165,653 1,030,505
Non-controlling interests FEERER 40 (729) (1,211)
TOTAL EQUITY ERERE 1,164,924 1,029,294
On behalf of the Board RREFSZ

Xie Yi
EE
Director

EF

Wong Sau Kuen

EFHE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEESSER

Attributable to owners of the Company

92

KAREE AELR
Foreign Convertible
currency bonds Non-
Share  Share Capital Contribution translation equity FVTOCI Retained controlling
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve earnings Sub-total interests Total
BATE
AR
THRRES 2ERE FER
kx BROEE EAfE HBARKR ELRE BEREE 2RE REERA Pt [ £ gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TArT ThEx Thx TExr FTExT TEx TEx Tz ThEz TET TER
At1 Apri 2020 RZZ-ZF
mA—A 23900 191,738 6,542 4,839 20508 512,359  (83,086) 465,695 1,142,495 (2,647) 1,139,848
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - - — (121,008) (121,008) 1,435 (119,669)
Exchange differenceson &GN £ E £
translation of foreign JIENZE
operations - — - - 9,108 - — - 9,108 1 9,109
Total comprehensive 2EkE/(AX)
income/(expense) ot - - - - 9,108 - — (121,098 (111,990) 1,436 (110,554)
At 31 March 2021 and N_EZ-F
1 Apri 2021 ZA=t+-H
RZZ-—%
mA—H 23900 191,738 6,542 4,839 20616 512,359 (83,086) 344,597 1,030,505 (1,211) 1,029,294
Profit for the year REFER - - - - - - - 130,588 130,588 503 131,001
Exchange differenceson  #E BN EHEE
tranglation of foreign LEREH
operations - - - - 4,560 - - - 4,560 (21) 4,539
Total comprehensive PHMEEE
income - - - - 4,560 - — 130,588 135,148 482 135,630
At 31 March 2022 RZZE-=
“A=t+-8 23900 191,738 6,542 4,839 34,176 512,359  (83,086) 475,185 1,165,653 (729) 1,164,924
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
RAERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Ex - - —F=FA=+—HIFZ

2022 2021
—E-= —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities REEBHCRESRE
Profit/(Loss) before income tax B P13 B AT s 5, (5 18) 132,330 (119,663)
Adjustments for: FHEATIEE
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEEZTE 2,188 2,159
Depreciation of investment properties WEMEZITE 95 59
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - BEMEHBEZ2ITE 6,444 5,906
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BMELREZER
equipment 55 —
Reversal of impairment loss g5 REWRFREEEED
on trade receivables, net R (272) (2,730)
Reversal of impairment loss on inventories, net 17 & J7i & & 18 # [ )% 58 - (60)
Provision for impairment on loan to BERT—HEEE QaRE
an associate 15 2,353 -
Provision for impairment on amount due from & Uz — & Bt 4 N 7] 2 I8 R (A
an associate B 5,858 —
Change in fair value on financial assets BEATEAABRZEH
at FVTPL — investments in convertible EERATFEEZS -
bonds ARG IR E (168,585) 104,743
Change in fair value on financial assets % /A FEEA Tﬁ e
at FVTPL — Short term investment BEANTEEZS -
HESE (52) (40)
Share of results of an associate FEf — B A A T R 4R 3,653 2,879
Effective interest expense on ABMBEESFZERF SRS
convertible bonds 13,094 11,030
Imputed interest income from amount due FEY — B & R RIRIAZ
from an associate & FLE M A - (3,570)
Bank interest income AT E WA (343) (860)
Amortisation of deferred income on BT 8 Bh 2 3 T U A 4 35
government grants (128) (123)
Loan interest income from an associate KE—HEBEERFZER
2 WA (735) (739)
Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment loss B fE I R R E 5 18
on other receivables B ﬁ/ (#mE) 25 (1,094)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEAGEZMERX 135 212
Operating cash flows before movements LEESEHHI 2 KERS
in working capital mE (3,885) (1,887)
Increase in inventories FEE N (630) (1,633)
Decrease in trade and bills receivables B 5 1 M BE 2% e U 2 R 3,186 823
(Increase)/Decrease in deposits, prepayments & & - 78~ 5018 & H ) FE Uk
and other receivables R (), (4,212) 3,595
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and bills payables & 5 BN R LENZE
CRL 2,/ 38 1N (236) 453
Increase/(Decrease) in accruals, other payables & ?m BH - EMENR Iﬁ 54
and contract liabilities BRI A BN Chd 4,073 (2,159)
Cash used in operations EEMAzZES (1,704) (808)
Income tax paid B TSR (62) (44)
Net cash used in operating activities RETBFAZESFE (1,766) (852)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

FmERERER (B)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-= —ETE—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA T
Cash flows from investing activities REFHFELE RS RE
Bank interest income received EUER 1T R E WA 302 832
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE WEREE (9,628) (721)
Short term investment’s return received B U BRI & B =R - 40
Increase in pledged bank deposits B IR R 1T 15 5RE N (50) (1995)
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFAZESEE (9,376) (44)
Cash flows from financing activities METHMEECHESRE
Repayment for lease liabilities EEHEAE (1,800) (1,692)
Repayment on interest expenses on BEHEAENEMX
lease liabilities (135) (212)
Net cash used in financing activities METEMAZESEE (1,935) (1,904)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RE& KRS EEERA B FHE (13,077) (2,800)
Effect of foreign exchange rate change NIEERSFH O FE (1,752) 3,073
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHAzHELEESZEHEHIEH
of year 126,710 126,437
Cash and cash equivalents atend ofyear TR RERBEEZEEEHR 111,881 126,710
Analysis of the balances of cash and RERBELESHEBR 2E 8
cash equivalents o
Cash and bank balances Re RBITHEES 111,881 126,710
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 B 1% 3R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 —E - —F=A=1+—HI-FE

GENERAL

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The address of its
principal place of business is Suites 2206-08, 22/F, Devon
House, Taikoo Place, 979 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company (together with
the subsidiaries referred to as the “Group”). The principal
activities of its subsidiaries and an associate are set out in notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June

2021

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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O NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(2) APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS (2) FE A &isT &8 MK HE E 8
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ([BEEEREED ) REH
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) & 5T 7K (@)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue b) EEMEERERZHE
but not yet effective EEMEREER R EE
7] &
The Group has not early applied the following new and NEBEWRIBEEET AT E BMHEH
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet REMZHFHE BB B RELERE
effective: {BET 7N -
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
RUTBEHR 2 &M R
ZEEHBEXR
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments 1 January 2023
BERMBRERAEITHR R &N REEEE] —E_=%—-H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BEEMBMEERNFEIRUEFIA) R SIESRE —E__F—-H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and A date to be
and HKAS 28 its Associate or Joint Venture determined
BEEMBRERNEI0FREAEG RELZEHEBERAXGLCEMEEITIAEE £ BH
sHER| 2858 (BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and 1 January 2023
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

BEGTEREH (BTA) BEPEARDIFRDNEERESESHNRAE 2 —T-_=F—F—H
B (ZE-EF)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS  Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
Practice Statement 2
EEQHREREIRRERSNBR SHHERR —E-=%—f—H
SRBNEHImEE25 (BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
ER G ERES (BFIK) BEAEFZER —E-_=F—R—H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising 1 January 2023
from a Single Transaction
BB ERE12% (BFTR) BE-QHMELBERBBERCBEENIE —ET-_=%—-—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before 1 January 2022
Intended Use
BEHEEHERE16H (BETR) ME - BB RRE - ERTEREANZAEHRE “E--%—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
BEEEHEREITH (BETR) FEMEEH -BITEAIKAE “E--%—A—H
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2018-2020 cycle 1 January 2022
BRI BHREERBFTAR) EAPBRELEN T N\FE_Z-_TFEHEN —T-_F—H—H
FE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(2) APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs, will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date for classification of liabilities
as current or non-current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current or
non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the
liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are met
at the end of the reporting period, even if the lender
does not test compliance until a later date; and

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not
affect its classification as current or non-current only if the
entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(2) APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (Continued)

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 March
2022, the application of the amendments will not result in
reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related
transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts
are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information
relating to material transactions, other events or conditions is
itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must not
obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an entity
applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about an
accounting policy is material to its financial statements.
Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited #5EZE£ERAR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(2) APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
(Continued)

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s significant
accounting policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require
items in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty — that is, the accounting
policy may require such items to be measured at monetary
amounts that cannot be observed directly and must instead be
estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an accounting
estimate to achieve the objective set out by the accounting
policy. Developing accounting estimates involves the use of
judgements or assumptions based on the latest available,
reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in
HKAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(3) BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1

3.2

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and the
provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which
concern the preparation of financial statements. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #HZE—

(3) BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5 %5 ¥ 2% B 5E (4R
T —GFZA=T-ALFE

me

(3) #mBE%E @)

3.2 Basis of measurement (Continued) 32 FFEEE @)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value HRIEAFTEETR SN/ T
and a valuation technigque that unobservable inputs are to BLANEREEEM G R T &
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the R ABBETE A FENGE
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial FRBESRXGFRE S BE
recognition the results of the valuation technique equals %}] FTHRFEHEBIANERER
the transaction price. RHME -

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value oh - M BHmEmM S - 2 FE

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based FFTEERRATETEH ASER

on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value BREE kE ASE ﬁ’& FEE
measurements are observable and the significance of the E’J E MEHRE— Zh=

inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which CEEIEEY T

are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in ° — R ABHEAETER
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that aJr = HH e s BN 15 /Y ) BB
the entity can access at the measurement date; M EHEREEREEHN

WECREHE)

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices o F_MBMAHEAEEEN
included within Level 1, that are observable for the BEMNEESEEAEBER
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and BWMASEGIAE R

NERE AN - &

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset e F-R|MAHEBEAREEN

or liability. BENTAERREARE-

3.3 Functional and presentation currency 33 heEERE2HEE
The consolidated financial statements are presented in LA BEHRRTVAB T (HET])
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”), which is the same as the 23 BTN ARRAGIZHES

functional currency of the Company. The amounts stated
are rounded to the nearest HK$1,000 unless otherwise
stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 i —_ZE_-__F=H

= il E [

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the

financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated

in full in preparing the consolidated financial
Unrealised losses are also eliminated

statements.
unless the

transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit

or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the

dates of acquisition or up to the dates of

disposal, as

appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to

the financial statements of subsidiaries to

bring their

accounting policies into line with those used by other

members of the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,

the profit or

loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration

received and the fair value of any retained int

erest and (ii)

the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-

controlling interest. Amounts previously re

cognised in

other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed

of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s

share of subsequent changes in eq
comprehensive income is attributed to
controlling interests even if this results in
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

uity. Total
such non-
those non-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.2

4.3

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or has rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and the ability to use its
power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a
joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of the
Group’s interest in the associates are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.3

4.4

Associate (Continued)

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in an associate has
been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition
date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.4

4.5

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the
basis of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit.
However, the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce
the individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair
value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value in
use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss
and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AN
,%/T\l:

BF %5 ¥R AR BT R (48D

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period with the effect of any
changes in estimate encountered for a prospective basis.
The annual rates/estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings Over the lease terms of the
relevant leasehold land
and 50 years if shorter

6.67%-20%

10%-30%

Plant and equipment

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Construction in progress represents properties under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalized borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction,
if any. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when the construction is completed and the properties
are ready for intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.6 Investment property

4.7

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.

The land component of leasehold investment property is
accounted for as right-of-use assets and included in the
investment properties.

The building component of investment property is
measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment (if any). Depreciation is
calculated using a straight-line method to allocate the
depreciable amounts over the estimated useful lives of
30.25 years to 50 years or over the lease terms of the
relevant leasehold land.

The residual values and estimated useful lives of
investment property are reviewed, and adjusted as
appropriate, at each financial year end. The effects of any
revision are included in the statement of profit or loss
when the changes arise.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.7 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are
short-term leases and/or (i) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has elected
not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12
months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment, that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited #5EZE£ERAR AT

@4) EXEFBER @

4.7 HE @

fEBAFEA

FrEHE(TwmAKLEHE SR
ERE)ERBBRRIRERNE
ATRAEEELATEERE HE
BAfEH et BRER  BED
BOBESHAENAE &5
HEEEARKEENHEETE
N o REBD BEBAREBE
BEARRES B SAAEBPERR12
BAMBHERREAELEERMA
EAaBE -EZSHERBNEE
NRERBEHRRERALS -

HHHERBREEEEHE
AEERKERHEHEERRRER
REREEREEYS12M8A %
FRATESBEEERENHRA
ERERE ANURKEBEELE
WHERAERA#R L EHES
AEEBEEEHENHEMNTKR
HEHANERAIEMLRETR
R R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
15 BB AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(4 EREEHE @)

4.7 Leases (Continued) 4.7 HE @)

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets are recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liabilities); (i) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (i) any initial direct costs incurred by
the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset, restoring the site on which the underlying asset is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease. Except
for right-of-use assets that meet the definition of an
investment property or a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the Group applies the revaluation
model, the Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-of-use assets at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment property as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment
property are presented within “investment properties”.

Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities are recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.7 Leases (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The following payments for the right of use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable; (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liabilities by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liabilities; (i)
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and (i) remeasuring the carrying amount
to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a
change in future lease payments arising from change in
an index or rate, a change in the lease term, a change in
the in substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental expense, over the
term of the lease.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 Et?t

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments

()

Financial assets

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVTOCI. Debt investments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest rate
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”): Financial
assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 Et?t

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income are measured
at fair value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss of financial assets, subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (‘ECL”) on trade and bills receivables and
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these
are ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment loss of financial assets, subject

to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade and bills receivables using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based
on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss of financial assets, subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’'s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than 30 days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment loss of financial assets, subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of financial assets is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
15 BB AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv)  Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were
incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are initially measured at fair value and
financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables and the liability component of
convertible bonds issued by the Company are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(v)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into their respective items
on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as
an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the bonds into
equity, is included in equity (convertible bonds
equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in convertible bonds
equity reserve will be transferred to share capital
and share premium). Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry dates, the balance stated
in convertible bonds equity reserve will be released
to the retained earnings. No gain or loss is
recognised upon conversion or expiration of the
option.
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(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
15 BB AR M A ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 i —_ZE_-__F=H
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(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(viii) Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the

obligation specified in the relevant
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity

contract is

instruments

to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or
in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of that

liability, the equity instruments issu

ed are the

consideration paid and are recognised initially and

measured at their fair value on the date

the financial

liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair
value of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are

measured to reflect the fair value of

the financial

liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is

recognised in profit or loss for the year.

4.9 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at

cost, and

subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to

their present location and condition. Cost i

s calculated

using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Costs necessary to make the sale include
costs directly attributable to the sale and non

incremental
-incremental

costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.10 Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

Sales of pharmaceutical products

Customers obtain control of the pharmaceutical products
when the goods are delivered to and have been
accepted. Revenue is thus recognised upon when the
customers accepted the pharmaceutical products. There
is generally only one performance obligation. Invoices are
issued when goods is delivered. The Group’s trading
terms with its customers are mainly based on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required. The customers are generally given a
credit period for 120 to 180 days, extending up to one
year for some major customers.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 i —_ZE_-__F=H
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(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Revenue (Continued)

Other income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis on
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Contract liabilities

the principal

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.

4.11 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and

deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or

disallowable for income tax purposes and i

s calculated

using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for

goodwill and recognised assets and liabilitie

s that affect

neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax

liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary

differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates

appropriate to the expected manner in which
amount of the asset or liability is realised or

the carrying
settled and

that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the

end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised
temporary differences arising on inve

for taxable
stments in

subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,

except where the Group is able to control th

e reversal of

the temporary difference and it is probable that the

temporary difference will not reverse in the
future.

foreseeable
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —E - —_F=H=1+—HILFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

@4) EXEFBEER @

411 Fr 8% (@)

4.11 Income taxes (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

4.12 Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the Company/group entities
in currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it/they operate(s) (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at
the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange
differences are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.12 Foreign currency (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates

fluctuate significantly during the period, in whi
rates approximating to those ruling when the

ch case, the
transactions

took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign currency translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as

appropriate). Exchange differences recognise

d in profit or

loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long-term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive

income and accumulated in equity as forei
translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the

gn currency

cumulative

exchange differences recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve relating to that operation up to the date
of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the

profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation

on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as

assets and

liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the foreign

currency translation reserve.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #HZ%

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.13 Employee benefits

()

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

4.14 Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

property, plant and equipment/investment property
under cost model;

right-of-use assets; and

investments in subsidiaries and an associate.
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@ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES @) EXEHHE®

(Continued)

4.14 Impairment of assets (other than financial SV EEREBE(EMEERMD)
assets) (Continued) (#8)
If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value WEEzZYWE S5 (BIAFE
less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is WMEEKAEFERHEEZRA
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying EVBFLORNEEERE ZEE
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. ZEBERZREE T WE S EE -
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense WEEBBINEERAEH T BKRIE
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a HEAEERE S —IKEEBEMBEIR
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case LHBZEGRCEAR EUIHB
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease T REBBEINBREZGSRS
under that HKFRS. SRS ERWE BEMHRE -
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the WMEZBBLEHEEE  BlZESZ
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised EZEAERAZELEF B 2G
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the TRkl &5 HERINE ZBRE®E
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying BETEEREBWMZEERNBEFE
amount that would have been determined had no WEEAREEGENREEET
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior Z AR E ° B & 18 8 o] BN B A
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as REWA BRIEBEBEERES
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at — KRB B BREEAIREHS
a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case BAR EHEBLT  BEEIE
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a 5 @ B 1B 35 S7 18 B 5 B 75 3R &5
revaluation increase under that HKFRS. B8 B E(H1EE -
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows FERBENIREEHAEEEES
expected to be derived from the asset, discounted to their ZEEFAEBEERE  WHEAKR
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects MEAMEHSERBEREZ
current market assessments of the time value of money ERZEEXRRESCELEEUBA
and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit. ZREBZHRAITRREBEHEIFTRE

HE -

4.15 Borrowing cost 415 B R R K
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the FTE B AN E E A R R A
period in which they are incurred. TmARER o

4.16 Provisions and contingent liabilities 416 BERIAREE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing EARS BEEHEE EERE
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive SHEER M LGB L &E
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is M BZ&BEN=eHa M
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that i BlemkkEERRES S
can be reliably estimated. B BERREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —E - —_F=H=1+—HILFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

@4) EXEFBEER @

416 BERIAEE @

4.16 Provisions and contingent liabilities

(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from
past events but is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be
met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability and
it is not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no
reliable estimate can be made.

4.17 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

fid S K RJ RE 78 B H A 25
gz eBARASEMT  AIZE
ERHEBEAXREBE ERHE
R 25 2 HE2 AT R BR SN o fE LA
BANERLE-HIZHARS
HrHAEEREFEZARE
T TeRBERARAE R
HAR N s 2 R BRI -

IRBBEEREBEFMHMELEZ
RAEREE EARTHAEFTER
HEBEREEBENGZ 2 ERAERESR
EHEBEESBERECHASE
FAAEMARBHER -

i 7= &= B 7B L [R) I {8 Bl & HE &
£ RIEHdEMTAEZHD
BEFAERIERABE LTS
RIEE M BRI AER

AEESRHETIHUNBTEES
AREREEELENRZER -
fii B 7] BE 75 2 Bt — I8 5t B AR {E 3k
REBEBEEREEZHEE MHRREE
Flas lernHBEaREgses s
EMIBRIELR A B 15 R K R
& BRIEH IR EEIEL 7] (b 5T
2 i ZE BE  BE B 3R

B AT 15 BY

EREAEEERKIBEZHE
By - i AN 6% B R 38 T P A BT A A6
e FBIRE AT ERER -

Annual Report 2022 = @ FFR

127



& @

@ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.17 Government grants (Continued)

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income on government grants and are credited
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

4.18 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the year in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

4.19 Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #HZE—

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.19 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(5) CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of interest in an associate

The Group’s interest in an associate represents interest in
Smart Ascent Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Smart Ascent
Group”). The major asset held by the Smart Ascent Group is an
intangible asset in relation to an in-process research and
development project (the “In-process R&D”) involving an oral
insulin product (the “Product”). As at 31 March 2022, the
Group’s interest in an associate is amounted to
HK$320,365,000 (2021: HK$324,018,000). The directors of the
Company have performed an impairment assessment on the
Group’s interest in an associate as at 31 March 2022 and
2021, with reference to a valuation report prepared by an
independent qualified valuer and are of the view that no
impairment is required for both years.

In making the assessment, key assumptions adopted by the
management include that Smart Ascent Group would be
successful in completing the clinical trials, obtaining the
regulatory approvals from the relevant government bodies and
launching the Product.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HiZ —E - _F=A=1+—HILFE

(5) CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables, loan
to an associate and amount due from an
associate

The impairment losses on trade receivables, loan to an
associate and amount due from an associate of the Group are
estimated based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis performed by the management. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each counterparty. If the financial
conditions of customers or an associate of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.

Fair value of investments in convertible bonds

The fair value of convertible bonds invested by the Group is
calculated using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques are
certified by independent qualified valuers before being
implemented for valuation and are calibrated to ensure that
outputs reflect market conditions. Valuation models established
by valuers make the maximum use of market inputs and rely as
little as possible on the Group’s specific data. The model
involves estimates on time to expiration, risk free rate, share
price, volatility, discount rate and others. As at 31 March 2022,
the carrying amount of the convertible bonds as a whole
invested by the Group is HK$634,907,000 (2021:
HK$466,322,000).

(5)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(6) REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue for the year represents the fair value of amounts
received and receivable for goods sold to external customers,
less discounts and sales-related taxes for the year, and is
analysed as follows:

(6)

FREAKGZERIIEETPHEE M
BEWEBUKEAZ A FEAKRFER
ZIMRHERBERE - 2T

2022 2021
—E-= —E - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TE T FAT
Manufacturing of pharmaceutical BUEBEG AR — 2,
products, at a point in time 73,925 78,802

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising from
contracts with customers in existence at the reporting date:

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 and therefore the information about the
remaining performance obligation is not disclosed for contracts
that have an original expected duration of one year or less and
also for those performance obligation which are regarded as
satisfied as invoiced.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the board of
directors that makes strategic decisions.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
products they provide. Each of the Group’s operating segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products which
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summarised details of the
reportable and operating segments are as follows:

(@ the manufacturing segment engages in the development,
manufacture and sales of pharmaceutical products
(“Manufacturing”);

(b)  the trading segment engages in the marketing and distribution
of imported pharmaceutical products (“Trading”); and

(c) the gene development segment engages in the
commercial exploitation and development of genome-
related technology (“Gene Development”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(6) REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment revenue and results

6) MR R DEER @®

The following is the Group’s revenue and results from operation

by reportable and operating segments.

PEWRBERFEE

RTRAREERRAZ2HLEEDHE
DRERFENEE -

Manufacturing Trading Gene Development Total
b3 g5 ERMAR )
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E--f -T--% ZBE--f -—FT-—% ZB--E -—F--F ZB--F -—F-_—-€
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TER TR TERT TAT TER TAT
Revenue Yia
Sales to external customers AIREFHEE 73,925 78,802 - - - - 73,925 78,802
Segment resuits PEEE 2,132 4,027 (4,168) (4,416) (90) (96) (2,126) (485)
Unallocated other income AR 2 E A 1,536 6,205
Unallocated other gains and AAEZEMRERER
losses, net FE 160,374 (104,743)
Administrative expenses THER (10,707) (6,731)
Interest expenses on convertible AT AR (& 5 F| 8.6
bonds (13,094 (11,030
Share of results of anassociate  fE{5 — BB L AT £%E (3,653) (2,879
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BAEHAERN/ (BE) 132,330 (119,663)
Income tax expense FERRAX (1,239) -
Profit/(Loss) for the year REFHN/(BE) 131,001 (119,663)

Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned by/(loss from)
each segment without allocation of other income, other gains
and losses, net, certain administrative expenses, effective
interest expense on convertible bonds and share of results of
an associate. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker, being the board of directors, for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

o8N (EER) IBEY &5 B HE
WA-Et s R EEFERE & T
BER ARkESF 2EREFERX
REE—FHBERRNEEZBERT
BB BN (EEZER) -
TR ERIELRRRFIEERTE
FREERRE(NEFTG)NFESTA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

(6) REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6) RS EER @

(Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities THEERAESE
The following is the Group’s assets and liabilities by reportable AR AZANEEE 255K LD EE|

and operating segment.

Manufacturing Trading
S g5
2022 2021 2022 2021

—E--f -—E--% ZB--f —ZE--fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THER FET TERT TAT

DZEBERBE-

Gene Development Total
HEMR @zt
2022 2021 2022 2021

S¥-F ZF--F ZRCCF ZFCF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THL TER THL

Segment assets FEEE
Segment assets PEEE 194,340 182,186 66,063 69,338
Financiel assets at fair value BRAFEHABELZ

through profit or loss — CREE-

investments in convertible BRREFKE

bonds
Interest in an associate i -UNG

s

Corporate and other assets TEREMEE

Total assets EEBT

Segment liabilities FEERE

Segment liabilities HEEE 64,376 58,561 1,211 5,092
Convertible bonds R ES

Corporate and other liabilties M2 REMEE

15 7 260,418 251,531

634,907 466,322

320,365 324,018
101,411 122,368

1,317,101 1,164,239

64 64 65,651 63,717
83,074 69,980
3,452 1,248

Total liabilties REEE 152,177 134,945
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and oL ES ?Tfs SEREERSERSEEZER
allocating resources between segments: ms :

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other than o BRIBEATEEAIBRS ISR EE

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss —
investments in convertible bonds, short term investment,
interest in an associate and corporate and other assets;
and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other °
than convertible bonds and corporate and other liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

6) MR R DEER @®

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers
is presented based on the location of the customers and
distributors. Information about the Group’s non-current assets
is presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

(Continued)
Other segment information HitpEER
Manufacturing Trading Gene Development Total
i g5 HEREAR ast
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
ZB-ZHf -“Z--% B "B B "B ZBIZE -“T-o-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TAT TEn TAT THx FEL T FHL
Amounts included in the measure 5+ A\ % 3% FI 55 8
of segment profit or loss: HEZHE:
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #75 [ # i 6,690 5,982 - 2,010 - - 6,690 7,992
Unallocated depreciationand kA I E R
amortisation B 2,037 132
8,727 8,124
(Reversal of)/Provision for B RS RER
impairment loss on trade BREE) %E
receivables, net HE (272) 24 - (2,971) - - (272 (2,730)
Loss on disposal of property, ~ HENE - BERR
plant equipment fEzEE - - 55 - - - 55 -
Unallocated provision for ERF-HBENF
impaimentloss onloantoan ~ HEBEZ AN
associate EAE - - - - - - 2,353 -
Unallocated provision for el d=UNG|
impairment loss on amount FEZREER
due from an associate 2R ERE - - - - - - 5,858 -
Provision for/(Reversal of) Hip KB EB
impairment loss on other BEE/(BE)
receivables 25 (151) - (943) - - 25 (1,094)
Reversal of impairmentlosson 7 & EE B
inventories, net BEFE - (60) - - - - - (60)
Geographical information ih 2 & R
The Group’s operations are located in the People’s Republic of REBZEBMURPEAREM
China (the “PRC”) (Country of domicile) and Hong Kong. ([HRE])(FIER) KES -

BERXBIEEFZASEKmZE
BIOBREFREHEBMEREY - B
RASEERBEEZENNIREE
EMEUEZS -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(6) REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6) WK DEER @m
(Continued)

Geographical information (Continued) i 3 & R (@)
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REIIEEF Z W= ERBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F Z—Z®-C —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT FE&ET T T
Hong Kong & - — 3,612 3,862
The PRC Fh 73,925 78,802 484,131 482,904
73,925 78,802 487,743 486,766
Note: Non-current assets exclude financial assets at fair value through profit or M :ERBEETERIEAFEEFT AR
loss and deferred tax assets. ZERMEENEERBEE -
Information about major customers FEREFER
No individual customer accounted for over 10% of the Group’s RZMBEEERN BMERPE 2K
total revenue for both years. REB AW BBE10% ©
(7) OTHER INCOME (7) HalA
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FAET
Bank interest income |7 LB HA 343 860
Rental income HEWA 209 -
Government grants (note) BURT # B (B 7E) 249 1,040
Imputed interest income from amount & Y — & B & N B ZRIE 2
due from an associate HEFBWA - 3,570
Loan interest income from an associate & B — BBt A 7 2
BB WA 735 735
1,536 6,205
Note: Government grants of approximately HK$121,000 (2021: HK$917,000) iz - R AEEMKAZERFHEBE L
recognised as other income are awarded to the Group by the PRC 121,000/ ;o (= & = — 4 : 917,00078
government as incentives primarily to encourage the development of the )V BEBRFE TAER 2 BZEA
Group and the contribution to the local economic development. The WE TEATEAEEREREEH
remaining balances are related to the acquisition of property, plant and oIk R BB B2 A4S RA JY B LR
equipment (see details in note 34). The government grants are one-off with BYE MERXEAERGEE RN
no specific condition attached for both years. 34) WMEFEZBF@HEH AKX

TERESR - 30 B 7 B AGR 1
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 8 Htt=m REBEFE

2022 2021
—=E=-= — T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FATT
Loss on disposal of property, plantand HE W% - ME RZE 2 BB
equipment (55) -
Change in fair value on financial assets 1R A FEFABRZ S REE
at fair value through profit or loss NFEEE - A RREFEE
— investments in convertible bonds 168,585 (104,743)
Change in fair value on financial assets ZAFEABRZZEMEE
at fair value through profit or loss AVPEEY - RHKEE
— short term investment 52 40
Provision for impairment loss on loan to B 2 F — 8 & A 7 2w E & 18
an associate BiE (2,353) -
Provision for impairment loss on amount [ I — & B 4 A B 2008 2 R E
due from an associate E B (5,858) -
(Provision for)/Reversal of impairment 4t JiE U 3% 18 el (B B 18 (B ) 7
loss on other receivables O] (25) 1,094
Reversal of impairment loss on trade & 5 JiE U BE 2R (B B9 18 B [0 % 58
receivables, net 272 2,730
160,618 (100,879)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE PSR M R ()

(9) PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX (9) BRATBHAER,(EE)
2022 2021
=== —=E - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FHTT
Profit/(Loss) before income tax is BRETSHATEHN,(B8)
arrived at after charging/(crediting): 2k GEA) FHRE
Auditor’s remuneration % EUAD B & 780 760
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESEINE 2,188 2,159
Depreciation of investment properties 1% & ) 3 47 & 95 59
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENMKEITE
equipment 6,444 5,906
Cost of inventories recognised as MRAEEBRAZETE
expenses (note) B (BT 3) 24,021 27,519
Reversal of impairment loss on FTERESERR F5E
inventories, net - (60)
Research and development cost T 3% B AX 444 2,999
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXRA(BEESHM)
emoluments)

Salaries and allowances e NKoERL 19,886 19,549
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & K48 ) 5 21 £t 3% 2,555 1,221
Note: The amount represents the cost of materials that used to produce the iz ZeBmEAREESE ROMERA - =

goods, excluding the direct labour costs and the manufacturing BEEEATRANEEEERA -
overheads.
(10) FINANCE COSTS (10) B & B <
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH& T FA& T
Interest expenses on convertible bonds  A] # i% & % 7| B 5 & 13,094 11,030
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEaBEMBERX 135 212
13,229 11,242
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
15 BB AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(11) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S (MNESRESTHRAEMS
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the vyear, ANEERBEALLTRALEEERD T
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong BKOFENES e (TE A B &
Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: (N
Contributions to
retirement benefit
Fees Salaries and allowance scheme Total
e FeRER RABAGEGR @t
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

—B-_fF -—E-—% ZB--f —E--—F —B-_F —T--—-F ZB--Ff —ZE-—%
Notes  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik TERT TR TET THEL TER FTHET TER TET

Name of director ~EE#H 4

Xie Yi EIE (@) 70 70 1,316 1,316 - - 1,386 1,386
Lou i =177 (8) 70 70 487 487 - - 557 557
Cheng Yong 258 (8 70 70 643 643 - - 713 713
Wong Sau Kuen T51E (@) 70 70 852 852 18 18 940 940
Liu Kwok Wah BEE (@) 70 70 995 995 18 18 1,083 1,083
Lu Zhigjang * EHR (@) - 9 - 245 - - - 344
Fang Lin Hu FRE (b) 70 70 - - - - 70 70
Xue Jing Lun ERf (b) 70 70 - - - - 70 70
Jin Song 21 (b) 70 70 - - - - 70 70
560 659 4,293 4,538 36 36 4,889 5,233
Mr. Lu Zhigiang retired on 28 August 2020, the amount of fees included @ EX@tER-_ZE_ZTFNA_-_1+N
payable for the period 1 April 2020 up to the date of his retirement. BRI ZEseBeEn S _=F
MA—BEHREBBHZEMNKIE-
Notes: Bt 5 -
(@  Executive directors @ HITES
(o)  Independent non-executive directors ) BIUFHITES
Xie Yi is also the chief executive officer of the Company (“CEQ”) BRI AN DB ITHAF(ITHZ
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services H) HEilEEZEMeEEELETT
rendered by him as the CEQO. BEHTIREERE 2B S -
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for tiis T ESESME T MR EIREEH
their services in connection with the management of the affairs. EEEEFMRSEREDL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(11) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S ANEERESTHAEMS
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (48)

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown LTl BIERTESME IHESE
above are for their services as the directors of the Company. EARRBEFZ REEL -

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors RZMBEEE AN @ 4N & B I & [ (F 10
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as BEEYNME  EAIMAREBSKA
compensation for loss of office for both years. None of the B 7 BB S EABREE - NZm
directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for BEEAN BECRNE=ESTHEXRE
both years. EWEEA B £ -

(12) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS, (12) & NBEEHFMAL EEA
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS AND EMEeREEER
EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS
(@) The five highest paid individuals (@) ENBSFHFEMAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AEBRAUESHEMALTFRSA
Group, five (2021: four) were directors of the Company —E-—F:NZ)AERNARE
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note = HE2MeEY RN LXK
11 above. The emoluments of the remaining one individual MR -HE2-_ZE-_—F=H=+
for the year ended 31 March 2021 was as follows: —BILEFE - HA—RB AL 2B
SWT :

2022 2021

—=E=-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FAET

Salaries and allowance e KRRy - 603

Retirement benefit scheme RIKE I EI R
contributions - 18

- 621
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15 BB AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(12) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS, (1R UESHFMAL BEEA
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS AND EMeREERA @
EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS (Continued)

(@) The five highest paid individuals (Continued) (@ BfuESFMA L@
The emoluments of each of the above highest paid LS HESFMALTCREER
individuals (excluding the directors of the Company) were RAIZEF)2ME&N T T3 &
all within the following bands: A :
2022 2021
—E-= —EF-—F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T - 1

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office, and no highest paid
individual has waived or, agreed to waive any

emoluments.

(b) Share option scheme

On 24 August 2012, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme (the
“Scheme”), as the share option scheme adopted by the

REZEMEFEAR - N B ER
IfusEESFMALINME - F
RMAREBE AR 2 KRB
BERmE MMESSHFMAL
HMELFRBZRETAHE

(b) B A% #E 5T &

RZE——FNA=-+WTA" =&
N ) B B O B 4 3T B IR AT 2
([Zat8) ERAXRARZ

Company on 8 August 2002 expired on 14 August 2012. T2 —F N\ A\ B RN 2B E

The Scheme became effective on 29 August 2012 after
obtaining approval from the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The Scheme provides incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s directors (including independent non-
executive directors), other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of
the Group, and any non-controlling interests in the

Company’s subsidiaries.

FEER=ZTE—=—FNA+THEAH
@ - At Bl ERISE R AT £
ZESHRERNR _T——F/\A
“THABER BRIFREMT A
BUORRERT B AIZET 88 8 &%
BESA+HFR—EER -

ZAt Bl S B AR EE ERINED
BRZEER2EERHER R
- ZS2EERSEER
BRARAER(BREBIIFANTT
5%) AEEZHEMBEER K&K
BeEmasRBEHEER  AEE
BEP EARRNEB R R 2 E[

AR 2 o
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(12) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS, (1 ENEESFMAL BEEA
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS AND EMEREERF @
EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b) HEMRFEFHE (@)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or MARNAESE e THRABK
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their TERFHFEE 2 (FMEE AR
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the TR BAELIMEE L IEHR
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any TTESHE o IO MR EM12
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an B AEERARNGEBRRKE
independent non-executive director of the Company, or VIERITEERBEE Z(EMBE
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares AT Z ERBRE FRBBE
of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate ARABREMERE ZETR®D
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the 20.1% @ 3k 428 (IZ B A D 7 j%
date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any PRIFHBBZERGE) BB
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in 5,000,000/ 7T * AIZES= S AR &R
advance in a general meeting. AE FERRHRLE -

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in EE AR EZ B B#EF218
writing within 21 days from the date of the offer, upon A RIXNEHIB T ZEEK
payment of nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the RE®%  NEMEHNEDERE
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted ZEZ -FTREBRE ZITEE
shall be determined by the directors at their absolute HES2ENBERE  HERE
discretion, but in any event shall not be more than 10 M NRENEIREZ S B BT
years from the date of the offer of the share options. The 10F - ARAEFARIX T B &
directors of the Company may at their absolute discretion ZREBISETIEMFBE -

impose any vesting period at the date of grant.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by BREZITEERNRESEET -
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) WA EERANT=ZFFR Z2H5
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in E (AR RIKRGOGRE LA BE
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of BRXETEHBRERMK 2 W™
grant; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s B iARRBEOREBEER LA
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation BRI A A& ¥ HEBIFSH R
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding BRAR FHWTE : i)
the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the AaROREL BB CHEE -

Company’s shares on the date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to BRI N A AED KR

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting. BaRREASRZ 2 #&EF -

From the effective date of the Scheme to 31 March 2022, BEZtala A E—T - —

no share options have been granted, exercised, cancelled —A=+—HIHHE BEER

or lapsed under the Scheme. ERBEZTEIERD - 178 - 5
SHI R o
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(12) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS, il
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS AND EMERE
EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS (Continued)

iR ¢k 48 A 5t &8

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contribution to the
MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest
immediately.

The retirement benefits cost of the MPF Scheme charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represents contributions payable
to the fund by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-sponsored retirement benefit
scheme organised by the relevant local government
authority in the PRC. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute, based on a certain percentage of the salaries
of its employees, to the retirement benefit scheme and
have no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed in the central
pension scheme. The Group has no forfeiture of pension
scheme contributions (i.e. contributions processed by the
employer on behalf of the employee who has exited the
scheme prior to vesting of such contributions). As at 31
March 2022, no forfeited contribution under the pension
scheme of the Group is available for deduction of
contribution payable in coming years.

(c) Retirement benefit schemes (c)

REBE2MAEFEREGER
1B 8 i &% <2 58 &l 1 2T & 58
([REEFE]  -RESETETD
1B I 58 6 14 R FE & 5F G H 53 58
FIEABEESTEIEERER - ®
Heddl v EERASB 2 EE
PABE RESZEERBYL
ZEAZES - BIEBERESFE 2
RA - BEREEE S BIARG
EEHIZRAEE L ERFE 2
HE - AEBEF@ERESFE 2
M — 5 ARIBE & 1F 4R
Ko RIBRELFTE  EERE
EEHEEEB BB KANSY
MBS EEL IR FAME
78U A £ [R & 7% #30,000 7T ° 58
BerrE M ERENREERE -

RiFERakEtE2EEERT
Bk 2 B8 2 5 8RR F AR
BASBERASRANEEL K-
NESZHK-

REFEzHHAMBRAREES M
R B A 8 1 5 AT 4 B8 4B A 2 B
REBBRRBFGFTEKE - {3
AREREEEH S ZETED
LR R EAE SRR BB F
RO - WEEE R B R K
CHBRKREBREMZE—FEF-
R RR R 5T B R A&
EMEEEFBHEZBENES -
AN £ @ 3 R R K & 5T &l
KRN EZEFEBIAEENR
FERHZTENESEERME
H)o R B —EFE=HF=+—
H AEEWERKESTETH
BRI ERTARNBRAREE
FEATHESK ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(13) INCOME TAX

The amount of income tax expense in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents:

(13) Fr B

FAeBmhHEMEEKERFTZHAE
Bisz i BRIR TS

2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Current tax BN AR 18
— Hong Kong — &% - -
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HEPEFRSEH 1,239 -
Income tax expense Frig#isz i 1,239 -

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of a
qualifying corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable
profits above HK$2 million will continue to be taxed at 16.5%.
For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, Hong Kong
Profits Tax of the qualified entity of the Group is calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from Hong
Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2021: 25%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z —E—-—F=A=+—H|FE

(13) INCOME TAX (Continued) (13) Fr B8 % (@)

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates NEMA ZEERESE ZHREIIZEG M

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. AEABBRITHEGHE o
2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FAT
Profit/(Loss) before income tax expense [ P15 i Xk H Bl % £, (E538) 132,330 (119,663)
Tax at domestic income tax rate BARMWAEHHETE 2 WIA
(2022: 25%; 2021: 25%) (ZE2 % :25%:
T2 —F:25%) 33,083 (29,916)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  RNA[#1FH 2 Bk 2 T 78 52 £ 3,420 28,289
Tax effect of income not taxable TERBM WA 2B E & (42,447) (958)
Utilisation of tax losses previously BABEARERFIEEIE
not recognised (666) (3,058)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7 He 22 14 18 &5 18 =~ Bt i‘% - 4,660 3,498
Tax effect of share of results of the JEE— R E AR EE 2
associate Ui 913 720
Effect of different tax rates of RE M ] /£ EEEE B AR
subsidiaries operating in other TRME 2B
jurisdiction 2,276 1,425
Income tax expense Fr 15 % 52 i 1,239 —
(14) EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (14) SRERN (E8)

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

ARARFEBEARGEEREARE TR
M/ (B18) TR T 5 8 AH &

2022 2021
—=E=-= —EZ—F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET T T
Earnings/(Loss) BR(FE)
Earnings/(Loss) for the purpose of basic ARt EFIREREB R 2 B F|,~
earnings per share (EB#H)
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to 7N A &) # B A FE{G AN E 3,
owners of the Company (& Tg ) 130,588 (121,098)
Effect of potential ordinary shares: BELTERCTE
Interest on convertible bonds AR ESFE 13,094 —
Earnings/(Loss) for the purpose of ARTESRESRT,(EE)
diluted earnings/(loss) per share ZEBR(E8) 143,682

(121,098) Q
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B WK R ()

(14) EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

(1) ERER(EE) @

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
’000 000
F i I %
Number of shares iigvig g
Weighted average number of ordinary  FR st E SR ERAF],(EIE)
shares for the purpose of basic ZEBRINKEF S
earnings/(loss) per share 2,390,000 2,390,000
Effect of potential ordinary shares: BELER R
Convertible bonds MR ES 900,000 —
Weighted average number of ordinary Rt E R #ERAF,(EE)
shares for the purpose of diluted 2 & B AR INAE 15 8L
earnings/(loss) per share 3,290,000 2,390,000

The denominators used for the computation of both basic and
diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2021 are the
same since the assumed exercise the conversion of the
Company’s outstanding convertible bonds would result in a
decrease in loss per share.

(15) DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or declared by the board of directors
during the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: nil), nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of reporting period.

(16) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various offices under operating leases
with fixed rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for
an initial period of five years (2021: nil).

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of
the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the
respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or
lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease
term.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the total cash inflow for
leases is HK$209,000 (2021: HK$ nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(16) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) (16) = & ¥ 3 (@)
HK$’000
FAT
COST RRA
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021 and RZZBZZFNNA—RB ZT=—%F
1 April 2021 —A=+—BRkZZE=Z—FWMA—H 8,057
Transfer from property, plant and equipment R B Y% - HME MR ERETREEE
and right-of-use assets 9,943
At 31 March 2022 RZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H 18,000
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ZE:FERFE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2020 RZZEZFFHMA—H 6,738
Charge for the year KEFH S 59
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 W-ZE-—49=A=+—8xk
—E-_—FIA—H 6,797
Charge for the year REEH = 95
Transfer from property, plant and equipment BEE EWE BMELZELERREELE
and right-of-use assets 8,427
At 31 March 2022 R-_E-__F=H=+—H 15,319
NET CARRYING AMOUNT REFEE
At 31 March 2022 RZZEZ=F=A=+—H 2,681
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ—F=A=+—H 1,260

The above investment properties are depreciated using the
straight-line method, after taking into account their estimated
residual value, over the lease terms of the leasehold land.

The Group’s investment properties are located on land in the
PRC with medium lease term.

EEEMELEBE G RBEE
B REELHZHBRARNEREN
£

AEBZREDEURTE  BAF
HHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(16) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March
2022 amounting to RMB7,700,000 (2021: RMB3,400,000) has
been arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out for that
date by Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified
valuer not connected with the Group. The valuation was arrived
at by direct comparison approach with reference to market
evidence of comparable transaction prices for similar properties
as available in the relevant market.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
March 2022 is a Level 3 recurring fair value measurement and
based on the properties highest and best use, which does not
differ from their actual use. The following table presents the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement of these
properties are categorised (Level 3), based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value is unobservable. The valuation
takes into account of the condition and location of the
properties. There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior years.

Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited #5EZE£ERAR AT

(16) & & ¥ % (@)

RZE_—_F=A=+—H &~5H
ZIEEYMERNTERARET,700,000
T(=—=F = — F: A R #3,400,000
TL) c SRR IREAS B EEE B
VEEBERGEMZSHETGEERA
ARNZBETZHEREREEZR - HE
T2 EZRBE TSR A5 2 EUYE
AENBRRZGERZMBREEREER
B EURER -

R-_ZTE-_—_F=ZA=+—H ' KX&H
PEREMEZAFERE=ZFEEH
ATEFETERVEBI ZEEZRD
FREEEREARMER) TxRZ27
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z - - —F=H=+—HIIFE

(17) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(17)

Plant and

Buildings equipment

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor Construction
equipment vehicles in progress Total

BER &M BE
gF ®fE RERZE AE HEIR #mat
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FTHET FTET TEx TET ThERx
COST %
At 1 April 2020 R-ZZE-ZTFNA—H 127,457 34,714 6,830 3,770 — 172,771
Additions NE - 456 265 - - 721
Exchange realignment & 5 10,124 2,893 199 268 — 13,484
At31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R=—ZT-—&=F=+—A
EZZT-—FmA—H 137,681 38,063 7,294 4,038 — 186,976
Additions NE - 1,968 74 - 7,698 9,740
Disposal & - - (307) - - (307)
Transfer to investment properties ~ EEZ R EYE (5,966) - - - - (5,966)
Exchange realignment BT 4,876 1,410 105 128 190 6,709
At 31 March 2022 WZE-_—_F=A=+—H 136,491 41,441 7,166 4,166 7,888 197,152
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Z T & KEE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2020 RZZE-ZTFMWA—A 21,134 15,5638 6,413 3,616 — 46,701
Charge for the year KEEFHZ 2,747 2,933 157 69 - 5,906
Exchange realignment &5 AR 1,442 1,400 193 259 - 3,294
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R-ZT-—%=H=+—H
kZZ=—-%MA—AH 25,323 19,871 6,763 3,944 — 55901
Charge for the year REZH L 2,858 3,381 158 47 - 6,444
Elimination on disposal & S8 - - (252) - - (252)
Transfer to investment properties B i3 & 1% (5,056) - - - —  (5,056)
Exchange realignment ER R 822 820 96 127 - 1,865
At 31 March 2022 i
=ZA=+—H 23,947 24,072 6,765 4118 - 58,902
NET CARRYING AMOUNT REFE
At 31 March 2022 RZE-_—F=ZA=+—8 112544 17,369 401 48 7,888 138,250
At 31 March 2021 WZE-_—F=A=1+—H 112,258 18,192 531 94 — 131,075

The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets based on higher of
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. The carrying
amount of the relevant assets does not exceed the recoverable
amount based on fair value less costs of disposal/value in use
and no impairment has been recognised for both years.

AEERAFEREEXNARERE
BzBRREGHFADE BERXHFHE
ERAREEZAKREEE - ARFE
BMEEXRA EREERERE  AH
EEZREEYEBEEN KD SR
R P M8 F 3 R R RRORL(E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE PSR M R ()

(18) RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (18)EAEEE
Lease Lease
land properties Total
HE i HEYE et
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
Cost R A
At 1 April 2020 RZE-_ZFTFNMA—H 13,490 5,793 19,283
Exchange realignment PE 3, 35 28 793 — 793
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ—%F
and 1 April 2021 —A=+—H8k
—E-—FJMA—H 14,283 5,793 20,076
Addition NE — 139 139
Transfer to investment properties 8 1 = 18 & ) 2 (3,977) — (3,977)
Exchange realignment (e R 382 - 382
At 31 March 2022 N-—ETE=-—
—A=+—8 10,688 5,932 16,620
Accumulated depreciation EFERBE
and impairment
At 1 April 2020 RZZE-_FTFWHA—H 5,037 241 5,278
Charge for the year NEFE 5| 227 1,932 2,159
Exchange realignment VE 5§82 151 — 151
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April R —%F
2021 —A=+—8X
—E-—FA—H 5,415 2,173 7,588
Charge for the year REFZ | 224 1,964 2,188
Transfer to investment properties 8% 1 Z= 3% & 1) % (3,371) — (3,371)
Exchange realignment & 5 =& 75 — 75
At 31 March 2022 N—_E=——
—A=+—8 2,343 4,137 6,480
NET CARRYING AMOUNT BREFE
At 31 March 2022 nN—ETE=-—
—A=+—8H 8,345 1,795 10,140
At 31 March 2021 MRZTZ—%
—A=+—8 8,868 3,620 12,488
Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited &&= AR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(18) RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Total cash outflow for the lease was approximately
HK$1,935,000 (2021: approximately HK$1,904,000).

For both years, the Group leases office premises for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of
two years to three years (2021: three years). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the

contract is enforceable.

(18)EAEEE @)

THE 2R e m L 4% 4 51,935,000/
T(ZFE = —4 : 491,904,000 7T) °

RMEFE AEEREEEHER
RERM-BEANTIRETEFHM
FE=F(ZF_—F:=ZF)Flx-
HEGRDERZEEEEBLBE ST
[R5 3R B R - B E B 1R MR
THAENRKEE  ~AKSEERA
MZEBRBLRESQAIITE LA -

(19) INTANGIBLE ASSETS (1 Q)ﬁﬁiﬁé
Gene
invention
rights Goodwill Total
HEZHRE GRS st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FHT
COST RS
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, R-_ZT-_ZF P H—H -
1 April 2021 and 31 March —E-—49=ZA=+—H8"
2022 T -FmWA—BK
- —_#=ZA=+—H 95,000 1,807 96,807
ACCUMULATED ENEBHERREE
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, R-ZE-Z&FpM /[ —H -
1 April 2021 and 31 March —E-—-F=/A=+—8"
2022 2 -FMA—BRK
—E-F=ZRA=+—H 95,000 — 95,000
NET CARRYING AMOUNT REFEE
At 31 March 2022 RZZEZ=F=A=+—H — 1,807 1,807
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ—F=H=+—H — 1,807 1,807
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill with indefinite mRmEBEAAMS  EEEFERHEE 2

useful lives has been allocated to one individual cash-generating
units, comprising one subsidiary in the manufacturing segment.

BEEHEE BE - REELS
8RR ERE SN — B A
7] o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(19) INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management.

For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, management of
the Group determines that there is no impairment on this
segment.

(20) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(a)

Investments in convertible bonds

On 28 July 2014, the Group completed the disposal of
51% equity interest in Smart Ascent Limited and received
consideration with fair value of HK$435,193,000
comprising (i) cash payment of HK$65,000,000; and (i)
convertible bonds issued by Innovative Pharmaceutical
Biotech Limited (“Innovative Pharm”) on 28 July 2014 with
principal amount of HK$715,000,000 (the “Innovative
Pharm Bonds”) and fair value of HK$370,193,000.

The Innovative Pharm Bonds bear interest at 3.5% per
annum payable in arrears annually with maturity on the
7th anniversary of the date of issue of the Innovative
Pharm Bonds i.e. 28 July 2021 (the “Original Maturity
Date”). The Group has the right to convert the Innovative
Pharm Bonds into shares of Innovative Pharm at any time
from the date of issue to the maturity date at an initial
conversion price of HK$2.5 per share.

The fair value of the Innovative Pharm Bonds as at 31
March 2021 is determined with the assumption of two-
year extension to 28 July 2023 (“New Maturity Date”).

Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited #5EZE£ERAR AT

(19)EFEE @

ZEBEMLzAIRE SR IREERER
AAEMETE AHATEERENERE
Bt EMBEE 2 RS REAR -
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+—HLEFE AEEEEEETE M
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(20) EAFEHABEZ LB

BE

(@) TRERESFRE

R-ZE—WOFLA=-_+NH"
AEBEBZTKEEEEFR QA
Z51%AR - WIWER A FE A
435,193,000 T2 RE  EF B
& ()R € 1 565,000,000 TT :
iR ZZFE—mOFEA =+ N
BEEMmMEZLEYREER
ARAl([EMEBE])ETEASER
715,000,000 Tt 2 ‘Hﬁ ik & %
([EMmEBEESR]) MAFES
370,193,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HiZ —E - _F=A=1+—HILFE

(20) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(@) Investments in convertible bonds (Continued)

The movements of the Innovative Pharm Bonds are set

) ZEAFEFAEZZEH
BE@m

(@) TRBREFKRE @)
EMBEEE I BPHIMT

/\

out as below:

HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2020 ﬁé:giﬁimﬂ —H 571,065
Change in fair value NEEEH (104,743)

At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZBE_—F=A=+—80K
—E-—FMA—H 466,322
Change in fair value NEEES 168,585
At 31 March 2022 R-ZEB-=—f=A=+—H 634,907

On 26 July 2019, the Company and Innovative Pharm
entered into a deed of amendments to amend the terms
and conditions of the Innovative Pharm Bonds (the “First
Amendment Deed”). Pursuant to the First Amendment
Deed, (i) the interest payment dates for the interest of 3.5%
originally due on 28 July 2019 and 2020 were extended
to 28 July 2021; and (i) the additional interest of
HK$11,261,250, representing 15% per annum on the
annual interest multiply by three, was charged for the
extension for payment of interests stated in (i) and shall be
paid on 28 July 2021. The First Amendment Deed was
effective on 28 October 2019. Details of the amendments
of the terms and conditions of Innovative Pharm Bonds
were set out in the Company’s circular dated 16
September 2019 and the Company’s announcement
dated 28 October 2019. Accordingly, no interest was
received for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil)
from the Innovative Pharm Bonds.

R-ZE—AFLtA=-+/,H =&

X ) BE <E fif B8 BE R ST (B R] B A
15 7] <8 M B8 %2 (5 5 /9 16 3 & (&
HAE—DETRE] - RIESF
— BT EE - ()F & £3.5%H
BEER=-ZE—NLER-_ZF_ZTF
tAZ+N\BIEHNFEXZA
ez -_—F+tA=+N
B R(i)gt)E T B 7T
HA 28 AP W B FI B 11,261,2507% 7T
(BN FRFEFEA5%FT A=) W
AR—E-_—F+tA=-+NAX
HFE - BE—MEBTREBER-Z
—hAFE+A=ZFNBEK - EM
B B S5 MR IR 2B F] &F
EHER ARG HBA T —NF
NA+AAZEHIEAAR B
AB-E-—NF+A=-+NBZA
ERN B BHE-_ZT-__F=
A=+ HUEFEYEBSEME
EZEHWNEMAME(ZZT = —
F ) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(20) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(a)

Investments in convertible bonds (Continued)

On 12 May 2021, the Company and Innovative Pharm
entered into, amongst others, the deed of amendment to
amend and vary terms and conditions in the Innovative
Pharm Bonds (the “Second Amendment Deed”), as
follows: the Original Maturity Date is extended for 2 years
to the New Maturity Date (i.e. the maturity date of the
Innovative Pharm Bonds is amended to the date falling on
the ninth anniversary of the date of issue of the Innovative
Pharm Bonds). The Second Amendment Deed was
effective on 16 August 2021. Details of the amendments
under the Second Amendment Deed are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 12 May 2021, 30 July
2021 and 16 August 2021 and the circular dated 14 July
2021.

The Innovative Pharm Bonds were classified as non-
current assets because, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the Company expected the Innovative
Pharm Bonds to be recovered or settled more than twelve
months after the reporting period. In assessing the
presentation of the Innovative Pharm Bonds as current
and non-current, the directors of the Company have
taken into account the financial position of Innovative
Pharm and the reasonable timing of the settlement of the
Innovative Pharm Bonds, which is generally in line with
expected timeline for commercialisation of the Product,
and Innovative Pharm is expected to improve its financial
position through obtaining of loans from banks, and
equity financing as the capital market is expected to be
less volatile following the large scale of COVID-19
vaccination worldwide including Hong Kong.

At 31 March 2022 and 2021, the fair value of the
Innovative Pharm Bonds as a whole is determined by the
directors with reference to the valuation conducted by the
independent qualified valuer and is calculated using the
Binomial Model.

The inputs into the model at the respective dates are as
follows:
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2022 2021

—=E=-= —E-—F

Stock price (HK$) B 1 (B & (B T) 0.149 0.249
Conversion price (HKS) B (B IT) 2.50 2.5
Discount rate AL IH & = 24.707% 25.881%
Risk free rate (note a) 2 b A (Fff 52 a) 1.117% 0.206%
Expected volatility (note b) 8 B 1 (Bt 52 b) 27.261% 26.285%
Expected dividend vield (note c) TEHIAR B & (Mf7Ec) 0% 0%
Option life (Years) HAHE HAPR (55 B) 1.326 2.326
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(20) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(@) Investments in convertible bonds (Continued)

Notes:

(@ The rate was determined with reference to the yields of Hong Kong
government bonds and treasury bills as at the date of valuation.

(b) Based on the historical price volatility of Innovative Pharm for the
period from 11 December 2020 up to the end of the reporting

) ZEAFEFAEZZEH
BE@m

(@) TRBREFKRE @)
B 5

/\

@ HANEDH2EFBRMFESRE
FREERRZEREXRERE -

) HREMBEN-_ZT_TF+—
At+—BREEREBHPLEFRIEH

date. Mz BEBEREESLE -
(©)  Estimated with reference to the historical dividend payout of © 2Z2EEMBHEZBERIIKMNMG
Innovative Pharm. £t o
(b) Short-term investment (b) EHRE
2022 2021
—=== — T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Bank structured product, at fair value ~ $RiT4&EBHE R KA FE
(note) (B 5%) 1,905 1,786
Note: The amount represents short-term highly liquid investments placed Mz - Z R BEEERR—HETBEREE S

in a PRC state-owned financial institution, which are readily
convertible to cash. These investments are all denominated in
Renminbi with non-determinable return rate. The fair value of these
investments is based on estimated return of 2.3% (2021: 2.3%),
and the credit quality of these investments can be assessed by
reference to historical information or external credit ratings, if any.
As at 31 March 2022, none of these investments is either past due
or impaired and the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk as
at that date is the carrying value of these investments.

The fair value of these investments that are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation
technigues. These valuation techniques maximise the use
of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates.

BT ARERAR 28
HERBERE ZEREED
HUAARMEGE  MERKETY
BTAEBE ZSREZAFE
T9422.3% (= f*fﬁ:zwwz
HETEHEGE  MZEREZ
%%E%TW%%ﬂﬁﬁﬂT%
HEEFR(E) FUFMGE R
T _F=RA=+—H " %%
BERGHAMAKRRE MAER
RZBFARZESEERRA
ZEREZEREME-

SZEREVHEERMBES
MEXFEDERBET EZE
E-REFEANBEEMS BB
M—METEE EEEEREAEMH
B YEARRDKEER R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(21) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET F& T

Unlisted investment fund (note a)
Unlisted equity shares (note b)

FLEmHREES (MEa)
FE LR Bt (B Eb)

Unlisted investment fund and shares were measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). Under
HKFRS 9, these investments are all classified as financial assets
measured at FVTOCI. Subsequent changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in FVTOCI reserve and the
cumulative gains or loss on disposals are recognised in retained
earnings.

The unlisted investment fund was denominated in HK$ while
the unlisted shares were denominated at Renminbi (“RMB”).

Notes:

(@)

On 11 May and 2 June 2017, Extrawell Enterprises Limited (the “Subscriber”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
subscription agreements with KKC Capital SPC, a segregated portfolio
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands (the “Fund”), and pursuant
to which the Subscriber agreed to subscribe for 50,000 and 30,000
participating shares in the Fund attributable to the segregated portfolio at
aggregate consideration of HK$50,000,000 and HK$30,000,000
respectively on the respective dates (the “Investments”). The total cost of
the Investments of HK$80,000,000 was funded by the internal resources
of the Group.

Since the financial year ended 31 March 2019 up to present, the Fund had
net liabilities. Therefore, the fair value of the Fund remains zero.

Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited #5EZE£ERAR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(21) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) On 13 January 2012, Jilin Extrawell Changbaishan Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (“JECP”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company subscribed for
RMB2,500,000 of the registered capital of 2K (-8)i& e 1B REEREA
A) (“Shanghai Longmark”) by way of capital injection. Shanghai Longmark
is a company incorporated in the PRC and engaged in provision of health
care management services. The subscription was completed in April 2012,
and the enlarged registered capital of RMB12,500,000 of Shanghai
Longmark was owned as to 20% by JECP and 80% by United Gene
HealthCare Limited, Shanghai (“Shanghai United Gene”), which
subsequently transferred its 80% interest in Shanghai Longmark to 2 #E Ak
(BB EEIRRIE AR A A (“SREEMK”) in December 2012. Both Shanghai
United Gene and E#EAR are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Innovative Pharm. Shanghai Longmark was accounted for as an associate
of the Group upon the completion of subscription.

On 25 April 2013, JECP entered into a capital injection and subscription
agreement with &R and Xie Yi, a shareholder and director of the
Company, in which Xie Yi agreed to subscribe for RMB7,490,000 (the
“Subscription”) of the registered capital of Shanghai Longmark. The
Subscription was completed in August 2013, and the registered capital of
Shanghai Longmark increased from RMB12,500,000 to RMB19,990,000.
Accordingly, the Group’s equity interest of Shanghai Longmark was
diluted from 20% to 12.51%, and the respective shareholdings of B EER
and Xie Yi in Shanghai Longmark was 50.02% and 37.47% respectively.
As a result of dilution, the Group considered it was no longer in a position
to exercise significant influence over Shanghai Longmark and Shanghai
Longmark ceased to be an associate of the Group. Shanghai Longmark is
accounted for as unlisted investments as the Group has the intention to
hold the investment for a continuing strategic and long-term purpose and
is measured at fair value. The investment cost was reduced to zero in prior
years by share of loss of Shanghai Longmark.

R-ZF——F—A+=Z0 X272z =
EMBAREMBEERBILEXAR
RRI[EMBEEDIAEEFTRRBEAR
#2,500,0007T Z IR (L) @R E =
REBERAR(LEEERD 2EME
Ko EBERA—RNF BEEMA L
RERBEFTERB AR - ZRE
EER-_T——FWARK " LEE
A 2 45 3% K 5 it & A8 A R % 12,500,000
TL5 BB E MR E B 20% K B A R
(E)REEEREREERAR ([ LG
AERDEAS%  LEBHAEREE
RZZTE—=F+-_FAEEER L&
A 80% # 7= T 3R BE AR ()8 {2 R & 12 R
BERAR(REMR]) - EEBAER
FEERYEEMBEEZ  BEE2EW
BRAR - RRBRBEEETAE - EEER
ERAEEH S AR AR -

R-_ZE—=FWA-_+HB  ZTHE
BEBEERLANARBRRERESAR
FIMEERRBHE Bt HARA
ERBLEERZEMEAARE
7,490,000 ([REEHE]) - REFERD
RZZT—=FNA%K " WLEEERZ
& AN B A R #12,500,0007C 1 i1 &
A R #19,990,0007T ° A It » REE R
EEERZREHR20%#FEE12.51% ¢
MEEREHZR LEERZ S ER
# 5 Bl £50.02% K 37.47% ° 7 A% 4
Y AEERAHEY EEERTHA
EEAXEN MESERTBEAAS
EEEAE e EEERARAELMER
T RARAEEBRNSEERERED
BHmMBEZEE  BREE NIRRT
B2 - BREXNAEAD# LIGEERZE
BEMRBATFEARES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(22) INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

(22) A — R B A 7 > M3

2022 2021
—E-— —E - —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T

Cost of investment in an unlisted R—EELmEEQAF 2
associate (note) WA RKA (B ) 337,000 337,000

Share of post-acquisition losses and AU EZEE &

other comprehensive expense Hib2mAX (16,635) (12,982)
320,365 324,018

Note: The amount represents the fair value as at 28 July 2014 of the 49% equity
interest in Smart Ascent Limited as retained by the Group upon completion
of the disposal of 51% equity interest in Smart Ascent Limited on 28 July
2014.

The Group’s associate, Smart Ascent Limited (“Smart Ascent”)
is a private company with no quoted market price available for
its shares. The major asset held by Smart Ascent and its
subsidiaries (the “Smart Ascent Group”) is the intangible asset
in relation to an in-process research and development project
(“In-process R&D”) involving an oral insulin product (“Product”).
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group has engaged an
independent qualified valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited to
conduct a valuation of the fair value of the interest in the
associate for impairment assessment.

The asset-based approach was adopted in the valuation of the
fair value of the Group’s interest in the associate. In doing so,
various assumptions about the cash flow projections of the In-
process R&D and the Product were adopted. These
assumptions include the successful completion of the clinical
trials, obtaining of the regulatory approvals from the relevant
government bodies (in particular, the granting of the certificate
of new medicine and pharmaceutical manufacturing permit for
the Product by China Food and Drug Administration, now
known as National Medical Products Administration of the
PRC), and launching of the Product by mid of 2024. The
recoverable amount of the interest in the associate is
determined based on the Group’s share of the estimated fair
value of the In-process R&D after taking into account the lack of
control discount. Since the recoverable amount is higher than
carrying amount, no impairment loss was made for both years.
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(22) INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Particulars of the Smart Ascent Group at the end of the

reporting periods are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
15 BB AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(2R —BEHE QTR 2R @

EERERBERRIFBET

Effective
Place of interest held by
incorporation/  Class of the Group/ Measurement
Name of associate operations shares held Smart Ascent  Principal activities method
ML ig=d 4 AEE EE
BEANREH EEME 85l FEEREs TEXX dEAFH
Smart Ascent Hong Kong Ordinary 49%  Investment holding Equity
jiges N Lim REER fx &
Subsidiaries of Smart
Ascent
EECZHEDHE
Fosse Bio-Engineering Hong Kong/China  Ordinary 51%  Development and Equity
Development Limited commercialisation of
oral insulin products
BEEMIRBRAF BB/ HE LA MERBmtAR  RE
REZREMD
REEMIR(HERAR  China Registered 51%  Inactive Equity
capital
e HE R EEEK i
Welly Surplus Development  Hong Kong Ordinary 51% Inactive Equity
Limited
mBERERAA B ] EREK f 72
Nation Joy Industries Limited  British Virgin Ordinary 100% Inactive Equity
Islands (“BVI")
EEXERLA EBELEE L8 EEXEY g
([EBRX
#5))
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O NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE PSR M R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(22) INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) (220 —EHE QT 2R @
The summarised financial information of the associate, adjusted MENBZHBEERBME(EREM
for any differences in accounting policies and a reconciliation to SHBRREZEFLARE) NREEH
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements, BERERNEERmMAEZHENT ¢

are as follows:

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FA&T

Non-current assets IEMBEE 284,260 284,445
Current assets MEBEE 5,769 5,083
Current liabilities nEBE (58,051) (46,312)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (49,583) (47,575)
Non-controlling interests SR AR 2 (98,624) (104,414)

Non-current assets include the following: JERBEERIELATIEA ¢

Intangible assets — In-process R&D BEE - ETP2HE 284,260 284,260

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Revenue U 25 _ o
Loss and total comprehensive expense BEREZERATRE (13,174) (10,068)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE R R M (R)

(22) INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(2R —BEHE QTR 2R @

2022 2021
—=E=-= —=E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#E T T&TT
Net assets of the Smart Ascent Group # 4 E B A E(HE S =B & E
attributable to owners of Smart FE
Ascent 83,771 91,227
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7 5 B A ¥ 4 7 BT 8 HE#E 25 L Al
interest in Smart Ascent 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest 7K 5 [& 72 i 4 (1 & — BB &
in Smart Ascent as an associate NAE)ZEEREE 41,048 44,701
Adjustment for remeasurement to fair  ELEEEE QN FERPBER
value of the assets of the Smart BZEHTERE
Ascent Group on initial recognition 279,317 279,317
320,365 324,018
(23) AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE/ (23) FE W — B B & D B FK IE/E
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE NF—HEEE QT
2022 2021
—=E=-= =B —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E T T& T
Amount due from an associate — JE g — FEJ B 8 R A FROE —
Smart Ascent (note a) # A (Msta) 36,089 41,947
Loan to an associate — ERXFEBEAR —
Smart Ascent (note b) # A (M FEb) 14,500 16,118
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(23) AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE/
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, amount due from an associate is
unsecured and interest-free and without fixed repayment term with a
principal amount of HK$41,947,000. As at the initial recognition date, the
amount was expected to be repaid after 6 years from 28 July 2014. Such
amount due from an associate was recognised at its fair value of
HK$8,455,000 upon the disposal of Smart Ascent at a discount rate of
26.99%. During the reporting period, imputed interest income of HK$nil
(2021: HK$3,570,000) is credited to profit or loss. The balance was netted
off with the allowance of impairment amounting to HK$5,858,000 (2021:
nil) as at 31 March 2022. Details of the impairment are set out in note
41(d).

On 27 July 2018, the Company and Innovative Pharm through their
respective wholly-owned subsidiaries as lenders and Smart Ascent as
borrower entered into a shareholders’ loan agreement for a loan to Smart
Ascent amounting to HK$30 million in total (the “Loan”), to be contributed
as to 49% i.e. HK$14.7 million by the Group and as to 51% i.e. HK$15.3
million by the wholly-owned subsidiary of Innovative Pharm, which would
be used to finance the working capital requirements of Smart Ascent
Group for the oral insulin project. The Loan is unsecured, interest bearing
at fixed rate of 5% per annum and has a repayment term fixed at 60
months after each drawdown of the Loan.

As the provision of the Loan was made in proportion to the equity interest
of the shareholders in Smart Ascent and on normal commercial terms, this
connected transaction is fully exempted from the reporting, announcement
and shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.89 of the Listing
Rules. Also, the applicable percentage ratios in respect of this connected
transaction are less than 5%, it therefore does not constitute a
discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules.

As at 31 March 2022, Smart Ascent had drawn down HK$30 million (2021:
HK$30 milion) of the Loan, and the balance as at 31 March 2022
represented the Group’s 49% (2021: 49%) contribution to the Loan and
the interest receivables.

As at 31 March 2022, loan to an associate is unsecured, carried interest
at 5% per annum, and repayable in 60 months after each drawdown.
During the reporting period, interest income of HK$735,000 (2021:
HK$735,000) is credited to profit or loss. The balance was netted off with
the allowance of impairment amounting to HK$2,353,000 (2021: nil) as at
31 March 2022. Details of the impairment are set out in note 41(d).

On 8 March 2022, the Group and Innovative Pharm Group entered into a
shareholders’ loan agreement for a loan facilities to Smart Ascent
amounting to HK$12 million in total, to be contributed as to 49% i.e.
HK$5.88 million by the Group and as to 51% i.e. HK$6.12 million by the
Innovative Pharm Group, which would be used to finance the working
capital requirements of Smart Ascent Group for the oral insulin project. On
15 June 2022, Smart Ascent made a drawdown amounting to HK$5
million, while the Group and Innovative Pharm Group had made their
contributions amounting to HK$2.45 million and HK$2.55 million to Smart
Ascent respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE R R M (R)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(24) INVENTORIES (29) &
2022 2021
—ZE__ —EF-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TE T FAT
Raw material R AR 2,317 3,850
Work-in-progress ERE 979 1,421
Finished goods RAR o 5,169 2,287
8,465 7,558

(25) TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

D) EZRUERRERRE

2022 2021

—E-C—F —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Bills receivables FE W I 635 1,127

Trade receivables H 5 AR 51,009 50,538
Less: Provision for impairment loss on 35, : & 5 Ji& Ui BE 3% Rl (B B 18 B s

trade receivables (43,831) (42,535)

7,813 9,130

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly based
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The customers are generally given
a credit period for 120 to 180 days, extending up to one year
for some major customers.

AEEEEEFZESBRAERAR
HOEHEP—RBEELEMR —
BT BEFAERFZAH1208 E
18OHZIEEH METEERFAL
HERZ—F-
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O NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

(25) TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables (net of
provision of impairment loss on trade receivables), based on
invoice dates are as follows:

(B)EFEWRRARARERESE @

BORKEREEBEZE(NGE S
FERUEFREBRREFGE EXNERA
HIZREIAT

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FA&T

Within 90 days 90H A 4,161 6,134
91 to 180 days 91£&180H 1,980 1,257
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365 H 1,672 1,739
7,813 9,130

Trade receivables are assessed for impairment on collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 120
to 180 days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$1,672,000 (2021:

HK$1,739,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.

Details of the impairment are set out in note 41(d).

164 Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited #5EZE£ERAR AT

B 5 e W AR SR IR B RS K TR E AT
HeBUREBEBAA 2 ZEREZED
BEASEZBAEKKLE HER
EEZEREBE T EEH120E180
B 2 R &0 0 - LA K £ FE UK 3R 8 HP
B2 2B 3 5 A8 AR S BR B R

#h o

AEEBEZREVEREHPREREEAE
& #£1,672,000%8 o (= T = — F:
1,739,000/8 7T ) Z FE W BR Sk A R & H
HAE @ HY - M AN 5 B A R Bh b 1 R
BEEERE -

WEFBHRMFE41() ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE R R M (R)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(26) DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER (26) iz - FANREREMER

RECEIVABLES ;1E

2022 2021

—E2__ —EF - —F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Deposits Be 737 747

Other receivables H b & Y FIR 190 61

Prepayments Ta 5| 1,397 799

Trade deposit E5%& 4,167 656

6,491 2,263

(27) PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (27) 2 HKHEBEITER
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to a bank to BEIFIRITFRIERB FIRITUER
secure short-term banking facilities granted to the Group and NEBER  CHETHEREREE 2 &
are therefore classified as current assets. The pledged bank RZTFER WOBEAERHEE - 2K
deposits carry variable interest rates ranging from 0.1% to 0.4% WHRTERIRZIHNENFEF01%
(2021: 0.1% to 0.7%) per annum. Z204%(ZZE = —F : 01%Z20.7%) &t
B o

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(28) CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bank balances carry variable interest rates of 0.001% to 2.1%
(2021: 0.001% to 1.85%) per annum. Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are

(28) R = R iR 1T 4 &%

RITEBRIEZHF EETF0.001% =
21% (=& = — % : 0.001% £ 1.85%)
TR AR S B AIINE BB ST
2 GNTE B IR ) LA K AR BE - B BE K A

EEIERE -

BehBReFEEBERZERAEDRIA

denominated in the following currencies: TEt(E:
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Euros (“Euro”) BT 2,776 2,910
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) BT 21,430 36,217
RMB N 24,591 24,580
United States dollars (“‘US$”) EIT 63,084 63,003
111,881 126,710
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE R R M (R)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(29) TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade
credit terms granted to the Group range from two to three

months from the date of invoice.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables, based on

) EZENERRENRE
B 5 ERATH A - 1A% EE
B2 -RESEEANTEREHR
HME=M@A -

REZZAHZE RN KRR REN

invoice dates are as follows:

SRZERERDITMT

2022 2021

—E=- B —F

HK$’000 HK$’000

THERT TH T

Within 90 days 90H K 3,239 4,290

91 to 180 days 912 180H 2,341 1,613

181 to 365 days 1812 365H 58 26

1to 2 years 15:26F 276 240

Over 2 years 2F LA F 542 523

6,456 6,692

(30) ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND (SO)FEIREH HMEMSRTER
CONTRACT LIABILITIES = Sh=Ki

2022 2021

—E=-= B —F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT F& T

Accruals (note a) AR E A (M ia) 12,638 12,5614

Other payables (note b) oAt A5 2RE (B 5Eb) 18,703 16,346

Contract liabilities aHBE 6,737 5,033

38,078 33,893

Annual Report 2022

:Oiﬂiiﬁ 167



168

& @

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

(30) ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Notes:

() Mainly included marketing and promotion expenses of about
HK$9,044,000 (2021: HK$10,523,000).

(b) Mainly included payables for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
of about HK$3,145,000 (2021: HK$3,083,000), payables for marketing
and promotion expenses of about HK$6,601,000 (2021: HK$5,071,000)
and other tax payables of about HK$4,844,000 (2021: HK$4,160,000).

The following table shows the amount of the revenue

(30)

=

s

i
PN
=1

/3
N

E

n

BH HMWENMNRER
=8¢ )

pil

FEB
/%713(

1E & 88 & I E B F %99,044,000
T — —4F 1 10,523,000/8 7T °

TEZREUBEDE BEERZEND
JE {5 3 1B 493,145,000/8 (= T = —
4 : 3,033,000/ 7T ) ~ FE i & 85 K& H#EE
£ F 496,601,000 T(= T = — F :
5,071,000 7T ) & H i & 1 B R 4
4,844,0007t( = & = — £ : 4,160,000
ETT) °

TRIITBEZZE-_—_FR-_F=—

recognised for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 E A=+t HLEFEHERAHALESE
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. AHBEBERBEMN K-
2022 2021
=== =B —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TE T FAT
Revenue recognised that was included PO A —H#AA DA B EH
in the contract liabilities balance 2 BRI
at 1 April
— Sales of pharmaceutical products — Y& g 5,033 2,086
As at 1 April 2020, contract liabilities amounted to R-_E_ZTFWNA—H AHEEA

HK$3,801,000. The significant increase in contract liabilities in
the current year was mainly due to the increase in advances
received from customers near to year ended resulting an
increase in contract liabilities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(31) LEASE LIABILITIES BNHEHEEE
2022 2021

—E=-= =B —F
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum  minimum Minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments

BREHAE BEHAE HREHAE KEHEE
TR H[RRE 3 NHRE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET FAT TH T
Not later than one year TER—F 2,244 2,194 1,904 1,771
Later than one year and not later & —F K TNER
than two years & 44 39 2,174 2,123
2,288 2,233 4,078 3,894
Future financial charges RRF B (55) (184)
Present value of lease liability HEAERE 2,233 3,894
Amount due for settlement R—FANFHEE
within one year (shown under 7 ZHIB (R RE &
current liabilities) BET25) (2,194) (1,771)
Amount due for settlement after FA— 14 B Hi 45 &
one year 2 5RIB

For both years, the Group leases office premises for operation
and these lease liabilities were measured at the present value of
the lease payment that are not yet paid. All leases are entered
at fixed prices for both years.

Lease liabilities of the Company are denominated in functional
currencies of the Group entities.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to
lease liabilities ranged from 4.54% to 6.25% (2021: 4.54%)

39 2,123

RMEFE AEEHERAGMHE
TEE ZFHERERAARAXNHN
HENKBREHE - MEFEMAHE
MR EEEARETIL

/7

AATREEELAEEE BN
EHEH(E -

FER NS & &0 F 1518 8 5K

RN FA454%5E6.25%(=F = —4F:
4.54%) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

WIN

RE PSR M R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE
(32) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS BEEHEEE
Details of the deferred tax assets recognised and movements RNREERBTEFEERZELEHREBEE
during the current and prior years are as follows: ENEEFEBOT
Decelerated tax
depreciation
BREBIETE
HK$’000
FA&T
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, RZZEZFFHA—RB ZFT=Z—F
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 =A=+—8 -Z¥=Z—FWA—8AK
—E-H#=Z/A=+—H 69

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had unused tax losses arising
in Hong Kong and the PRC of approximately HK$46,277,000
(2021: HK$18,035,000) and HK$ nil (2021: HK$2,665,000)
respectively available to offset against future taxable profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses arising in
Hong Kong may be carried forward indefinitely. Tax losses
arising in the PRC will expire in 5 years from the year of
origination since 2018.

(33) CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 16 July 2013, the Company issued zero-coupon convertible
bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) with principal amount in
aggregate of HK$641,300,000 at the conversion price of
HK$0.6413 for each new share of the Company, which, if fully
converted, is equivalent to 1,000,000,000 new shares of the
Company to Mr. Ong Cheng Heang (“Mr. Ong”) and Dr. Mao
Yumin (“Dr. Mao”), each of principal amount of
HK$320,650,000. Mr. Ong was the non-controlling shareholder
and director of Smart Ascent prior to the completion of
acquisition of the remaining 49% interest in Smart Ascent by
the Group and Dr. Mao was a director of the Company until 5
December 2013, and is a shareholder of the Company.

Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited #5EZE£ERAR AT

(33)

R—E-_—_F=A=+—H A&£E
REB NP EE LS A H KRR
ERBM BN RBABBEERED A
A 446,277,000 L (= T = — F
18,035,000 70) R EB T(ZF = —
F :2,665,00078 7T) ° B AR R = Fl R
NAITERY EERECEHREEE - ¥
EREEZHBEEERIPET -
RAPBEEACHBEEBEEFSEZZ—N\
FEAZFRFTSFANEE-

iR E 3

RZE—=FtA+8 xAAEH%
77 7K % # %8641,300,00078 7T 2 Z B 7]
BlRES(ATBRKRESF]  BRES
FRARQAFRHD0.6413F T KB
A ¥ 1% 8 8 741,000,000,000 f% 748 A
RFTIRG TRREF DD RIETT
Ong Cheng Heang 5t & ([Ong 5t 4 |) &
EREBLI(EBL]D  SADFE
% 17 7N % %E.320,650,0007%8 7T ° A AR &
B 5 A U B8 3 £ 2 I $R49% 1 2= AT
Ongt £ BiEEE 2 EERRKRERE
E MEBLIEEETARBAEETES
—E—=F+-AFEBAAL - TAK
NAPRER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(33) CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The Convertible Bonds are convertible at the option of the
bondholders into ordinary shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.6413 per ordinary share on or before
the seventh business day prior to the maturity date of 16 July
20838, subject to anti-dilutive clauses.

The Convertible Bonds are issued in HK$. The fair value of the
liability component of the Convertible Bonds was
HK$20,712,000, which had been determined by the discounted
cashflow approach using the prevailing market interest rate of
similar non-convertible bonds and taking into account the credit
risk of the Company. The effective interest rate is 18.72%. The
fair value of the conversion option of HK$569,288,000 classified
as equity component for the Convertible Bonds was calculated
using the Binomial Model. The inputs into the model were as
follows:

(33) I 2 I% 15 5 (@)

BEFHAAREERIBR_T==
FLtAT R NBRELEERBRHZH
R E &R EEA0.64138 T i 7]
BRESFIBAARAR 2 ERER
AR REEHRRAR

ARRE ST A T84T - AR E
FB8EHD 2 A FEAF20,712,0007%
T HDEAEMUETRERES 2B
TGN ERTKEEBEARARAZEER
BRURRIRIB CREAET - BERFI X
B1872% - DA MRESEH T
o 2 TR 2 Y {E569,288,0007% 7T
TDERAZEAEXGFHE ZEX &
ASEET :

Date of issuance

16 July 2013

BITHH
—E2-=FtA+KH

Stock price (HK9) B & (BT) 0.59
Exercise price (HK$) TEE BT 0.6413
Discount rate BhIR & 18.72%
Risk free rate (note a) 1 2 B A & (it 52 a) 2.63%
Expected volatility (note b) 8 B te (Bt 52 b) 66.55%
Expected dividend yield (note c) TEEARR B Weas & (M sEc) 0%
Option life (Years) HA 4 HABR (4 BR) 20

Notes: Bk -

(a) The rate was determined with reference to the yields of Hong Kong (@) ZANRBRR2EZFBARFEFREFR

government bonds and treasury bills as at the date of valuation.

(b) Based on the historical price volatility of the Company for the period from
24 December 2009 up to the date of issuance of the Convertible Bonds.

() Estimated with reference to the historical dividend payout of the Company.

HEAMZESXRERE -

) ERAQRARZZZEAFT-_A=+
MAERBREZETEHHM[ZE
EERKESH -

© SERRTMBERSIRM T -

Annual Report 2022 = G FFR

&

171



172

& &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 - - —F=A=+—RHI|FZ
(33) CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) (33) T 42 I8 1E % ()
Movements of the liability component of the Convertible Bonds M ESEaESX S 2B EE Y W
are set out below: T
Principal
amount Carrying
(note) amount
& HE
(B &) FREE
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT
At 1 April 2020 R-ZE_ZFTFMA—H 577,170 58,950
Interest charge FEZH — 11,030
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZEZ—F=A=+—
rZFEZ—FWMA—H 577,170 69,980
Interest charge B X H — 13,094
At 31 March 2022 RZE__F=A=+—H 577,170 83,074

Note: At the date of issuance, the principal amount of the Conv

ertible Bonds

was HK$641,300,000, and thereafter the following events have taken

place:

On 5 August 2013, the Convertible Bonds with principal amount of
HK$64,130,000 was converted into 100,000,000 ordinary shares of the

Company at the conversion price of HK$0.6413 per ordinary

On 25 October 2013, 24 April 2014, 30 August 2014, 31 De:

share.

cember 2014

and 30 April 2015, the Convertible Bonds with principal amount of

HK$320,650,000, HK$64,130,000, HK$64,130,000, HK$64,

HK$64,130,000 were acquired by Innovative Pharm from
defined in note 38) respectively.

130,000 and
Dr. Mao (as

On 8 October 2019, Innovative Pharm disposed of the Convertible Bonds

to Dr. Mao.

On 23 December 2019, Dr. Mao disposed of the Converti

ble Bonds to

United Gene International Holdings Group Limited, in which each Dr. Mao

and Dr. Xie Yi indirectly holds 33% of interests.

Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited #5EZE£ERAR AT

B

RETHE TRBREFZASEA
641,300,000 7t * M K& & & T 5] =
I8 :

R-ZEBE—Z=ZF\ARAB X&8EA
64,130,000 7t 2 AJ AR E H E R &
100,000,000/% & A 7] @AY - R E A
FHEEBAX0.6413B T ©

R-ZE—=F+A-+HB —ZE—mM%F
MA-Z+WmHE - —FE—mENA=F+H"

—mHFE+ZA=+—AkZT—H
FMA=+H " A& 5 A320,650,000
7 JT.  64,130,0007% JT * 64,130,000 JT *
64,130,000 7t 64,130,000/ JT Z A #
BREFEHEMBEHANTELIRBE(EE
B K7ES8) °

—NF+ANE
BEHEARRES -

BB EREE

—NE+-_A=-+=0" £&L
[ United Gene International Holdings
Group Limited tf & 7] # J& & % - T £ 18
T RHRE T D BIFEEEE38% -



GRANTS

The amount represented receipt of grants by a subsidiary from
local government authority in the PRC. The movements in

(34) DEFERRED INCOME ON GOVERNMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE R R M (R)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(34) B/ 8 Bh 2 IE 7E WL A

ERZEE-—RNBARAPEEH
BRFS #B PIREBR 2 46 B » R 8 B 2 R

deferred income on government grants are as follows: UG A BT -
2022 2021
—=E2_— —E - —F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FAET
At 1 April WM A—H 5,076 4,803
Recognised in profit or loss (note) RiBaER (M) (128) (129)
Exchange realignment B i, o2& 184 396
At 31 March R=A=+—H 5,132 5,076
Analysed as: RI=R
Current liabilities mEAE 131 127
Non-current liabilities EREBAaE 5,001 4,949
5,132 5,076
Note: Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included Mz - EAWE BELRREZBIFEBETA

in non-current liabilities as deferred income on government grants and are
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of

the related assets.

JER B B (& 51l 45 DR A B 2 R T A
TREMEEZENFHARERE

SABARBRALRERER -

(35) SHARE CAPITAL (35) At &<
2022 2021
—=E=-= —ETE-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET & T
Authorised: SETE
20,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 20,000,000,000 % & % & (&
HK$0.01 each 0.01 7T~ il Rk 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEZTRHE :
2,390,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,390,000,000 f% & A% B
HK$0.01 each 0.018B Lz EiBAR 23,900 23,900

Annual Report 2022

@

173



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

g A

RE PSR M R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #;

BT _F=-A=+—HItFE

(36) HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

(36) = B 2 =] Bt I Ak R &

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B =E FE T T& T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries — unlisted AM B AT 2z —3E L™ 40 629,927 629,927
Amounts due from subsidiaries TEU M B A B I8 369,345 368,832
999,272 998,759
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other &% ~ T8 7038 K E Ah
receivables FE W gk 1B 324 312
Cash and bank balances B4 NIRITAER 43,573 58,814
43,897 59,126
Total assets BEE 1,043,169 1,057,885
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables TEIR B A & H th fE T RIE 910 932
Amounts due to subsidiaries XS NG R 135,684 143,943
136,594 144,875
Non-current liability EREBEE
Convertible bonds A R (& & 33 83,074 69,980
Total liabilities weE 219,668 214,855
Equity =
Share capital Rg A 35 23,900 23,900
Reserves = 37 799,601 819,130
823,501 843,030
Total liabilities and equity weErER 1,043,169 1,057,885
On behalf of the Board REEES

Xie Yi
i 2
Director

EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —E - —_F=H=1+—HILFE

(37) RESERVES

The Group

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are as set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity in these
consolidated financial statements. The natures and purposes of
reserves within equity are as follows:

(@ The share premium account represents the amount
subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

(b)  In accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC, all
of the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are
required to transfer part of their profit after tax to the
capital reserve. Subject to certain restrictions set out in
the relevant PRC regulations and the articles of
association of these PRC subsidiaries, the capital reserve
may be used to offset losses or for capitalisation as paid-
up capital.

(c) The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation in 1999, over the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof.

(d) Foreign currency translation reserve represents gains/
losses arising on retranslating the net assets/liabilities of
foreign operations into presentation currency.

(e) Convertible bonds equity reserve represents the amount
allocated to the equity component of convertible bonds
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

(f) FVTOCI reserve represents fair value reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments designated at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9 that
are held at the end of the reporting period.

(37) i 18

A% E

AEBEREEZEDFERIIRESE
AHBREZEAREBDEA -
PGB ZMERE HMT

@ BOEERERBRAZEBD
M B2 FRIE e

b)) RETEABEG AREET
%ﬁ#$ﬂ%ﬁ2%%’ A 1%
H BB BRBL1& 05 B 98 B = B AN
e BEANRRA AFEREREEXL
REERNCASBREAN  HEAX
BB BROA I AT B E T IR Bl K iz
SEhEMBARAEKERMAZ
IR o

© AEBZBABRASREBEASKHE
R—NAANFETEAMKE
MB AR AZEEBBARF
ERXBABRZEBETRAREZ
E®8

O EXREEERBIEBZEES
BEFEENRESZINEEM
EEZWHEE -

€ FAMBESEZFEERERESS
B 75 R 2R Y 5E4 A B AT R AR (F 5
FIRAZ Bt BURERZ AR A
BT RBRESEDRSB D AED
FoZ 5RIA °

H BAFEFAEMEZEKRSFEE
BEERRBERREARERE
MRS ENFIRBERER
$TE§+)\EWE’£\EH&EZH§$&

RFEZRAZHFENRF
@Eﬁﬁ

Annual Report 2022 = @ FFR

175



& &

O NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(37) RESERVES (Continued) (37) f& & (&)
The Company b/ NN
Convertible
Share Contributed bonds equity Retained
premium surplus reserve earnings Total
AR ES

BHwE BARK - REREKE KREEN £
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TR TEr  TAEX

At 1 April 2020 NZE-ZEFNMA—H 191,738 64,636 512,359 67,540 836,273
Loss for the year REEFHE — - - (17,143) (17,143

At 31 March 2021 and R-ZE-—F

1 April 2021 ZA=+—Hk
—E-_—-FMWA—H 191,738 64,636 512,359 50,397 819,130
Loss for the year KFEEEE — — — (19,529) (19,529
At 31 March 2022 NZE=-=
=RA=+—H 191,738 64,636 512,359 30,868 799,601
(38) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (38) 8 Bk FR5
(a) Save as the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere (a) BmA KRR EMEBH AT
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group has 2R RERIN KREBDRE
entered into the following transactions with related parties EREIMLATEB RS :
during the year:
2022 2021
—ZE2__ —EF-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
(i) Consultancy fee expense paidto () 2 EE + (KA FIALE)
Dr. Mao, a shareholder of BREBRAX
the Company 663 663
(i) Loan interest income receivable (i) & I & 7% T — &1 B & A &)
from loan to an associate ZERABWA 735 735
(ii)y Imputed interest income from (iif) /& Y — FE1 B & & &) FUE
amount due from an associate ZIHEF S WA - 3,670
(b) Compensation of key management b) TEEZEE = R
The remuneration of key management for the year are set AEFTEEBREBEAEBZMEH
out in note 11. RFFET o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(39) INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (B A B LA 2R
Place of
incorporation/ Proportion of ownership
registration/ Registered/issued and interest and voting right
Name operation fully paid share capital  held by the Company Principal activities
HEMA L/ EE/ A/ ERTR FAABENFERES
A7 -k ch HERK EES $:4] TEXEH
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
Directly held
EERA
Extrawell (BVI) Limited BVI US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
ordinary shares
Extrawell (BVI) Limited EBRAER 10,000 7T & i@ & 100% 100% RAER
Jilin Extrawell Changhbaishan China RMB33,000,000 100% 100%  Development, manufacture
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“JECP") registered capital and sales of pharmaceutical
(note a) products
EMBERBLEXFER DA hE AR #33,000,0007T 100% 100% F% HERHEER
(TEmBEE]) (Mta) FhEA
Indirectly held
MERE
Extrawell Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$20 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding and
HK$1,000,000 property investment
non-voting deferred shares
BRELEERARA EE 0B TERR 100% 100% REERREDFERE
1,000,000 7T
BREBETRN
Extrawell Pharmaceutical (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Provision of agency services
RELEX(BE)ARRA BE 2ETEBR 100% 100% RERIERSE
South Asia Pharmaceutical (China) Malaysia US$1 ordinary share 100% 100% Marketing and distribution of
Limited pharmaceutical products
SRAD 1ETERR 100% 100% HERDHER
Changchun Extrawell Pharmaceutical China RMB50,000,000 73% 73%  Development, manufacture
Co., Ltd. (“CEP”) (note b) registered capital and sales of pharmaceutical
products
EEREBLRAARAA G A B #50,000,0007 73% 8% B BERHEER
(TRERE] (MiTo) BRI
Best-Bio Developments Limited BVI/China US$1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Investment holding
KBRZEE/ 1ETEBR 100% 100% #REER
HE
Right & Rise Limited BVI/China US$50,000 100% 100% Holding of gene invention
ordinary share rights and investment holding
RERAEE/ 50,000% 7T & # ik 100% 100% HEEREAERREZR
HE
Notes: =3

(@) JECP is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the PRC with an
operating period of 15 years commencing from 22 April 1999. JECP has
renewed its operating period up to 22 April 2024.

(b) CEP is a joint stock limited company established in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(39) INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affect
the financial results of the year or form a substantial portion of

the net assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year or any time during the year.

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

of the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Place/country of Proportion of ownership

(B9) KRB 2 7] 2 HE %= (&)

ERMINZARBMBE AR R/ARRE
EERRIERERNFEVHREL
BRASEEEFEERNID <M B

AR -

P B RS F E A o] B P - 4B A B
BRABBRTEMNERES

TRITASERAEANFERER
ZHEEMBRR ZFIE

registration/ interests/voting rights
incorporation/ held by non-controlling Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary operations interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
B/ EMAL/ FEREREZ PEEFER
WEAREHE Lz /BR FEERED REBLA B2 RitFERER
2022 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E--f T ZB--f —T-—F ZB--F —ZT-_—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TET
CEP PRC 27% 503 1,435 (714) (1,196)
RERKE H
Individually immaterial subsidiary with
non-controlling interests - - (15) (15)
FEFERER 2 ERATERMED
7
503 1,435 (729) (1,211)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE R R M (R)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(39) INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of CEP is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

(B) R B 2 7] 2 HE = (&)

ERREREZVBENBRZH 40
T TIHHBERAMEREEARA
IR S8 -

CEP RERE

2022 2021

—E=-= —E - —4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

F&E T FA T

Current assets BB E 43,788 39,081
Non-current assets EREEE 146,478 138,145
Current liabilities mEBaE (180,226) (165,277)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (5,001) (9,838)

Equity attributable to owners of KNG A ANEEER

the Company 5,753 4,207
Non-controlling interests eIt (714) (1,196)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE PSR M R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(39) INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) (B9) KRB 2 7] 2 HE %= (&)
CEP (Continued) RERE @
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Revenue W & 73,925 78,802
Expenses X (72,055) (73,4606)
Profit for the year K F E g 1,870 5,336
Other comprehensive income/(expense) AN EE HE 2 mEUk (B X)
for the year 158 )
Total comprehensive income for REE2HK=BRE
the year 2,028 5,334
Profit for the year attributable to: LWTALTEERFERF :
— owners of the Company el N/NEIE RSN 1,367 3,901
— non-controlling interests —IEERER 503 1,435
1,870 5,336
Total comprehensive income for the UTATEGEERFE2E K
year attributable to: ok
— owners of the Company — RRRERA 1,546 3,898
— non-controlling interests —JEERER 482 1,436
2,028 5,334
Net cash generated from operating RESEHEL IS EE
activities 10,202 9,347
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (A, EE RS
investing activities TR (9,882) 29
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE R R M (R)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z - - —F=H=+—HIIFE

(40) SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND Qo) izERE P cEeMEERE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY mEEHE
2022 2021
—E-= —E - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FABTT
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at FVTPL HAFEGFAERS D/ ﬁ/%
Investments in convertible bonds TR E SR E 2 B E =
as a whole 634,907 466,322
Short term investment SRR =) 1,905 1,786
Financial assets at amortised cost BEBIEK ARG EC B EE
Loan to an associate ERTF—HEBERA 14,500 16,118
Amount due from an associate Fi g — R B & N B 5K B 36,089 41,947
Trade and bills receivables Z 5 EINBRR K B Hﬁlmﬁ 7,813 9,130
Deposits and other receivables }E & K H M E W R IE 5,094 1,464
Pledged bank deposits B RIR 1T K 21,738 21,688
Cash and bank balances B RIRTT % 111,881 126,710
833,927 685,165
2022 2021
—E-_—f —Z—-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial liabilities measured BHEK ARG EcEMEE
at amortised cost
Trade and bills payables BIREMERRENE TJ% 6,456 6,692
Accruals and other payables ?ﬁﬁ RERARHEMERNKIE 31,341 28,860
Convertible bonds ABKRES 83,074 69,980
120,871 105,532
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(40) SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

Due to short term nature, the carrying values of financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
are approximate to their fair value.

Financial instruments measured at fair
value

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
— short-term investment
The fair value hierarchy is Level 2.

The fair value of the short-term investment is determined
based on estimated return of 2.3% (2021: 2.3%) and the
credit quality of these investments which can be assessed
by reference to historical information or external credit
ratings, if any, provided by the bank.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
— Investments in convertible bonds
The fair value hierarchy is Level 3.

The fair value of investments in convertible bonds is
determined based on risk-free rate for the life of the
option on the Innovative Pharm Bonds, the exercise price
per conversion share, share price (from observable
market data), expected volatility of the share price, and
expected dividend vyield, of Innovative Pharm, where the
estimated contractual cash flow on the liability component
over the remaining term of the Innovative Pharm Bonds is
discounted at the interest rate appropriate to the riskiness
of the Innovative Pharm Bonds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

(40) SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND (40) 2 ZERMEERS
7l (1)

Wik )
REBME

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair

b) RAFEFEZEMITA

value (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
— Investments in convertible bonds (Continued)
Significant unobservable inputs

Expected Volatility

Expected volatility of the share price of Innovative Pharm
was determined by reference to historical share price of
Innovative Pharm.

In respect of the sensitivity relationship of the fair value
measurement to changes in inputs, an increase/(decrease)
in the expected volatility would result in increase/(decrease)
in fair value measurement that the higher the volatility of
the share price of Innovative Pharm the higher the fair
value.

Discount Rate

The discount rate was the rate adopted to calculate the
present value of the cash flow of the Innovative Pharm
Bonds and was estimated having taken into account the
specific terms and structure of the Innovative Pharm
Bonds including their liquidity. Increase/(decrease) in the
discount rate would result in (decrease)/increase in the fair
value.

Nevertheless, there would be counteracting effect among
the inputs, and in certain extreme situation where the
stock price of Innovative Pharm at 31 March 2022 and
2021 was significantly lower than that of the exercise
price, the conversion option to convert the Innovative
Pharm Bonds into shares of Innovative Pharm would be
expected worthless and the expected volatility would
have minimal effect on the fair value measurement.
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@ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

(40) SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
— Investments in convertible bonds (Continued)
Significant unobservable inputs (Continued)

There were no changes in valuation techniques for the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at fair value, on a recurring
basis, by level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z—Z - —F=F=+—HI-FfE

(40) SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair

(40) & 38 i)
e EHEm:m

7l & Zﬁﬂﬁé&ﬁ

b) RAFEFEZEMITA

value (Continued) (#&)
There was no transfer between different levels of the fair BE_E-_—_ KT —F=
value hierarchy during the years ended 31 March 2022 A=+—HLEE RTFEEH

and 2021, and there was no change in valuation
techniques for the following Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at the end

NEBZHELELETER MR
BEHR TIHRBEEEHEREE
BAVEAEZASESREE

of the reporting period: Z{EE A EN EEE)
2022
—E==
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ - EZ FE= st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F& T TET FET F#& T
Financial assets at fair value 1Z A F{EEF ABZE 2
through profit or loss TREE - 1,905 634,907 636,812
- 1,905 634,907 636,812
2021
—E-—4F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
— & £k F=4 Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
F& T FE T FE T FE T
Financial assets at fair value 1Z A {EEF ABZ 2
through profit or loss TREE — 1,786 466,322 468,108
— 1,786 466,322 468,108
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

(40) SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Continued)

Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair value
based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) are as
follows:

@) ZEERIAT2EHEERE
e

EHE ()

b) BAFEFEzE@mIA
(#&)
REBEEATAHERE AHBIE(F
=R BEAFEFEZeMm I A
ZEERMOT

Unlisted investments
in convertible bonds

L A#
RESFKRE
HK$’000
FATT
At 1 April 2020 RZE-ZZFTFMHA—H 571,065
Change in fair value in profit or loss BHEARRFEE
(included in other gains and losses) (Gt AE A iz R E18) (104,743)
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R-E-_—F=ZA=+—HK
—F-—FWT™HA—H 466,322
Change in fair value in profit or loss BaARFEE
(included in other gains and losses) (Gt AE M R EE) 168,585
At 31 March 2022 R-_E-_—_F=H=+—H 634,907

(41) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s major financial instruments include short term
investment, investments in convertible bonds, trade and bills
receivables, deposits and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, cash and bank balances, trade and bills payables,
accruals and other payables, loan to an associate, amount due
from an associate and convertible bonds. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks
such as foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The management monitors and manages
the financial risks through internal risk assessment which
analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of risks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(41) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(A1) B 7 B B B 12 ()

(@) Foreign currency risk (@) M= Pe
Foreign exchange risk arises when commercial IINERBRAREBEETREIAFINGES
transactions, assets or liabilities are denominated in a B BB EERS  BE
currency that is not the functional currency of the group SEBEEMEL ANEBEZEKE
entities. The Group operates mainly in the PRC and is ERN &K I R 2 AN
exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk arising EEXEZINBEXRRR ANEEHIHE
from various foreign currency exposures. The Group B 0 B SNBSS SR - AT 0 B
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. 1222 B R HNE R R - I A8 A %
However, the management monitors foreign exchange EhFE E R E RINERE R -
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
The carrying amounts of the foreign currency RZE-_—_FR_FT - —F=H
denominated monetary assets and liabilities in net position =t+—H ®INBHEZEEE
as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 are as follows: EXBEFEZERENAT :
Euro RMB uUss
BT AR Ep
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT THT FAET
At 31 March 2022 NR-E-_—_F=HA=+—H
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITER - - 19,362
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHEHK 2,776 1,619 63,084
Overall net exposure 2 HEE R FRE 2,776 1,619 82,446
At 31 March 2021 R=ZB=-Z-5=ZA=+—H
Pledged bank deposit EHEFRITER — — 19,316
Cash and bank balances Ne NIRRT 2,910 1,532 63,003
Overall net exposure 2R R FEE 2,910 1,532 82,319

The cash and bank balances denominated in US$ belong
to the group entities in which the functional currency is
HK$. The directors are of the opinion that the HK$ are
reasonably stable with the US$ under the Linked
Exchange Rate System, and accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis of US$ with respect to HK$ is performed.

NETFEZRE RRITERE
RNEEBRETZIEEERE -
EEZRA AR ERRE X
ET BTREXTHERE:
It M AE TR ITEB T 2 Bk
BT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(41) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table illustrates the approximate change in
the Group’s profit before tax for the year and retained
profits in response to reasonably possible changes in the
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of each of the following years:

(41) B 7% 2. B B 2 (@)

(a)

S L B ()

3R Bt B 7S 5 1B R 4R R BR AR A

A R AR B s M 2 BE 40 = B DA B e

ZIS%EEALATKifﬂEﬁ;TEj(
B EXRNESIBAI LB E)

2022 2021

—E=-= —EZ—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FAT

Euro appreciated by 5% BX T FH{E 5% 139 146
RMB appreciated by 5% AREFHE% 81 77

The change in exchange rates do not affect the Group’s
other component of equity. The same percentage
depreciation in the foreign currencies against the
functional currency of the respective group companies
would have the same magnitude on profit and retained

profits but of opposite effect.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the end of each of the reporting period and had been
applied to each of the group entities; exposure to
currency risk for financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible
changes in foreign exchange rates over the period until

the next reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(41) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to
variable-rate pledged bank deposits and bank balances (see
notes 27 and 28 respectively for details). The Group
currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise. The management considers the Group’s exposure
to future cash flow interest rate risk is minimal taking into
account the minimal fluctuation on market interest rate.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Liquidity risk

The Group actively manages its debt maturity profile,
operating cash flows and the availability of funding so as
to ensure that all operating, investing and financing needs
are met. The liquidity risk management strategy adopted
by the Group is to measure and forecast its cash
commitments and maintains a level of cash and cash

equivalents deemed adequate to finance the Group’s
activities.

(A1) B 7 B B B 12 ()

(b)

(c)

A = 2 k2

AEBZReREMNERRAREE
BOZ B AR E Z BB EIT
GTREBITEH(FBED B RN
o7 R28) B c AEEIREI
R R B - A AEE
TBEEBEAMNERZEETEKR
FEE - ERTHENEZEE
B BEERAANEEEATR
REEREFNEZBBREM -
It BEE 2T BRRE AT o

RBESER

AEBEBREEEBEHKIBE
N REFTRERAPAHE
T NERATENAAERLE &
BERBERZ - AKERAZR
HESRREERB LA ENE
RMERSEAELRKRERREF
B0 B # RS R AR A
SEEF 2KF -

Annual Report 2022 = G FFR

&

189



190

& &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

(41) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c¢) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining
contractual maturities.

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the
Group’s liabilities at the end of the reporting period based
on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations
(including interest payments computed using contractual
rates, or if floating, based on rates current at the reporting

(41) B 7% 2. B B 2 (@)

(c)

FREE L E R

BFEGEHNIHAE D 2%
BT ADH e
TEREBBEAEHRMBEREERME
(BEFERE LT XKW B F
g AR E k4 B H 2 & AU Fl &
SFEBFMENR) B AE B
RmEHRBEZDARBER -

date).
Weighted More than
average Total Within More than 2 years
effective contractual 1yearor 1yearbut butless More
interest Carrying undiscounted repayable less than than than
rate  amount cash flow ondemand 2years 5years 5years
—FAs BE-F EBWF
mEFLH BRAREE RER  ELR EBIR
ERfZE KHEE RERELR HE mE IF BBILF
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET THT TEr THx TEx THEx
At 31 March 2022 R-B--&
ZR=+-H
Trade and bills payables EHRFETR N/A 6,456 6,456 6,456 - - -
BN ZE TEAR
Accruals and other payables  TE1E & B & 2 ) NA 31,341 31,341 31,341 - - -
JEfI 3B TEAR
Lease liabilities HEBE 4.63% 2,233 2,288 2,244 44 - -
Convertible bonds R ES 18.72% 83,074 577,170 - - - 577,170
123,104 617,255 40,041 44 - 577,170
At 31 March 2021 RZBZ-%
ZR=+-H
Trade and bills payables BHRMRA K N/A 6,692 6,692 6,692 - - -
ENRE TER
Accruals and other payables  TE12 & B R £ 1t N/A 28860 28,860 28,860 - - -
FENFIE TEA
Lease liabilties HERRE 4.54% 3,804 4,078 1,904 2,174 - -
Convertible bonds AR E 5 18.72% 69,980 577,170 - - - 577,170
109,426 616,800 37,456 2,174 — 577,170
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —E - —_F=H=1+—HILFE

(41) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
investments in convertible bonds, trade and other
receivables, amount due from an associate, loan to an
associate, pledged bank deposits and bank balances.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is the carrying amounts of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The investments in convertible bonds as at 31 March
2022 expose the Group to concentration of credit risk. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group assessed the
financial position and performance of the issuer of the
convertible bonds with carrying amount HK$634,907,000
(2021: HK$466,322,000) and in view of the net assets of
the issuer and its ongoing core operating segment related
to the In-process R&D of the Product, the management
considers the default risk on the investments in convertible
bonds is not significant.

The Group also has concentration of credit risk as 13%
(2021: 18%) of the total trade receivables were due from
the Group’s major customers, which are privately owned
PRC companies engaged in trading of pharmaceutical
products. The directors of the Company considered that
the credit risk of trade receivables is insignificant after
considering the credit quality and financial ability of these
customers. In respect of trade receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. These credit
evaluations focus on the customers’ past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. The Group will make
specific provision for those balances which cannot be
recovered. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers. In the opinion of the directors, the default
risk of the Group is considered to be low.

(A1) B 7 B B B 12 ()
(d) SERKEEBEFEME

AEEZEERBREERE K
BRESKRE BEZREKERLE
fi FE UL R IR ~ B U — Bt 2 A 7]
KRB -ERT-HEBELRR B
EWRITFRRIBITESR -

RZE-_Z—_F=A=+—H &
SEFMEH 2 EAEERR(E
ARXSGHFREBITEEMSA
SEAZMBER) REETE
#ﬂ%ﬂﬁzxﬁﬂﬁmiﬂﬁ
= ZMREE

R-ZE-_—_F=A=+—H2H
BREFFRESAEBEERR
S RNMEMR AEEFHE
8R M 8 A 634,907,000/8 L (= &
— — 4 1 466,322,000/8 L) Z ]
BMREFEIT A ZT BRI RE
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TEK-

AEEFEERRET EAES
EWERRBEPIB%(ZF - —
Fo18%) NERAEEZEE
BEPFIA ZEXPRNEER
BHLZPBMARA - &EREZ
EXPZEEERRM BB
é ARREERREZREE
ZFEJ—L 2 TEX-LEH
f%% 5 HMAEZERES
?@ﬁﬁgzgﬁtﬁ%jﬁ
B - AKEITAEEERRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(41) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

Pledged bank deposits/bank balances

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits/bank balances is
limited because the counterparties are reputable banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit

agencies.

Amount due from an associate and loan to an

associate

The Group has concentration of credit risk as the
balances were contributed from an associate for both

years.

The Group regularly monitors the business performance
of the associate. The Group’s credit risks in these
balances are mitigated through the value of the assets
held by these entities and the power to participate the
relevant activities of these entities. The Group provided
impairment based on lifetime ECL. For the years ended
31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group assessed the ECL
for amount due from an associate and loan to an
associate. An allowance of credit losses of amount due
from an associate and loan to an associate amounting to

approximately HK$5,858,000 (2021:

approximately HK$2,353,000 (2021: nil) respectively were

provided during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management
makes periodic individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables and deposits based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The management
believes that there are no significant increase in credit risk
of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL"). For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, the
Group assessed the ECL for other receivables and
deposits. An allowance of credit losses of other
receivables amounting to approximately HK$25,000 (2021:
reversal of impairment loss of approximately
HK$1,094,000) was provided during the year ended 31

March 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #HZ%

(41) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade and

RE SRR M R (BB)
—E-—F=A=1+—HLFE

(A1) B 7 B B B 12 ()
d EERKEBETG@E

AEEFERBREREYZEEH
BHMEERRFEZIAFEE
SRR ZBERERE - ARA
SEBTEERAERY BAR
TREFPOBRAEEATRBLRE
A EEaREZERREETS
E—IRAKETRETFEZE
B e

TREI A EERE 5 EURR
K e S 4% P I R 2 15 B R &%

bills receivables: BEH=EIERX 2 E& R
Past
due over
Current 180 days Total
=hp ]
BH HBiB180H et
At 31 March 2022 N-—E—-—
=A=+t—H
Expected credit loss (%) TEHR{Z B 18K (%) - 96.32
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)  BEE 4 1E (T4 7T) 6,141 45,503 51,644
Loss allowance (HK$’000) EERE(TET) 43,831 43,831
At 31 March 2021 N—ZE=—
=RA=+—H
Expected credit loss (%) TEHRE 518K (%) — 96.07
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)  BEE 4 1& (T 7T) 7,391 44,274 51,665
Loss allowance (HK$’000) EEEE (T AT 42,535 42,535

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 1 year. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historical data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

BHEBERXIREBE—FZE
BREEERTE ZFHLXTIE
AR - DA BR U SR I SR BRI H T
ZRBEMRR - RERARARHE
1 WK TR 2 TR F B 2 IR
MBERZER-

Annual Report 2022 = G FFR

193



194

&

&

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE PSR M R ()

(41) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Internal credit

@R EER @
d FERKKREFG@E

R E B A
BTID A

Trade and bills

: ;pf /~A Fl¥ i& H? {3 B

Other financial

rating Description receivables assets
EZBEWERR
ABEETR Ml ElEE Hith e mEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL — not  12m ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts  credit-impaired
el REBFHEHNRBRERTEMEMN 2HEHEEE 12 AEHEE
mElS R K—EBEERE Bk
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — not  12m ECL

ERBE

Doubtful

R AR

Loss

&1

Write-off

i

but usually settle in full
ERAEEREE B & EE A -

HRE TN

There have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition through
information developed internally or

external resources

W*B&?I\ﬁéﬁf?iﬁ’]éﬁﬂﬁ?
R E %ﬂiﬁgulblfxxak%ﬁiaﬁu

There is evidence indicating the asset is

credit-impaired

BEBRBENEECHREERNE

credit-impaired
> HIBHIE B8
KX—EEERE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

*HBEREER

a5

R—EEERE

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

>HEHEEE
K—EERE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor Amount is written off

is in severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of

recovery

ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁiﬁf’\ﬁﬁ}\ﬁfﬁékﬁﬁﬁiﬁ :

i A &2 [ 30 £ 4R [0 3%

TR

12 AFEHREE
IEES

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired
>HFEEEEE
KX—EEERE
Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired
> HFEEEE S
K—EERE

Amount is written off

O M
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(41) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

assessment:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
15 BB AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

External Internal

@R ER @
d FERKKREFG@E

TRAJNAETHEBEERLRN
BZAEBEEREEZEER

GG
PA

credit  credit 2022 Gross 2021 Gross
rating rating 12m or lifetime ECL carrying amount  carrying amount
HEE REE =®== —E--F
BN EFIR 1L2EASZPEREERX REAE REAE
Financial assets at amortised cost HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RBHEAATEZERMEE TExr TRz THET THER
Trade and bills receivables N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 6,141 7,391
B D REBE R R B E & TEA  EER HEHMEERXECERE)
Doubitful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 45,503 44,274
R PHEHMEERX(BEEENE)
Loan to an associate N/A Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 16,118 16,118
ERT—RHBEAR TEA XK FHEMEEREXECENE)
Amount due from an associate N/A Doubitful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 41,947 41,047
e — B & DR IE TER RE PHEBEERX(BEENE)
Deposits and other receivables N/A (Note) 12m ECL 5,120 1,464
B R H A YRR TEA (W) 1REAEBEERX
Note: For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group fizr: tASEERKEREMS  AEBFEA

uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

BEMERGEERR B LRI
KRB KREEM -
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O NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

(41) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)  (41) Bf 7§ [&| B& & 22 (&)

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(d) =& = Bz & & 5F & 8

(Continued)
2022 —E__F
Not past
due/No fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
REHER/
EEEZR
B A et
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH& T FH& T FET
Amount due from an associate JE U — Bt A A
WIE - 36,089 36,089
Loan to an associate BEXT—HEBE QA - 14,500 14,500
Trade and bills receivables H 5 FE R 5 % e R
=3 1,672 6,141 7,813
Deposits and other receivables e M E M EIW A - 5,094 5,094
2021 e
Not past
due/No fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
7R 48 Hf /
1 2 F -t FEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAETT FA&T FA T
Amount due from an associate FEU — B & QA
= E - 41,047 41,947
Loan to an associate ERT—HEBZERQ A — 16,118 16,118
Trade and bills receivables Z 5 e U ER T % FE IR
=g 1,739 7,391 9,130
Deposits and other receivables e REMEWRFRE — 1,464 1,464

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for amount due from an
associate, loan to an associate, trade and bills receivables
and deposits and other receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
15 BB AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(41) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)  (41) Bf 7§ [ B& & 22 ()

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment (d) EE & kX% EF @
(Continued)
Loan to an associate B F—REBL AT
Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
impaired) Total
Z i
FHHEERX
(EBEERE) BEr
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT

At 1 April 2020, 31 March2021 HR-Z_-_ZFMAB—H -

and 1 April 2021 —E-_—-=A=+—-HE
—¥--fMmA-H - -
Changes due to financial N-_E-——FA—HAER
instruments recognised at 1 April SR T EES:
2021:
— Impairment losses recognised — BfERBE
18 2,353 2,353
At 31 March 2022 R-E-_—_€#=A=+—H 2,353 2,353
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O NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
75 BB AR MY A (R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & - —&F=A=+—HIFE

(41) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)  (41) Bf 7§ [&| B& & 22 (&)

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment (d) EE & & EF @
(Continued)
Trade and bills receivables B S EKRNR EKEE
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total
25 21

12{8 A BHEE BHEE

BHMEE RA(BREE BX(FE
-FS L {E) H{E) o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET TET TET

At 1 April 2020 RZZEZTF
MAE—H — 43,406 — 43,406
Changes due to financial RZE_ZF
instruments recognised at 1 WA—HRE®RSHE
April 2020: TAZE):
— Impairment losses —ERARE
recognised BB - 1,268 - 1,268
— Impairment losses reversed ~ — 2 # B 5 & & 18 - (3,998) - (3,998)
Transfer to credit-impaired EREEERE - (1,408) 1,403 -
Amount written off as uncollectible #{ £5 7~ 7] 4 [0 &) 4 58 - - (1,409) (1,403)
Exchange adjustments R - 3,262 - 3,262
At 31 March 2021 and R=ZB=-f%
1 April 2021 =B=+-8BK
—E--5WA—-H - 42,535 - 42,535
Changes due to financial RZT-—F
instruments recognised at 1 mAE—HE®ZS R
April 2021: TEZE):
— Impairment losses - ERARE
recognised BB - 1,160 - 1,160
— Impairment losses reversed ~ — B & B 7 &
B - (1,432) - (1,432)
Exchange adjustments 0 5 & - 1,568 - 1,568
At 31 March 2022 RNR-ZBE-_—F
=A=+-H - 43,831 - 43,831
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
15 BB AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(41) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)  (41) Bf 7§ [ B& & 22 ()

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment (d) EE & kX% EF @
(Continued)
Amount due from an associate W —EEENEME
Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
impaired) Total
2
BHEERX
(BEERE) @t
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FH&IT FHBT

At 1 April 2020, 31 March2021 HR-Z_-_ZFMAB—H -

and 1 April 2021 —E-_—-=A=+—-HE
—E--4#MA—A - —
Changes due to financial N-_E-——FA—HA®ER
instruments recognised at TRITAZE :
1 April 2021:
— Impairment losses recognised —CERREEE 5,858 5,858
At 31 March 2022 N-—EB-_—_H#=H=+—H 5,858 5,858
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE PSR M R ()

(41) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(41) B 7% 2. B B 2 (@)

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment d EERKERBEG@E
(Continued)
Deposits and other receivables ®wERAMEKE
12m ECL Total
1218 A
EHEERX Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
At 1 April 2020 R_ZZB_TF
mA—H 1,050 1,050
Changes due to financial RZEZZFFMA—H

instruments recognised at ARRem T A :

1 April 2020:

— Impairment losses reversed —BEEEREEBE (1,094) (1,094)
Exchange adjustments FE N 44 44
At 31 March 2021 and R-B=-—H=H=+—8H

1 April 2021 E=—E=-_—-FMA—H - -
Changes due to financial RZEZ—FMA—H

instruments recognised at AERcr T A

1 April 2021:

— Impairment losses recognised ~ — 2 #2618 5 18 25 25
Exchange adjustments b 53 1 1
At 31 March 2022 R-—-EB=-=—F=H=+—H 26 26
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(42) CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders through optimisation of capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure,
and makes adjustments to it taking into account the changes in
economic conditions, risk characteristics of the underlying
assets, the Group’s investment strategy and opportunities,
projected operating cash flows and capital expenditures. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust

W) EXEE

AEEEREAZBEERREAKHE
RRAKERE UBBEBELLERRE
BARDEARRAR  BERBRIEHR
[B] 7 Ko 73 H Al ) 25 40 BE & 5 2R M &5
AEFB7BEBRBREF-—FEHFT

b

o

ARBTEHBMRERLEAGHE -
TREBEERRZED BHAE
ZEBEH  REEZ R R R
B EAGERSREAREAR S
BIFHBE AREBABEEAR
B ARET R BEEEKT LM

the level of borrowings, dividend payment to shareholders, FTIREZRE ZETHKROIERDEF
issue new shares, or buy back its own shares. HREMD o

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHExT BT
Debts &% 83,074 69,980
Total equity R B R 1,164,924 1,029,294
Gearing ratio EEAGELL X 7.1% 6.8%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=

B WK R ()

(43) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

WBREZDHELEZ2EEHIK

Interest Lease
payables liabilities Total
ENMFE HEARE et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT TAT FAT
At 1 April 2020 R-ZZBE-FTFPPA—H 58,950 5,586 64,536
Changes from financing cash MERSREST
flows:
Repayment of principal portion of ~ HEBBEAR &I 5 EX
lease liabilities — (1,692) (1,692
Repayment of interest portion of HEBREMEBHER
lease liabilities - (212) (212)
Total changes from financing cash BB IR & R EE B 4A%E
flows - (1,904) (1,904)
Other change: Hfth & 5 :
Interest expenses FMERZ 11,030 212 11,242
Total other change Hm&shem 11,030 212 11,242
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZ_ZT - —4F
—A=F+—HER
T —-FMA—H 69,980 3,894 73,874
Changes from financing cash MERSHREEH
flows:
Repayment of principal portion of ~ HHEBBARE I N EX
lease liabilities - (1,800) (1,800)
Repayment of interest portion of HEAGMNEHLDER
lease liabilities - (1395) (1395)
Total changes from financing cash R B IR &R S & )48
flows - (1,935) (1,935)
Other changes: Hih# g :
Addition of lease liabilities HERERE — 139 139
Interest expenses M BERZ 13,094 135 13,229
Total other changes HtnZa@am 13,094 274 13,368
At 31 March 2022 RZE— =
=A=+—H 83,074 2,233 85,307
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR e B RS R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Ex—ZE - —F=A=+—HIFE

(44) NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group entered into
new arrangements in respects of office premises. Right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of approximately HK$139,000 were
recognised at the commencement date of the lease.

(45) EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 9 June 2022, the third reading of a bill for cancelling the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) offsetting mechanism (the “Bill”)
was passed in the Legislative Council of Hong Kong. After the
Bill takes effect, employers can no longer offset employees’
severance payments or long-service payments against the MPF
derived from the employer’'s mandatory and voluntary
contributions. The offsetting mechanism will be cancelled
starting from 2025. The matter mentioned above will have
impact to the Group’s provision for long service payments (“‘LSP”).
Upon the MPF offsetting mechanism is cancelled, the Group
can no longer deduct LSP from their portion of MPF
contributions. The abolition of the offsetting arrangement has
no retrospective effect. As at the date of the issue of these
financial statements, the exact effective date of the abolition is
yet to be determined and the detailed arrangement is yet to be
announced by the government. This is a non-adjusting event
after the reporting period as the event did not relate to the
obligation of the LSP at the end of the reporting period, but
reflects the circumstances (i.e. the law) that have arisen
subsequently. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of the Bill to the Group. The Group is
not yet in a position to state whether the abolishment of the
MPF offsetting mechanism will result in a substantial change to
the Group’s financial statements.

Other than the abovementioned, no other material subsequent
event is noted.

(46) APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 July 2022.

M) EBERS

REE_Z-_—_F=H=1T—HLHF
B AEERBABHET LT T HE -
FRAEEENMEE&EX 139,000 7T
REERKBBER -

@5) HMEHRERE

RZE_—_FANB FBLEE
—ERBHREAGMEAE2(RIE
S DHPEEER(ER] - ARAE
B - BEETABAREGEEARG KX
BRHERZEBECEEES NER
By RERES - BEAE RS S A
“E_RFBREE. bl EEE A
SERERERES(EHRBE )
7 E B K2 - iR 1E S ¥R 6 BUS
% AEETBAEHABEESHRI
SHBRERE S - EHR AL L
ERPTE - RNEEMEREEMB
B BEEBRAOERENRB N RE
- BFATHENSTHRITAM Ty
HEHBRZIEAREE REAAEH
FHERERRZEHRBEE AL
ERE ERBEBEAENB R (B
EO) c AEBEERATEHEREAE
BroeE - NEE N AERBPER R
T8 & 8 m i 5l & 728 BN £ B B 7% TR
KHEBEEARES -

Bt ES SIEIRIEMEAR
‘=R

(46) it AR S P ], K

gErxelN T -_—FE+ A +AHBHE
DRETBEGZEMBHRE -
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@® rive vEARs
FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEBBEHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- AEEBEREATBREE 2248 URE
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, is set f&E - BE M IEERERBZ 0T :

out below:
For the year ended 31 March
HE=HA=1t-HLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“RICF —F--F ZT-%FF ZT-NF ZFN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THT THT FHT TAET

RESULTS E4
Revenue Uz 73,925 78,802 77,584 89,218 85,762

Profit/(Loss) before income tax B AT 15§t Bl F),/

(B8 132,330 (119,663) 85,491 63,374 29,186

Income tax (expense)/credit Fisf (), e (1,239) - 90 (50) 86

Profit/(Loss) for the year REERF/(BE) 131,091 (119,663) 85,581 63,324 29,272
Attributable to: AT AL

— Owners of the Company — KAFEFA 130,588 (121,098) 83,280 64,030 29,930

— Non-controlling interests — RS 503 1,435 2,301 (706) (658)

131,091 (119,663) 85,581 63,324 29,272

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“EZ_F ZE-—F ZT-FF —T-hEF —T-N\F

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER THT TAT TAET TAT

ASSETS, LIABILITIESAND ¥E 86K

NON-CONTROLLING FERER

INTERESTS
Total assets BEE 1,317,101 1,164,239 1,265,710 1,196,086 1,216,783
Total liabilities BEE (152,177) (134,945  (125,862) (134,515  (149,704)
Total equity e 1,164,924 1,029,294 1,139,848 1,061,571 1,067,079
Less: Non-controlling interests  J& : 3E 4% A% #& 5 (729) (1,211) (2,647) (5,081) (4,494)
Equity attributable to owners A 1A A JE(S

of the Company #Ea 1,165,653 1,030,505 1,142,495 1,066,652 1,071,573
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